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Annual Report & Accounts 2013 John Laing

making infrastructure happen

THE LEADING INTERNATIGNAL
INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTOR AND ASSET MANAGER




“John Laing is positioned as a market leader
in privately financed infrastructure investment,
with a portfolio valued at more than £680m.”

John Lalng plC (the Company the Group or John Lang )
Is a leading international infrastructure investor and asset manager
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KPis AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

KPls

Assets under Management!
Portfelio valuation?

Cash yield from investments?
New investment comrmitted

John Laing Arnual Report and Accounts 2013 / 01

IFRS statutery accounts

Profit before tax

Net assets

Proceeds from investment realisations*

Restated

2013 2012
£€1,544 6m E£11209m
£684 4m €574 ?m
£29 3m £26 7m
£112 &4m £146 1m
£125 8Bm £80 9m
£526 ¥m £427 1m
€110 5m £137 &m

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

> Strong growth in assets under management

- Portfolio valuation increased to £684 4 million (2012 restated -

£574 7 million)

- Investment commitments of £112 4 million on ten projects

(2012 - £146 1 mulbion on seven projects)

-3 Profit before tax increased to £125 8 million {2012 restated -

£80 ¢ million)

Profit befare tax of £104 6 million excluding gaimn on sale of JLIS

£110 3 million proceeds fram sales of investments in five PPP projects

1 Assets under Management comprise the sum of the Directors portfolio valuation {net of the market value of John Laing & shareholding v JLIF}
JLIF s market capitalisalron and PPP assets held by JLLPF as at 31 December

2 Portfolio valuation represents the Directors valuation of the Group s Primary and Secondary Investrent portfalios

3 Cash yeld fram investments cormprises subordinated debt Interest dvdends and capital redernptions recesved from project companes

4 Proceeds from investment realisation in 2012 include £44 5 milion from sales of JUIF shares

OUR CORE VALUES

Are the foundation of what we do and how we do 1t

They are the belief system by which we as a business operate defining the
rmanner in which we interact with and treat each other and our external
stakeholders The John Laing Core Values provide a set of guiding principles
for our people, wherever they are, across the Group

+  Commitment
»  Adaptability

- Partnership

»  Responsibility
»  Integrity

Strategic Repart Overview

Governance

Financial Statements
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“The business has a strong pipeline of investment
opportunities spread across multiple sectors
and geographies.”

OUR INTERNATIONAL REACH

John Laing has a welt-established presence In its chosen overseas markets:
North America, Continental Europe and the Asia Pacific region.

* Social Infrastructure
* Transport

NORTH AMERICA

OUR ACTIVITIES

PRIMARY INVESTMENT

Qur primary investment activities involve
sourcing bidding for and winning
greenfield infrastructure projects Our
Primary Investment peortfolio includes
traditionat PPP projects strategic
partnership structures for healthcare
scheres in the UK, as well as renewable
energy projects We work with partners
who are indwidually selected for each
project and we bring our broad skills
base to everything we do

+ Soctal Infrastructure

* Transport

* Environmental including
Waste and Utilitses and
Renewable Energy

UNITED
KINGDCM

* Social Infrastructure
+ Transport
* Renewable Energy

CONTINENTAL EUROPE

SECONDARY INVESTMENT

Our secondary investment activities
involve hatding operational PPP and
renewable energy nfrastructure projects
most of which were originally primary
mvestments for John Laing We aim to
deliver projected investment returns
and consistent growth in the value of
the Secondary Investment paortfolio

Key to this 1s developing streng working
relatienships with partners

* Social Infrastructure
* Transport

ASIA PACIFIC

ASSET MANAGEMENT

We provide investment management
services to both the Group s Primary
and Secondary lnvestment portfolios, to
John Laing Infrasteucture Fund s (JLIF)
investments, and to certain PPP assets
held by the John Laing Pensicn Fund
(JLPF} Services include shareholder
representation through the provisien

of directors to the beards of project
companies and a central specialist
function which identifies and implements
value enhancements and carries cut
portfolio valuations




SOCIAL INFRASTRUCTURE

— ENVIRONMENTAL ————— TRANSPORY
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OUR PORTFOLIQ (As at 31 December 2013)

We aim to deliver predictable investment returns and consistent growth in the value of
the Primary and Secondary Investment portfolios we manage on behatlf of our shareholders,
as well as the secondary investments we manage on behalf of third party investors

PRIMARY INVESTMENT SECONDARY INVESTMENT !
[ AtderHey | T Morth |
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g
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NH3 Al Gdansk ]
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Wind Farm wind Farm Wind Farm Wind Farm vind Farms
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Phil Nofan
CHAIRMAN

VALUE CREATION .- - - e e e . oo .
- Portfolio valuation - Cash yield from investment

E684 A millicn E29 3 rmillion

= New investment committed ->  Profit before tax (excluding gain on sale of JLIS)

E1 1 2 ll- rillion E1 04 6 millien




This has been a pivotal year
for John Laing Fallowing

a comprehensive review

of the Group, we simplified
our structure and sold our
facilities management
business The core business
remaining has delivered a
strong performance across
the full range of its activities
in Primary Investment,
Secondary Investment and
Asset Management This
performance has enhanced
profitability and created
leng-term value

At the end of the year the combined value
of Assets under Management across the
three actiwities stood at £1 5 billion an
increase of 38% from the equivalent
valuation at the end of 2012

Within Assets under Management, our
combined Primary and Secondary Investment
portfolios grew in value by £134 million

a 24% year on year increase

Our IFRS profit before tax increased to
£105 rmillion (excluding a profit of £21 million
on the szle of Jehn Laing Integrated
Services (JLIS))

Investment commiiments in the year totalled
£112 million down on last year s record levet
but still on a strong upward trend Projects
to which we are committing capital include
New Generation Roilingstock (NGR) a rail
rolling stock project in Queenstand Australia
Alder Hey a new hospital development in
the UK and a nurnber of further investments
inwind farm projects in the UK and Sweden

We successfully extended our business
medel several years ago from our original
PPP market in the UK to other geographies
and adjacent infrastructure sectors, and
established oursetves as 2 leading
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We have established a
strong platform for growth

and the Company 1s in an excellent position to
continue to invest profitably in the years to come

international infrastructure investor and
asset manager In each of our principal
markets of Europe Narth America and Asia
Pacific we are encouraged by the continuing
strong demand for new privately-financed
infrastructure and the investment oppertunities
that result from this We deploy our resources
carefully to ensure we target those markets
and those seclors which are most attractive
lo us and where transaction flow 1s most
secure, while at all times exercising close
contrcl over aur costs

Having built up a significant pesition in the
waste and renewable energy seclors we have
launched a new fund John Laing Environmental
Assets Group (JLEN) shares inwhich are

due to begin trading on 31 March 2014 With
proceeds from its flotation JLEN will acquire
a seed portfolio of repewable energy and waste
assets from John Laing and one wastewater
treatment asset from a fund managed by
Henderson Equity Partners The launch of a
second bisted fund bearing the John Laing
name marks a major step forward for the
Group and follows the statement | made last
year about our desire to expand our third party
assel management activilies

Early in 2013 we entered into a four-year
bank facility of £285 million and increased this
to £305 rullion (in Gctober 2013 This facility
provides us with a stable financing platform
We are financing future investments through
a combination of cash flow from existing assets
and our corporate borrowing facility

We also disposed of five investments during
the year inciuding three investments to John
Lamng Infrastructure Fund (JLIF), our first
listed fund which was established in 2010

Our Assets under Management increased {o

£1 544 6 million at 31 Decemter 2013 from
£1,120 ¢ mithion at 31 December 2012 resulting
in increased income for our Asset Management
divisicn We expect further growth in Assets
under Management in 2074 especiallyas a
result of the launch of JLEN

Following endorsement in Novermnber 2013 by
the EU of Investment Entities (Amendments
to IFRS 10 IFRS 12 and IAS 27), the Group
concluded thatit quabifies as an investment
entity under those Amendments Accordingly
the Group has adopted investment entity
accounting in its 2043 accounts, with pricr
year comparative numbers restated As an

investment ently the Group records allits
investrents in project companies at fair value
whereas previously it consolidated those
project companies which were subsidiaries
The Board believes that readers wiil find the
new presentation of the Group accounts hetpful
to their understanding of the business

Much to cur regret Adrian Ewer has decided
to retire Adrian has given outstanding service
to the Company - 23 years in total eight of
which as Chief Executive - and hus leadership
has been exernplary He leaves the business
well equipped for future growth and on behalf
of the Board, | thank Adrnian and wish him a
well-deserved retirernent

In January 2014, we announced the
appeintment of Clivier Brousse as Cheef
Executive We are delighted to have attracted
semeoneg of his calibre te succeed Adnan
The Board believes Qlivier brings with him
the necessary drive and experience to ensure
we are well placed for the future

The Board met again during the year outside
the regular meeting calendar to review strategy
The focus was on the structure of the Group
and the steps required to position it for the
future As aresult of these discussions the
Board took the decision to sell JLIS the Groups
facilities management business The sale of
JLIS completed in October 2013 and we wish
all its staff well under their new ownership

The Board has worked effectively during the
year and | am confident we have the right
blend of skills and experience at both executive
and non-axecutive level to capture the
opportunities available to the business and to
continue to take the Group forward Equally
this year s performance would not be possible
without the dedication and commitment of our
staff and cnce again, | would like to thank
them for their very strong contribution

This year we have again demonstrated the
strength and flexibility of our business model
and we have established a strong platform for
growth in a sector where demand 1s growing
worldwide The simplification ef our structure
allows us ta focus on our core strengths and
puts the Company in an excellent position to
continue to invest profitably in the years to come

Phil Nolan
CHAIRMAN

Overview

Governance Slrategic Report

Financial Statements
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE S REVIEW

| am very pleased to report
that 2013 was yet another
year of strong performance
We have become a
successful developer of
onshore renewable energy
projects and have built a
high quality pipetine of PPP
investment opportunities
in rail, roads and social
infrastructure

THREE CORE ACTIVITIES

We delivered impressive results in each of
our three core activiies - Pnimary Investment
Secondary Investment and Asset Management
- and consolidated our position as a leading
:nternational iInfrastructure investor and asset
manager A key teature of the John Laing
strategy Is to maintain a flexibte business
madel so that we are constantly re-aligning
our human and financial resources with the
sectors and geographies that offer us the
greatest potential {o invest profitably whilst
always focusing on our core expertise The 2%%
growth in profit before tax to C104 & million
{excluding the gain on the sale of JLIS)and
24% underlying growth in portfolio value
compared to 17% in the previous year are
testimony to the resilience of our strategies

OBJECTIVES Our objectives for the business
are io grow its profitability and value

«  Primary Investment by winning new
opportunities to invest in pre-construclion
infrastructure projects and through the
successful completion of in-construction
projects

s Secondsry Investment by generating a
strong yield from operational projects as
well as enhanaing their value and

* Assel Management by grawing our Assets
under Management (AUM) and associated
fee income through the efficient delivery
of Investrnent management services

STRATEGIES lohn Laing s strategies to achieve
these objectives are centred on

s Growthin the volume of funds commiited
tonfrastructure

e Growth in both the value of project
investments during the construction and
operating phases and in cash yield from
operating projects

e Growth in the total value of AUM

+ Cost efficiencies in midding and asset
managernent

« Growth i fee income from managing third
party assels

Risk management 15 high on our agenda in
orger to mitigate against the potential delvery
risks revenue risks and operatienal risks
asscciated with major infrastructure projects
Our projects are held withsn Special Purpose
Vehicles (SPVs) and structured such that
providers of third party debt finance have no
contractual recourse to equily investors

Strategies for growing investment volumes

Our Primary Investment teamn 1s responsible
for growing the volume of Investment commetted
to infrastructure projects We target those
countries or geographic regions in which four
key criteria are capable of being met

+ Central or local government demenstrates
commitment to developing a pipeline of
PPP projects and we can see a clear
pobtical will to drive the programme

« There s a stable political and legal
framework and we are confident that
long-term centracts with government
counterparties will be fairly interpreted
and honoured
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The John Laing business model

1s designed to deliver cost efficiency, value creation

and optimised investment yields over the life of PPP

or renewable energy projects

» Financial returns on infrastructure projects
are likely lo meet our hurdle rates on a
risk adjusted basis The Board reviews the
hurdle rates of return far each geographic
regian on an annual basis

*  Woe can devetop strong relationships with
supply chain pariners {(contractors service
providers and prowders of project finance)
who demonsirate strong credentials for
debivery in the tocal market

Our activities are currently focused on the UK
Continental Europe North America and Asia
Pacitic Within these broad geographic regions
the overseas countries that feature maost
prominently in ocur bid pipeline are the US the
Netherlands Belgium Sweden Australia and
New Zealand The US and Asia Pacific markets
in particular cffer strong opportunities for
future investment

The sectors that we target for PPP investment
fall into three main categories social
infrastructure, environmental infrastructure
and transport infrastructure We do pot aim

to sirike any particular balance between the
levels of investment within each of these
categories but we do aim to maintain a halance
in terms of delivery risk and revenue risk In
particular we limit our exposure to projects
that have revenue risk associated with
patronage or real tolls and we monitor closely
our exposure to any single construction partner
At 31 Decemnber 2013, 19% by value of our
portfolic of PPP projects had revenue exposure
to patronage/real tolt risk

John Laing 1s independent of supply chain
partners and this enables us to shift our
gecgraphic and sector focus as markets
change Ourindependence sets us apart from
competitors who have constructien or service
businesses at their core and our project and
asset management hentage sels us apart
irom purely financial investors

In the renewable energy sector, which 1s stll
relatively immature in certain markets, our
strategy has been to build a portfolio of
onshere wind and solar projects We have not
set geographic boundaries but to date our
investments have been in the UK and Sweden
In addition ta growing a portfolio of salar and
onshore wind assets we are actively pursuing
biomass projects

In the Immedtate future the strategy for
Primary Investrment growth will remain
focused on PPP and renewable energy within
our existing gecgraphic markets The profile
of investment in PPP projects can be irregutar
due to the very long lead times between
pre-qualification as a bidder and financial
close In 2012 we committed £ 1446 million

to infrastructure investments ncluding

£84 millon on Phase 1 of the Intercity Express
Programme (IEP) tn 2013 we committed
£112 milbion and in 2014 we expect to see
another step change as Phase 2 of [EP shoutd
reach financial close

Strategies for growing project values

Our strategies are designed to deliver base
case investment returns as a mimmum, and
to enhance those returns through active assel
management We categanse these strategies
under two headings value prolection and value
enhancement

Value protection

» To ensure construction risks associated
with design workmanship cost overruns
and delays Lie with our construction supply
chain partners

» To ensure gperational performance and
cost risks, often referred to as hard and
soft Faciliies Management (FM) for sccial
infrastructure projecis bie principally with
our service supply chain partners

+ Toebrminate the risk of increased interest
costs over the Ufe of an infrastructure
project by swapping variabie interest
rates to fixed (nterest rates on third party
debt finance

» To struciure projects so that there 1s a
positive carrelation between mvestment
returns and inflation rates

= To target PPP preojects which have
government-backed revenue streams
based on availability of the underiying
nfrastructure asset rather than revenues
based on patronage or real tolls

* To reduce the impact of short-term
volatility en revenues in our renewable
energy projects by entering inte
short/medium term power purchase
agreements with electrscrty suppliers

Value enhancement

= To optimise majar rnaintenance and asset
renewal costs over the life of an
infrastructure project and thereby increase
investor returns

* To optimise SPV management costs and
preject insurance prermiums through bulk
purchasing or efliciency gains thereby
Increasing investor returns

¢ Torespond to clients needs {or changes
over the bife of PPPnfrastructure projects
and where possible generate incremental
revenues therefram

* Inrenewable energy projects, to capture
the benefit of long-term upward pressure
on energy prices

s To ensure projects are efficiently financed
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE S REVIEW / continued

Strategies for growth in AUM

fn 2010 Jobn Laing launched JLIF on the
l.ondon Stock Exchange As a listed fund, JLIF
has been able to raise new capital each year
for the purpose of acquiring iInvestments in
operational PPP assets from John Laing and
other parties Through our investment advisory
role we have helped JLIF to grow from its
originat launch value of £270 million to a
market capitabisaticn of £883 mitlion at

31 December 2013

John Laing has a strategy to grow the value
of its AUM This will be achieved in part
through growth in the value of JLIF and in
part by the taunch of new secondary funds
Consistent with this, we have launched JLEN
a new environmental fund which will hold
renewable energy wastewater treatment and
waste management assets

Strategies for achieving cost efficiencies
Our costs fall under two main headings

* Bid costs and
¢ Asset management costs

The quantum of bid costs that we incur 15 a
function of the volume of bids that we werk on
The Board manages bid costs at risk by setting
an annual budget based on a percentage of the
potential iInvestment value

Asset management costs cover all actvties
other than bidding Costs largely reflect
staffing levels office accommodation and IT
Our strategy 1s to mimimise directly related
costs as a percentage of AUM and to grow fee
income from managing third party assets

BUSINESS MODEL The John Laing business model 1s designed to deliver cost efficiency value creation and optimised investment
yields over the life of a PPP or renewable energy project The life of a PPP project typically breaks down into the phases depicted below

VALUE CREATION

Time
Typically 25 30 years :
5 g Value of equity
k-] b ©
o ] 2
a =] =
k ® =
S 5 -
-
= & & @
Distributions
Bidding Construction Yield Maturity
Bidding & - Operational Phase -

Construclron Phase




During the bidding phase we are focused en
the identification of winmng strategies for

the bid This includes joining er assembling
consortia for PPP projects with strong sector-
specific credentials John Laing typically
provides experienced staff te lead or participate
in the bid process, and we speculate bid costs
appropriate to the investrment potential

prior to the selection of a preferred bidder

by the client

The renewable energy projects we larget
typically already have planning permission and
grid connection offers - we then take projects
through contracl tendering, construction and
full commissioning We maintam a wide range
of contacts through which we access new
renewable energy opportunities and we may
also bid for assets being sold We seek to
minirmise our bidding costs until we reach

an exclusive position with vendors

At the pornt of commutting to new Investments
whether they be PPP or renewable energy
projects our decision 15 based upon the target
rates of return included within the investment
appraisal (base case returns) Base case
returns are measured as |RRs over the whole
project Life and as annualised returns over

the expected period to steady-state operations
at which point the ivestment can be valued
as an operational de-risked asset Value

15 created by recogrusing the difference

(1e the yield shiit } between the primary or
pre-construchon rates of return on which

we base our investment decisions and the
secondary yields typically delivered by
operational infrastructure assets Value is
also created by improving the future cash
distributions to investors as a result of the
value enhancement strategies descrnibed ahove

After constructien coampletion the value that
has been generated through the yield shift
between primary and secondary investment
returns can either be held within our pertfolio
valuation and realised on an ongeing basis or
it can be crystallised by selling cur investment
Into the secondary market providing the Group
with additional capital for primary investment
John Laing has created a robust platform for
realising investments in operating PPP projects
with the establishment of JLIF as a leading
secondary market investor Not only does this
provide the oppartunity to re-cycie capital into
new primary PPP investment opportunities, it
also generates asset management fee iIncome
The establishment of JLEN as a secondary
market participant should provide Joahn Laing
with a further such platform for environmental
assets including renewable energy projects

MARKET REVIEW

Overseas Markets — PPP The overseas markets
where the business I1s currently active are
North America Europe and Asia Pacfic

In North America we have been bidding in the
Canadian market for a number of years but
this market has become very competitive

As aresult and despite some early successes
when we entered the Canadian market ourwin
rata has not been at the levels that we
expected During 2013, we reviewed our
strategy for this market and concluded that

we shoutd be even more selective about the
projects we target

We are now seeing an increased level of actwity
in the US PPP market and this s where our
North American team 1s focusing its attention
Projects in the US market tend to arise from
the need for upgraded transport links - roads
bridges and rail - and revenues are generally
linked to availability as oppesed to real tolls

In Eurcpe our activilies are concentrated on
Benelux the Nordic region and Germany
There are a small number of infrastructure
projects under procurement within these
markets and as with the US, the majority are
transport-related

In the Asia Pacific region we are concentrating
upon Austratia and New 7ealand {nthese
Junsdictions, projects cover both social
infrastructure and transport We have had
recent success In the rail sector in Australiz
and this specific sector presents a number of
further PPP opportunities We have a strong
pipeline of projects to bid in Ausiralia and we
see this as the main driver of growth in our
portfolio of PPP investments over the next
few years

Renewable Energy - UK and Overseas We have
now established a significant presence tn the
renewable energy sector While there s
ongoing political debate about whether
government support for renewable energy
should be at the expense of energy consumers
or tax payers, that should not have any lasting
impact on the need to continue developing new
projects The UK has a tegally binding target
set at 15% of total energy consumptien being
sourced from renewable energy sources by
2020, just 4% was achieved in 2012

Returns from UK renewatble energy are
competitive but are shll attractive to investors
John Laing has established a sound platform
in the UK and a presence in Sweden in this
sector To achieve continued profiiable
growth the Company will also target other
overseas markets

John Laing Annuat Report and Accounts 2013 / 09
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE S REVIEW / continued

—> Al Gdansk Poland

UK - PPP Budgetary constraint continues

to influence UK government procurerment
Given this and the time it has taken to develop
the PF2 model (which replaced PFl in the UK
inlate 2012) 1t 1s not surprising that the value
of PF{/PF2 projects entering procurement over
the last two years has been relatively low

John Laing has been at the forefront of
developing new funding models to deploy
where public sector clients have requirements
for new orimproved infrastructure but where
the use of PFI/PF2 1s not appropriate We are
currently focusing on schemes in the health
seclor onwhich we are making good
progress In Scotland there are a small
number of infrastructure prejects in
procurernent under the Not for Profit
Distribution model White returns on

these projects are relatively low, the risks

to investors are commensurately reduced
when compared to PFI/PF2

John Laing has an existing preferred bidder
position in the rail sector (IEP Phase 2)

which was anginally established in 2009

This presents a significant investment
opportunity in 2014 subject to project financing
negotiations which are progressing satisfactorily

RESULTS The profit before tax on continuing
operations for the year ended 31 December 2013
was £104 6 million before the gain on the sale
of JLIS of £21 2 mullion (2012 - £80 9 mullion)
The increase was driven by growth in our
portfolio valuation

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO As at 31 December
2013 our portiolio of infrastructure investments
comprised 45 projects excluding the
shareholding in JLIF (2012 - 45 projects)
Based on the Directors valuation methodotogy
which 15 explained on page 22 the year-end
portfolio value including the sharehalding in
JLIF was £684 4 mitlion (2012 - £574 7 miltion)
Ouring 2013 we invested cash of £115 5 million
(2012 - £115 & million} in Line with investment
commitments entered inte

The portfolic valuation represents the
Directors assessment of the fair value of
Investments in projects based on discountad
cash flow methodology other than shares in
JLIF which are held at market value The 2013
valuation reflected underlying growth of 24 3%
after adjusting for acquisitions, realisations
new investment and cash yield

The weighted average discount rate used in
the pertfolio valuation for 2013 was 9 3%
(2012 - 8 6%), reflecting the increase in our
Primary investment portfolio and amendments
to our valuation methedology The weighted
average 1s made up cf 10 0% for Primary
Investment and 8 6% for Secondary Investment

The cash yield from the Secondary Investment
portiolio in 2013 was £29 3 mitlion (2012 -

£26 7T million), a yield of 7 6% (2012 - 7 5%) This
represents cash raceipts in the form of dividends
interest and shareholder loan repayments




JOHN LAING INTEGRATED SERVICES (JLIS}

In October 2013 we sold our wholly-owned
subsidiary JLIS to Carillion ple JLIS provides
facilities management services te PPP project
companies as well as directly to public sector
clients The dispesal underlines our continued
focus on cur core business of bidding for,
inveshing in and providing asset management
services to infrastructure projects

STAFF Our staff numbers reduced significantly
during 2013 following the sale of JLIS which
was by far the largest employing entsty within
the business Excluding JLIS we reduced our
staff numbers from 270 at the beginning of the
year to 215 on 31 December 2013 This
reduction occurred mainly within cur UK
activities as we re-aligned our human
resources and cost base recognising the
reduced UK market for PFI/PF2 projects

PROSPECTS It s key to the John Laing strategy
thal we maintain a flexible approach towards
individual markets and sectors This has
enabled us in the past to respond quickly to
changing market cond:tions and to align our
resources and expertise with the best
opportunities to grow our investment portfolio
We operate in sectors that depend upon
government support and as recent expenence
has taught us the tevel of support in any one
market can change retatively qurckly - we need
to continue to adapt our response accordingly

Over the last two years we have built a solid
platferm in UK renewable energy and in
Australian PPP projects We believe that the
US will become a very significant market for
PPP projects and that renewable energy wil
continue to remain & key focus in many
markets Based on these alone we see a
significart opportunity to grow invesiment
volumes and in the UK 1EP Phase 2 should
give us a strong start to 2014

We expect there will continue to be sufficient
yield shift between primary investment returns
and the discount rates applied lo secondary
asset valuations We also expect to see further
increases in the value of third party AUM and
thus will generate Increased fee income from
our asset management activities

Finally, | feel privileged tc have been Chief
Executive of John Laing for the last eight years
and to have worked with such a commtted
inspirational and innovative group of people
throughout my career at John Laing | believe
we have achieved great success In positioning
the business as a market leader in privately
hnanced infrastructure and | would Like to
thank my colteagues for all their support

The business 1s 1n robust heatth and | would
like ta wish my successor, Clivier Brousse
every success

Adrian Ewer
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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PRIMARY INVESTMENT

For more than 30 years,

we have been associated
with bidding for and winning
a wide range of innovative
projects in the infrastructure
sector. We continue to build
on that heritage, using

our wide skill base and
experience, combined

with independence from
the supply chan, financial
analysis, technical,
operational and sector shkills
to help meet clients’ needs.

Derek Potts
EXECUTIVE DIRECTGR
PRIMARY INVESTMENT

- ™
- {NTERCITY EXPRESS PROGRAMME (IEP), UK The IEP comprises the
infrastructure rolling stock and franchise changes needed to replace
services operated by the UK s ageng fleet of high speed trains on two
of Britain s busiestinterciy rail routes the Great Western Mainline
{GWML) and the East Coast Mainline (ECML) Agility Trains a
consortium of John Laing and Hitach: achieved financial close for the
GWML or Phase 1 project in July 2012 Financiat close for the ECML
or Phase 2 project will follow in 2014 With a total value in excess of
£4 5 billion it 15 one of the largest PPP projects to be awarded

HIGHLIGHTS

Renewable Energy - closed six investments in 2013, in the second full year of the Group s
activity in this strongly developing sector Our focus tontinues to be on onshore wind and
solar photo-veltaic generation projects

Secured agreement from the UK government to the IEP Phase 2 rail project, which 1s planned
to reach financial close 1n spring 2014 with tetal financing 1n excess of £2 0 lillion

Awarded preferred bidder status and reached commercial close on the NGR project in Australia,
the Group s first rail investment in that country Financial close was achieved on 15 January 2014
Awarded preferred bidder status and reached financial close on the Alder Hey hospital
project in the UK, adding to the Group s tong history of investments in this sector

Awarded preferred bidder and reached commercial close on a new strategic health partnership
with the Cambridge NHS Trust in the UK, frem which an imitial mixed hospital/hotel/conference
centre project (the Addenbrookes Forum ') i1s due to reach financial close in 2014

Developed an enhanced pipeline of shorthisted positions in the Australian PPP market,
providing a strong platform for 2014 and 2015 investment opportunities and also established
a strong position for the tncreasing opportunities we see in the US market
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During 2013, the Prnimary Investment team successfully secured
ten investments, consisting of total commirtments of £112 4 million

This included eilght investments in renewable energy projects in the

UK and Sweden

BUSINESS REVIEW

John Laing s Primary Investment activties
involve sourcing idding for and winning
greenfield infrastructure projects During 2013
the Primary Investment team successfully
secured ten investments, consisting of total
commitments of £112 4 milbon This included
elght investments in renewable energy projects
in the UK and Sweden

The Primary nvestment partfolio comprises
the Group s sharehaldings in 14 PPP projects
as well as in six renewable energy projecis
which have recently reached financial close
and/or are 1n the constructton phase The
Directors valuation of the Group s Primary
Investment portfolio was £309 7 million at
31 December 2613 (2012 - £219 1 million)

Assel management services in respect of the
Primary tnvestrent portfolio are provided

by John Laing s Asset Management team
When underiying projects reach the end of
constructien the investments transfer into
our Secondary investment partfobio

The Primary Investment team 1s responsible
for all the Group s bid development activities
This includes traditianal PPP projects as well
as renewable energy investments and new
strategic partnership structures in the UK
health sector The team takes responsibility
for marketl research, project selection bid
co-ordination and finalisation of negotiations
with public sector clients or vendors and the
supply chasn through te financial close
Activities are focused in Europe Nerth America
and Asta Pacific John Laing works with strong
delvery partners in each market For instance
in the UK the Group Is currently working

with leading contractoers and service providers
including Costan Hitachy, Interserve

Laing O Reurke Pinnacle Shanks Skanska,
Sir Robert McAlpine, Vindor and Wates This
approach Is replicated overseas in each region

C—) Branden Solar Parks UK )

Activities cover & wide variety of sectors
including all the marn social infrastructure
areas such as healtheare, education police
and criminal justice government and local
autharity accommodation sccial housing and
defence as well as transport (roads, street
lighting highways maintenance and rai) and
environmental projects (waste management
and renewable energy)

I the PPP sector we maintained our
international reach during the year and
deepened our engagement in the most active
markets This was particularly the case in
Australia where we substantally enhanced
our shortlisted positions during the year
providing a streng platform for investrent
opportunittes in 2014 and 2615 In North
America and Continental Europe John Laings
bidding activities continued, although public
expenditure constraints in certain markets
moderated the flow of opportunities in the UK
sectors like rail continued to provide good
cpportunities such as IEP Phase 2 although
social infrastructure programmes were at
low levels We are participants in consaortia
bidding for PPP projects in transportation
and social infrastructure in Scotland

in 2013, the Group continued to iImplement

its strategy In the renewable energy sector
We financislly closed six investments during
the year as well as securing rights to twe
anshore wind farm projects in the UK and
Sweden both of which should reach financial
close in the first half of 2014 Renewable
energy Is a very important focus for the Group
and offers a valuable diversification away
from government-funded capital procurement
Al the end of 2013 projects under our
ownership had a combined peak power
capacity of 68 $ MW comprising onshore wind
farms of 44 4 MW and solar farms of 24 5§ MW
The launch of JLEN sheuld offer an additional
exit route to the Group for renewabte energy
investments as they mature

Strategic Report
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PRIMARY INVESTMENT / continued

- Denver FasTracks US

FINANCIAL MARKETS While fewer banks are
participating In leng term project finance
liqudity and pricing improved during 2013 and
we were able to secure financing for projects
where required New Institutional sources

of long-term project finance continued to be
avarlable in Europe although the reduced level
of deal-flow 15 constraining therr development
In the UK the government s stated intention is
to increase the use of long-term pension fund
capital fer PPP but few projects have been
procured on this basis so far 'n Austrabia and
New Zealand medwm-term bank debt and
refinancing requirements are well established
In Canada and the US, projects tend to be
financed in the debt capital markets rather
than with bank financing John Laing s
international breadth and diversification altow
the Group to sustaim large and growing levels
of investrment

PROJECTS IN CONSTRUCTION A number of key
primary investments are currently at various
stages of construction including |EP {Phase 1)
Manchester Waste VL Co Manchester Waste
TPS Co New Royal Adelaide Hospital, Denver
FasTracks, Wir1 Prison and A15 Netherlands
Commentary on the status of these and other
projects 1s set out In the Asset Management
section on page 20

PIPELINE

Overseas PPP markets The Group s mamn
growth potential in beth the medium and
leng term centinues te be ininternational
markels In some aconomies, levels of public
seclor investrnent are moderated due ie
austerity canstraints but for John Laing

this 1s mitigated by the international spread
of markets in which we operate

Asia Pacific offers very substantial spportunities
and the Group s current tidding activities are
concentrated on Australia and New Zeatand
which offer a strong pipeline and where the
Group has a strong base

In North America our focus has shifted more
to the US where the Group i1s engaged in what
15 increasingly becoming a very substantial
PPP market

In Continental Europe, activity continues at a
consistent level in selected countries such as
the Netherlands and Belgium

In addition to the above the Group rmonitors
potential new markets whiist maintaining tight
contral over costs Potential markets which
offer upside patential in the medium to long
term include South America for instance Chile
and other markets in Europe in the caming
year these will canlinue to be monitored




United Kingdom PPP markets The UK market
for PPP in 2014 continues to include activity in
the rail sector (specifically rail roling stock)
and a ptpeline for transportation and socia
infrastructure projects in Scotland However
PPP procurement in the rest of the UK
particularly new social infrastructure remains
al modest levels

Renewable Energy The renewable energy
pipeline includes a number of wind and solar
projects in the UK and other European
countries as well as potential investment
opportunities in biomass projects

Further information on the Primary Investment
pertfalio 15 set out in the Portfolio Valuation
section on pages 21 1o 24

Derek Potts
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
PRIMARY INVESTMENT
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-

- GRONINGEN TAX OFFICE, NETHERLANDS
The project comprises the design, build and
financing of new accommodation for the
Informatie Beheer Groep and the Regicnal
Tax Office including the mantenance and
aperation of the building for a concession
period of 20 years The butlding accommodates
approximnately 2 500 emplayees

Strategic Report
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SECONDARY INVESTMENT

Our Secondary Investment

activities involve ownership
of a substantial portfolio

of Investments in both

PPP and renewable energy
operational projects.

- AS5Road UK

' M
- CROYDON - BERNARD WEATHERILL HOUSE, UK
CCURV a 50/50 joint venture parinership beiween
John Laing and Croydon Council achieved practical
completion on the 240 000sqfi BREEAM excellent
office building designed 1o house Croydon Council and
a range of local service providers in May 2013 in line
with the contractual completion date Construction
work had commenced in March 2010

The majonty of our Secondary Investrments ware originaled as Primary Investments of John Laing
but some investments were acquired when the underiying assets were already at the operational
stage Asset management services in respect of the portfolic are delivered by John Laing s Asset
Management team

The Secondary investment portfolic comprises the Group s shareholdings in 25 projects (20 PPP
projects and five renewable energy projects) at the operational stage, valued at £344 0 million at

31 December 2013 (2012 - £318 4 mutlion), together wath our investment in JLIF valued at £3% 7 million
at the same date (2012 - €37 2 milian} Cash yield from investments, including that receved from
projects prior to disposal was £29 3 million (2012 - £26 7 millen) reinforcing the robust nature

of the projects and the benafit of continued pro-active asset management

Cash ftow projectiens from our Secondary Investment portfolio are constantly reviewed for value
enhancement opportunities Such opportunities identified during 2013 contrsbuted £40 2 million
to the growth of the portfolic during the year




INVESTMENT REALISATIONS During the year
investments in three projects - Barnsley BSF,
Kelowna and Yernon Hospitals and Nerth
Staffordshire Hospital - were sotd to JLIF for
total proceeds of £88 5 million Our investments
in Brisbane AirLink and Corsham MOD were
sold separately to other parties

As pari of its launch in February 2014 1t is
intended that JLEN will buy the Group s
investments in two waste projects (East Lendon
Waste and Bumiries and Galloway Waste} and
five renewable energy projects (Amber Soltar
Parks Branden Sotar Parks Bilsthorpe Wind
Farm Hall Farm Wind Farm and WALLP
Wind Farms)

TRANSFERS FROM PRIMARY INVESTMENT
During the year, three UK investments became
part of the Secandary Investment portfolia as
the underlying projects moved into the
operatienal stage

* Croydon BWH - the construction of
Croydon Council s new office Bernard
Weatherill House, was completed in
May 2013 as part of John Laing s 25 year
partnership with Croydon Council

¢ Bilsthorpe Wind Farm MNottingham -
10 2 MW wind farm commissioned in
July 2013

» Branden Solar Parks Corpwall - 16 7 MW
solar park across three sites commissioned
in June 2013
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Branden Solar Parks UK
Other developments within the Secondary (_) rnden SeRr T )
Investment partfolio

+ Kelowna and Vernan Hospitals in British
Columbia were presented with the Gold
Service Delivery Award by the Canadian
Council for Public Partnerships

» City Greenwich Lewssham (DLR) - this light
rail project continued io perform well
passenger numbers far 2013 were ahead
of budget

+ Al Gdansk Poland - both phases of this
road project are performing well

+ Qur operational renewable energy plant
(Bilstharpe Wind Farm Hall Farm Wind
Farm WALLP Wind Farms Amber Solar
Parks and Branden Sclar Parks) together
generated 45 § GWh of electricity during
the year

Further information en the Secondary
investment portfolio is set out in the Partiolia
Valuation section on pages 21 o 24

Slrategic Report
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ASSET MANAGEMENT

(—) Second Severn River Crossing UK

Our vision as asset
managers Is to be
recognised as the partner
that adds most value
wherever we operate

Chris Waples
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ASSET MANAGEMENT

Qur principal asset management activities
generate fee income through the provision of
Investment management services in respect
of our Primary and Secondary Investrment
portiolios the portfolio held by JLIF and
certain PPP assets held by JLPF

Total AUM were £1 544 & millien at 31 December
2013 compared to £1 120 9 rullion at
31 December 2012 an increase of 37 8%

Our approach to asset management Is tc
ensure assets are delivered and maintained

in accordance with contractual terms whiis?
balancing the needs of public authonty clients
private investors contractors and debt
prowders Inthe UK we have supported HM
Treasury s snitiatwe for the public and private
seclors to work together in a more eflective
way te deliver cost savings from operational
FPP projects

Our asset management services operate
across projects in Australia Canada Gerrnany
the Nethertands Sweden Poland the UK and
the United States Staff are based at offices in
Sydney Melbourne Toronto Vancouver and
Amsterdam as well as in Londen Manchester
and Glasgow

During the year we rearganised our acbwities to
provide greater focus on and segregation
between investment management services

and activities related to project management
services

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Investment management services include

+ Shareholder representation through
the provision of directors 1o the boards
of project companies

¢ A central speciabist function which
identtftes and implements value
enhancements and carries oul
porifolio valuations

+ Pro-active oversight of contractors
during the construction phase of a
project and mobilisation services
at the start of operations

« Planning and managernent of tfecycle
maintenance and capital expenditure
within projects

* Refinancings and management of
disputes arbitration and hitigation and

* Realisation of investments in the
Secendary Investment portfolio

Further investment management services are
pravided to JLIF through John Laing Capital
Management Limited (JLCM), which 1s a wholly
owned subsidiary of John Laing pic authorised
and regulated in the UK by the Financial
Cenduct Authonty (FCA) It acts as investment
adwviser to JLIF under an appoiniment which
started in October 2010

To the extent that the Group may decide to
dispose of investments in PPP projects JLIF
has rights of first offer in respect of certain
investments held by John Laing In February
2014 these rights were amended 1o cover
certain existing and potent:al investments held
by John Laing in the rail sector in substitution
for investrments in the waste sector



JLCM has a dedicated team and 15 also
supported by specialist functions within
the wider John Laing Group In 2013 JLCM
made a strong financial contribution to the
Group underpinned by fees earned from
JLIF 5 acquisitions from the Graup and
other parties

On the basis thal shares 10 JLEN start trading
on 31 March 2014 as expected JLCM will atso
act asits investment adviser In addition
JLEN will have a right of first offer over
enwironmental assets in John Laing s porifolio

The launch of JLEN will create a further third
party asset management income stream for
John Laing and is indicative of the wider
opportunities which exist to manage capitat
on behalf of third parties

PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES The Asset
Management tearn also provides services of
an administrative nature directly to project
companies In which John Laing JLIF and JLPF
are stakeholders These services are provided
under Management Services Agreements
{MSAs) Asat 31 December 2013 there were

a total of 33 M5As with John Laing projects
and a further 32 MSAs with JLIF projects

Each MSA typically covers admimistration
accounting and financial services company
secretarial services and risk and compliance
management Staff who delver these services
are located at the projects themselves and at
our network of offices 1n both cases supported
by central staff in London

Revenues frem project management services
in 2013 were £15 5 million, delivered by some
120 statf

John Laing has continued to provide services
under MSAs to projects following their
divesiment te JLIF giving continuity to both
the project company and to key stakeholders
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OPERATIONAL UPDATE An operational
update on certain projects within the Prnimary
and Secondary Investment portfolios 15 set
out below

Manchester Waste - The 25 year Greater
Manchester Waste PPP contract 1s the UKs
largest combined waste and renewable energy
project The Group has investments in the two
projects comprising this contract Manchester
Waste VL Co {50% interest) and Manchester
Waste TPS Co (34 43% interest) Of the 42 sites
making up Manchester Waste VL Co one
Mechanical Biclogical Treatment (MET)

plant has not yet been taken over from the
contractor While the plant is substantially
complete 1solated process elements are nat
yet perforrming satrsfactonily, but should be
resolved by mid 2014 The delay in takeover

of this MBT plant 1s not expected to affect the
financing of the project nor have a matenal
impact on its performance

Fuel produced from the Manchester Waste
MBT plants will be used o generate heat

and power at the thermal power station
{Manchester Waste TPS Co) being built at
Runcornin Cheshire Construction of the
thermal power station has incurred delays
althaugh commissianing has now commenced
and 1s anbicipated to be completed by mid 2014
In Ociober 2013 the contractor for this power

statien reached its contractual longstop date -
impacting both the TPS Co and VL Co credit
agreements John Lamng has been working with
its joint venture partners Vindor and Ineos
Chlor as well as the project lenders as a resutt
of which agreement has been reached for the
contractor Lo complete the project and extend
its hquidated damages package to cover the
costs of delay

—= MANCHESTER WASTE TPS CO, UK
In Aprit 2009 the Greater Manchester

Laing {Greater Manchester) Limited a
partnership between Viridor and John
Laing The deal triggered a £640 mullion
construction programme creating a
network of state-of-the-art recycling
facilities over a 5 year period

Waste Disposal Autherity signed a 25 year
waste and recycling contract with Yindor

Strategic Report
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ASSET MANAGEMENT / continued

(—) Croydon & Lewisham Streel Lighting UK)

During 2014 John Laing will be monitoring
closely the commissioning proegramme for both
the remaining MBT piant and the TPS Co
thermal power station There are cross
guarantees between the two Manchester
Waste projects Lenders to hath projects have
been kept fully informed of developments and
remain supportive The combined valuation

of the investments was £93 7 milbon at

31 Decernber 2013 (2012 - £74 0 million)
within the Group s total portfelio valuation of
£684 4 million The Directors are of the apimon
that the Group s aggregate investment i1n the
two Manchester Waste projects 1s fairly valued
as at 31 Oecernber 2013, reflecting the full
involvernent of equity holders as well as ongoing
support of lenders In the discount rate used
to determine the fair value of the Group s
invesiments a significant risk premium has
been retained to reflect the risks associated
with the projects

Street Lighting - the Surrey Street Lighting
project 1s currently five manths ahead of
pregramme and should now be completed
in Aprit 2014 The Croydon and Lewisham
Street Lighting project i1s proving to be more
challenging with delays in getting electrical
works certified A recovery plan has been
imglemented

Denver FasTracks - our rait project in Colorado,
USA remains on programrme for operation at
the end of 20146 Production of the trains is
well advanced with 50 of the 56 car bodies
completed and being tested before shipment
from Korea to Philadelphea for assembly This
15 a cornplex preject and involves the design
build marntenance and operation of two
commuter iines, one af which will join Denver
International Asrport to Denver Union Station

IEP (Phase 1} - this project comprising rolling
stock and associated rail infrastructure s
needed te replace some of the UK s ageing
fleet of high speed trains The new rolling
stock will provide faster higher capacity more
comfortable and more environmentally friendly
services and witl support growth on the UK s
busiest intercity rail route the Great Western
Mainttne Constructien wark has commenced
on the depots and design work 15 pregressing
on the train {leet

New Royal Adelaide Hospitat - construction is
progressing despite the identification of greund
centamination at greater levels than expected
Following the deployment of additionat
contractor resource the expectation is that
completion will be achieved in 2015

Wiri Prison - construction is currently three
months ahead of programme This 960 place
prison 15 scheduled to become operational
in 2015

A15 Netherlands - construction 1s now 70%
complete and well ahead of the original
contractual schedule

Burton Wold Wind Farm — this 14 £ MW wind
farm 1s expected to be commissioned In
October 2014

Carscreugh Wind Farm - this 15 3 MW wind
farm is expected to be commuissioned in
Apri 2014

Svartvallsberget Wind Farm - this 20 0 MW
wind farm 1s expected to be commissioned
in May 2014

Wear Point Wind Farm - this 8 2 MW wind farm
15 expected to be comrmissioned in April 2014




PORTFOLIO VALUATION

The Directors’ portfalio
valuation increased

to £684 4 million at

31 December 2013

from £574.7 million

at 31 December 2012
This represented growth
of 24 3% after adjusting
for cash invested, cash
yields and realisations

(—) CCURY Waddon Leisure and Housing Schame UK )
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-> BILSTHORPE WIND FARM, UK Bilsthorpe Wind
Farm which became operatienal in June 2013
15 John Laing s first project in the enshore wind
farm sector tohn Laing purchased the project
in October 2011 and construction of the access
tracks and foundations began in June 2012
with the erection of the turbines in April 2013
The project currently generates enough electricity
to maet the needs of over 6 000 homes

~

Of the 24 3% growth approximately 8 6% represented the increase that would be expected as a result
of the unwinding of discounting In addition growth in the vatue of the Group s shareholding in JLIF
was £4 7 million (13 4%) after adjusting for cash yelds

The Directors have obtained an independent opinion from a third party, which has considerable
expertise in valuing the type of investmenis held by the Group that the Direciors portfolio valuation
represented a fair market value in the market conditions prevailling at 3t Decemnber 2013

Strategic Report
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PORTFOLIO VALUATION / continued

Retained Disposed JLIF Total
£ million £ milien E million £ milion
Portfolio vaiuation at
1 January 2013 4231 957 371 556 0
- Restatement (see page 54) 87 - - 187
Restated portfolio valuation at
¥ January 2013 44618 957 372 574 7
- Cash invested 1155 - - 1155
- Cash yield (15 3) (118 22) (293)
- Proceeds of investment
realisation - (110 5) - (110 5)
Rebased value 5420 (26 &) 350 550 4
- Growth on rebased value 1027 26 8 47 1340
Portfolio valuauon at
31 December 2013 bih 7 - 37 684 4

The Group s portfelic of project investmenls 1s made up of primary and
secondary investments The Primary Investment portfolic includes
PPP and renewable energy assets which have yet to reach the end of
construction Secondary Investments comprise operationat PPP and
renewable energy assets most of which were originated as primary
investments for John Laing The split between primary and secondary
investments 1s shown i the table below

Restated

3% December 31 December

2013 2012

£ milljon £ millon

Primary investments 3007 2191
Secondary investments 3837 355 6
Portfolic valuation at 31 December 684 4 5747

METHODOLOGY Avaluation of the Group portiolio 1s prepared on a
consistent principally discounted cash flow basis every guarter at

31 March 30 June 30 September and 31 December The valuation s
carried out on 3 fair value basis assuming that ferecast cash flows are
received until maturity of the underlying assets

In 2013 the Group made certain amendments toits valuabion
methodology In previous valuations discount rates were derived from
long term government bond rates to which nsk premia were added to
reflect the individual risk profile of each project Under the amended
methodology a base case discount rate for an operational project 13
derved from secondary market information and other availabla data
points The base case discount rate i1s then adjusted to reflect additional
project-speciiic rsks inaddition risk prermia are added during the
construction phase 1o reflect the additional risk during construction

These premia reduce over time as the project progresses through its
construction pregramme reflecting the significant reduction in risk
once the project reaches the operating stage

The cash flows on which the discounted cash flow valuation was based

were those forecast (o be distnbutable to the Group at 31 December 2013
derived from detailed financiat models These incorporate assumptions
reflecting the Group s expectations of likely future cash flows including

vatue enhancemenis

For the Decernber 2013 valuation, the overall weighted average discount
rate was 3 3% (2012 - B 6%) This was made up of 10 0% for the Pnimary
Investment portfolio and & 6% for the Secondary Investment portfolio

The shareholding in JLIF was valued atits closing market price on
31 December 2013 of 115 2p per share JLIF s market capitalisation
grew to £882 B milbion at 31 Decernber 2013 {2612 - £553 & million}

CHANGES IN YALUATION The absolute increase in the portfolio valuation
was attnibutable to new investment commitments growth in the
portfolic and value enhancements achieved offset by the net effect

of realisations during the year

Cash investments in respect of commitments entered into during 2013
totalled £67 7 million In addition equity and loan note subscriptions
of €47 8 million were injecled into existing projects In the portfolio as
they progressed through, or completed construction, to give a total

of £115 & million cash invested

The Group completed the realisation of five investments during 2013
for proceeds of £110 5 rllion

Cash yield during 2013 totalled £29 3 mutlion

The growth on the rebased value was £134 0 million which comprised
thiscount rate unwinding of £53 2 millien as well as value enhancements
{net of amendments to the valuation methodology) of £80 8 million

IMPACT OF ECONOMIC INDICATQRS During the year higher than
previously forecast inflation had a positive impact on the majority of
farecast project cashflows withun the portfelio Deposit rates received on
cash balances during 2013 were {ow but this was anticipated in forecasts
made in prior valuations for the majonty of projects Deposit rates are
anticipated to remain at low levels in the short-run and this is reflected
in project forecasts

Overseas assets are investments denominated in foreign currencies
{including Australian Canadian New Zealand and US Dollars and
Euro} Foreign exchange movements relative to Sterling impacted the
portfolio valuation of retained projects and these are included within
the growth on rebased value in the table above




DISCOUNT RATE SENSITIVITY The weighted average discount rate used
at 31 December 2013 was 7 3% (2012 - B é%) The table below shows
the sensitivity of changes in this rate of up to plus or minus 3 0%

Perifolia Diference n

valuatien valuatuon

Discount Rate Sensitivity _ £ million £ miilion
3 0% 548 2 (134 2)
20% 5871 (37 3)
10% $320 {52 4)
00% bBL & -
-10% T45 7 613
-20% B17 9 1335
-3 8% 037 2193

VALUE BY TIME REMAINING ON CONCESSION
£ millign

The Group benefits from holding tong-term PPP concessions and
renewable energy assels with long-term useful econemic lives As
demonstrated in the table above 14% of the partfolio by value had a
greater than 30-year unexpired concession term or useful ecanomic
lfe remaining at 31 December 2013, 61% had 20 to 30 years rematning
and a further 13% had 10 1o 20 years remaining The investment in JLIF
which represented 6% of the portiotio value Is shown separately since
the underlying projects held by JLIF have a range of concession lengths
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—> FORTH VALLEY ROYAL HOSPITAL UK
A JLIF investment to which John Laing

provides project management services

Strategic Report
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PORTFOLIO VALUATION / continued

Q) Croydon Bernard Weatherill House UK _}

VALUE BY SECTOR
£ million

Inctuding the shareholding in JLIF whose investments are in
operational PPP projects secondary PPP projects made up the largest
sector within the portiolio reprasenting 45% of the portfolio valuation

VALUE BY REVENUE TYPE
£ mitlion

including the shareholding in JLIF whose projects are primarily
availlability-based availabtbty-based asseis continued to mzake up the
majority of the portfolio valuation representing 59% of the portiolio
Renewable energy assets made up 22% of the pertfolio by value with
volume-based assets 17% and shadow loil-based assats 2%
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Additional infermation on the Group s financial perfermance can be found elsewhere in the Annual Report and

Accounts as indicated below

Topic Additional snformation

Group trading perfermance See page 49 for further details on the Group s trading performance

Group cash flow performance Mare detailed analysis of the movements in net cash 1s shown on page 53

and in note 25

z
o
c
@
=
o

Directors portfolio valuation The valuation Is set out on pages 21 to 24

Principal risks The Financial Review argely focuses on Treasury-related risks A broader

description of the Group s principal nisks 1s included on pages 29 to 31

YEAR UNDER REVIEW In 2013, the Company adopted early Investment
Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10 IFRS 12 and 1AS 27) (the Amendments)
after the Directors concluded that the Company qualified as an
investment entity (see basis of preparation on page 54) The early

The restatement of the 2012 results 1s summansed on page 54

All the amounts included in this Financial Review are on the current
basis of accounting

Strategic Report

adoption of the Amendments has had a significant impact on the way The profit before tax on continuing sperations for the year was g
the Group reports its results and has resulted in the restatement of £104 6 million excluding the gain on the sale of JLIS of £21 2 million pu
the resutts for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2012 - £80 9 million) The increase was primartily driven by growth g
th h 3
As an investment entity 1n accordance with the Amendments the in the value of our investment portfolio which increased over the year &
from £574 7 millien to £684 4 million
Company no longer censolidates 1ts investments i subsidiary project
cornpanies an 2 line by line basis but instead measures such investments
at farr value through profit or loss This treatment 1s the same as for 2
the Company s investments in joint venture project companies g
@
i
Primary Secongary Asset l %]
Investment Investment Management Total l =
2013 2012 2013 02 2013 nmz 2013 2012 [¥)
£milen  E£mullon £mikien £millon € milion £ mdlion Emillien £ millon l &
=
iy
Prohit bafore tax
excluding JLIS 209 419 B0 s 232 88 110 105 761
JLIS - - - - 32 143 a2 143
Total profit betfore tax on
continuing operations 0¥ 419 80 237 120 253 1137 904
Post retirement charges (a8 8) B8O
Cther (0 3) (15
Prafit before tax excluding
gain on disposal of JLIS 104 & B0 9
Gair on disposal of JLIS 272 -
Profit before tax 1258 809
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2z |
Emilion £ milion €emilllon  Emlbon £ milllen £ miilon € miltien £ mullion 1
Portfolig valuation w007 2191 3837 3554 - - 48B4 & 5747
Other net current biabilities 8% (314
Groug net cash 558 741
Retrement benefit obligaticns (204 4) (189 8)
Group net assets 5256 % 5271
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FINANCIAL REVIEW / continued

Primary Investment - prefit before taxin 2013 includes a total gain on
investments of £45 8 million {2012 - €60 2 millior) The gainin 2012
included a value uplft on financial close of IEP (Phase 1) In addition profit
in 2012 benefitted from higher fee income earned on financial closures of
projects (2013 - £9 7 rmillion, 2012 - £20 2 mullion) most of which related
to the IEP project on which bid costs had been incurred over several years

Secondary Investment - profit before tax in 2013 includes a total gain on
investments of £88 2 mullion (2012 ~ £33 0 milion) comprising discount
unwinding of £27 0 millien value enhancements of £60 2 mibon and
foreign exchange gains of €1 0 mullion

Asset Management - profit before tax excluding JLIS 1s lower than 2012
primarily due to costs incurred in 2013 m relation to the launch of JLEN
and other corporate activities JLIS profil before tax in 2013 applies to the
period to 18 October 2013 when the company was sold JLIS profit befare
tax 1n 2012 also included a £5 % million increase from a change in revenue
recognition policy and a £4 4 million onerous contract provision release

Other matters affecting the financial performance financial position
and cash flows of the Group in 2013 were

« Tatal new investment cornmitments of £112 4 mitlion on ten
projects (2012 - seven projects with investment commutments of
€146 1 millien) including acquisitions

« Cash ivestment of C115 5 million inte (1) existing projects during
and at the end of their construction phase and (1) on acquisitions
of projects (2012 -~ £115 6 mitlion)

» Realisation of investments in five projects (including three
investments sold to JLIF) for total proceeds of £110 5 mullion
In 2012 there were reatisations of investments in five projects,
resulting in total proceeds of £92 2 million

« [isposal of JLIS for a profit under IFRS of £21 2 mitlion and

¢ The combined deficit of the Group s defined benefit pension (under

IAS 19) and post-retirement medical schemes at 31 December 2013
increased to £204 4 mullion (2012 - £189 8 million), due le the effect
of higher Inflation expectations partially offset by a lower discount
rate and cash contributions to JLPF of £25 2 milion The contributions
made were in line with a schedule of contributions agreed as part
of the actuanal valuation of JLPF at 31 March 2010 The actuarial
valuation of JLPF at 31 March 2013 was finalised \n December 2013
This resulted 1n 2 new schedule of contributions over 10 years

BASIS OF PREPARATION The Group s accounts are prepared under IFRS
as adopted by the EU At 31 December 2013, the Group hetd nvestments
in 45 project companies As a result of adoption of the Amendments all
investments in project companies are now accounted for at fair value

in accordance with 1AS 3% Financial instruments Recogmition and
Measurement, with changes {o fair value recognised in profit or loss

Project companies in which the Group invests are described as

non-recourse | e providers of debt to such project companies do
not have recourse to thase John Laing companies which are investors
in such projects Other John Laing subsidianies including operating
companies such as JLCM Laing Investments Management Services
Limited (LIMS) and/or companies in which corporate borrowings and
cash balances reside are described as recourse

GROUP INCOME STATEMENT The Group income Statement includes
+ the consolidated results of the Group s recourse subsidiaries and

+ the movement in the fair value of s investments in non-recourse
project companies and the investment in JLIF as adjusted for
dwidends and other income received during the year

Group operating income as presented in these accounts relates only to
recourse subsidiaries of the Group

The Group achieved financial close on seven projects in 2013 and charged
fees of £9 7 million (2012 - seven projects closed with £20 2 million
fees) Most of the fees in 2012 related to the IEP (Phase 1) project, on
which bid costs had been incurred over several years The Group also
achieved commercial close on NGR in December 2013 followed by
financial close in January 2014 On commercial close, recovery of bid
costs relating to NGR was virtually certain

The Group s valuation of its investments 1n project companies is calculated
by discounting thewr future cash flows Discount rates used are based on
rates at which operational projects are valued in the secondary market and
to which risk premia are applied After taking into account the net impact of
mvestment in new prajects distributions and disposals there was an uplift
of £134 § rrillion (2012 - £82 3 million) i the fair value of investrments in
projects This s presented within the Group Income Statement as dividend
income of £12 1 million (2012 - £16 4 mullion), interast income of £310
mulhion (2012 - £27 & milbon) and net gains on investments of £95 1 rmillion
(2012 - €44 & mullion) which include €4 2 million {2012 - £4 3 mullion) of
income not from the portfolio The Group s investment in JLiF is held at its
closing market value at the year end

Future growth of the business 1s being financed from cash flow from the
Group s investment portfolio and asset management activities

corporate borrewing facilities, and working capital created through
investrnent realisations During the year, investments in thres projects
were sold te JLIF and two investments were sold to other parties
rasuiting In total proceeds of £110 5 million Any uplift in the value

on disposal of these investments is recognised within the net gains

on Investrments n the Group Incorne Statement

Interest iIncome and {finance costs are analysed in note 2 and note 7
to the accounts respectively interest inceme includes interest from
investments in projects Finance costs include the net finance cost on
JLPF of £7 5 mullion in 2673 (2012 ~ £7 2 mullion)

Profit before tax was £125 8 million (2012 - £80 9 multion) Excluding the
gain on sale of JLIS profit before tax was £104 4 million

During 2013, dividends of £0 3 million (2012 - £0 3 million) were paid to
the Company s sharehotder Henderson Infrastructure Holdco Limited

TAXATION The Group s tax credit an continuing activities for 2013 was
£6 7 million (2012 - credit of £2 8 mitlion) This mainly arises from
consortiurn and group relief frorn PPP project companies

The annual contributions made to JLPF are tax deductible when paid
and as a result, there 1s mirimal tax payable by the UK holding and
asset management activities of the Group

Capital gains from the realisation of investments in projects are
generally exempt frem tax under the Substantial Shareholding
Exernption for shares i1n trading companies Te the extent this exemption
1s not available gains may be sheltered using current year {osses or
losses breught ferward within the Group s holding companies




The net deferred tax asset in the Group Balance Sheet 1s £1 5 mullion
(2012 - £1 9 rmullion)

At 31 December 2013 the Group had a significant unrecognised deferred
tax assel relating to carned forward tax losses of £39 2 million (2012 -
£68 8 million)

GROUP BALANCE SHEET The Group Balance Sheet includes the recourse
group s assets and liabilities and the fair value of its investments in
project companies

PORTFOLIO VALUATION The Directors valuation of the Group s
pertfolio of investments 1n project companies was £684 4 million at
31 December 2013 (2012 - £574 7 milion) The methodology for
valuation s set out in the Portfolio Valuation section on pages 21 to 24

The portfobio value 1s reconciled to the Group Balance Sheet as follows

31 December 31 Decembar

2013 2012
£ miltlon £ muthion
Group Balance Sheet
- Investments at fair value through grofit or loss 565 ¢ 5687
- Invesiments at fawr value through proflt or loss
included as assets held for sale’ 1189 72
Total per Group Balance Sheet 684 8 5759
Value of other investrnents included above notincluded
in portfolic valuation (0 4) 2
Portfolio valuation 684 & 5747

*  See note 7 10 the Group Financial Statemeants

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES AND POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL
OBLIGATIONS The combined accounting deficit in the Group s defined
nenefit pension and post-retirement medical schemnes at 31 December
2013 was £204 4 million {2012 - £189 8 milion} The Group operates
two defined henefit schermes in the UK - the John Laing Pension Fund
(the Fund ) and the John Laing Pension Plan (the Plan ) Both
schemes are closed to new members and future accrual Pension
benefits far current John Laing staff are delivered through a defined
contribution scheme

The amaount of the pension deficit tn the Fund s dependent on key
assumptions, principally inflation the discount rate used and the
anticipated longewty of members The sensitivty of the Fund s pension
liabilities to changes in these assurmptions 15 Wlustrated in note 23

During 2013 the Company continued to work with the Fund Trustee on
rigk reduction initiatives including interest rate hedging

The Company made cash deficit reduction contributions 1n 2013 of

£25 2 mullion (2012 - £24 3 mullion} The triennial actuarial valuation of
the Fund at 31 March 2013 showed a 75% funding posttion In December
2013 a schedule of contributions cver a period of 10 years was agreed
with the Fund Trustee comprising annual contributions of £26 1 million
increasing by 3 55% annually payable in March starting from March
2014 The next triennial actuanal valuation of the Fund is due as at

31 March 2016

The most recent actuanal valuation of the Plan as at 31 March 2011
showed a surpius of £2 0 million The next triennial actuarial valuation
of the Plan s due as at 31 March 2014
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LIQUIDITY The Group s iquidity risk is constantly monitored against
the bank facilities available to 1t and 1s regularly reviewed by the Board
to ensure that there are sufficient funds te cover current and forecast
praject investment commitments These commitments are mostly
backed by letters of credit issued under the Group s borrowing facilities
The letters of credit support the Group s share of the equity and
subordinated debt of projects generally up to the completion of
construction following which funds are injected

At 31 December 2013, the Group had comrmitted borrowing facilities
of £305 mitlion comprising a revelving credit facility expiring in
February 2017 (2012 - £305 mullion and coterminous bilateral facilities
of €19 é millien) Of the Group s commutted facilities £13% 1 mithien
was undrawn at 31 December 2013 (2012 - £137 3 million) Net
available financial resources at 31 December 2013 were £194 ¢ million
(2012 - £210 4 mullion)

Analysis of Group financial resources (recourse}

31 Decembear 31 December

2013 2m2

£ million £ million
Cash and bank deposits! 558 713
Committed borrowing facilities
Syndicated 3050 3050
Bilaterat - 19 6
Less
Letters of credit drawn {159 9) (187 3)
Short-term cash borrowings (60} -
Undrawn corporate facilities 1291 1373
Net available financial resources 194 % 2104

1 Includes cash and cash equivalen:s and cther Hnancial assets included in assets hetd for sale and
discontinued operaticns

INTEREST RATES The Group 1s not a constant barrower at the corporate
level and does not therefore, generally seek to hedge its exposure to
inlerest rate movements However, there are significant non-recourse
borrowings within the project companies in which the Group invests
Interest rate exposure on the non-recourse debt of such project
companies 1s 1n almost atl circumstances, fixed on financial close
through the 1ssue of either long-dated fixed coupen bonds or thraugh
the fixing of iloating rate bank debt via interest rate swaps

Since interest rates on project company borrowings tend to be almost
completely fixed the impact on the Group s shareholder returns from
changes in interest rates on borrewings in preject companies is
mirmimal There 1s an impact from changes in interest rates on the
investment income frem monses held on deposit both at Group level
and within project companies but such an effect has not been and s
unlikely to be, significant in the centext of the Group Income Staternent

Overview

Governance Strategic Report

Financial Statements
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FINANCIAL REVIEW [ continued

FOREIGN CURRENCY The Group monitors its total exposure to foreign
currencies The Group may apply an appropriate hedge to a specific
currency transaction exposure which could include barrowing in ihat
currency or entering into foretgn exchange forward contracts

At 31 Decemnber 2013 the portfolio valuation of £484 4 million {2012 -
£574 7 million) 1s analysed on the bas:s of foreign currency exposure
as follows

PORTFOLIO VALUE

2013
Total £684 4 millien

2Mmz2
Total E£574 7 million

At 31 Decemnber 2013 the Group held investments valued at £142 3
million (2012 - £90 6 million) denominated in Euro equivalent to 280 8%
(2012 - 15 7%) of the total portfalio valuation of £684 4 million (2012 -
£574 7 million) The Group regularly reviews 1ts exposure to the Euro,
in particular its sensitivity to changes in the exchange rale to Sterling
and to the iming and amount of forecast cash flows As illustrated
below the Group s foreign currency-denominated assets are partly
hedged by letters of credit issued tn the same forergn currency in
addition at 31 December 2613 the Group held a foreign exchange
forward hedge of £31 0 mitlion (2012 - £rul) agatnst tts Euro position
The hedge was entered inte :n accordance with the Group s foreign
exchange hedging policy As a result a failin the value of the Eura
versus Sterling would not have a material effect on the financiat
covenants in the Group s bank facilities at 31 December 2013

Letters of credit in issue denomtnated in foreign currencies are revalued
monthly to Sterling This retranslation risk dees not directly impact the
Group Balance Sheet or the Group Income Statement Letters of credit
missue at 31 December 2013 of £15% 9 mitlion (2012 - £487 3 mutlion)
are analysed by currency as follows

LETTERS OF CREDIT

2013
Total £159 9 million

2012
Total £187 3 million

GOING CONCERN The Group has committed corporate barrowing
facibties untll February 2017 and has sufficient resources available to
meet its cornmitted capital requirements mvestments and operating
costs for the foreseeable future Accordingly the Group has adopted
the gaing concern basis i the preparation of its financ:al statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Patrick O D Bourke
GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The effective management of risks within the Group Is essential to the successful delivery of the Group s objectives The Board s responsible for
ensunng that risks are [dentified and appropriately managed across the Group and has delegated to the Audit Commuttee respensibility for reviewing
lhe effectiveness of the Group 5 internal controls including the systerns established to identfy assess manage and monitor risks

The principal internat controls that eperated throughout 2013 and up to the date of this report include

« anorganisational structure which provides adeguate segregation of responsibilities clearly defined Lines of acceuntability, delegated autharity and
exiensive reporiing

* clear business objectives aligned with the Group s risk appetite

» nisk reporting including identification of rnisks through Group-wide nisk registers that 1s embedded in the regular management reparting of
busingss units and 1s cormmunicated to the Board and

« anndependent internal audit function which reparts to the Audit Committee The external auditer alse reports to the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of cantrols

In addttion a Risk Cemmuittee comprising senior members of management and chaired by the Group Finance Director assists the Board and Audit
Committee and the executive Directors in momitoring and executing the Group s sk management policy

The above procedures are underpinned by a control environment which 1s supported by a cutture of openness of communication between operationat
management and execulive management on atl matters (nctuding risk and control and precedures for bringing matters to the attention of the Board

All iInvestment decisions are scrutimised in detail by the Investment Committee and f appropriate also by the Board

The Directars assessment of the principal risks relating to PPP and the other infrastructure markets the Group invests in 1s set out below Additional
risks and uncertainties nol presently known to the Directors or which they currently consider not to be matenal may alsa have an adverse effect on

the Group

Risk

Mitigation

Gavernment policy

Changes to legislation or palicy in the UK or overseas could negatively
impact on the volume of petentizal opportunities available to the Group
and the returns from existing opportunities

Further governrments may seek to introduce new policies or legistation
that seek to tax er share in or lmit the returns from PPP or other
infrastructure investmenis

The Board Limits its exposure to any single jurisdiction

Thorough due diligence 1s carried out in order to assess a specific
country s risk {for example economic and political stability, tax policy
and local practices) befere any investrnent 1s made

Where possible the Group seeks specific contractual protection within
projects frem changes in government policy and law General change
of law 1s considered to be a normal business rnisk Dunng the bidding
process for a project the Group takes a wiew on the appropriate pricing
to cover the nsk of non-discriminatory changes in law

Macroeconomi¢ factors

Movements ininflation tnterest rates foreign exchange and GOP all
potentially impact upon the return generated from an investment to the
extent such facters cannot be hedged

The full or partial break-up of the Eurczone could afiect the value of,
or the return generated from an investment denominated (n Euro or
whase underlying currency 1s linked to the Euro

Factors which have the potential to impact adversely on the underlying
cash flows of an invesimenti are hedged wherever possible and
sensitivities are considered duning the investment approval process

Systemic risks such as persistent deflation, or appreciation of Sterling
versus the currency sn which an investment I1s made are assessed in the
context of the porticlic as a whole

The Group monitors closely the level of investments 1t has exposed
te the Euro, including regularly testing the sensitvity of the financial
covenants In 1ts corporate borrowing facilities te 2 significant change
in the value of the Euro Where possible specific clauses relating to
change in value of currency are incorporated in project agreements

Overview
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT / continued

f
| Risk

Mitigatian

Liguidity in the secondary market

Weakness 1n the secondary market for snvestments in PPP projects for
example as the result of a lack of economic growth in western markels
regulatory reform in the banking secior lgudity in financial markets
and the current difficulties in the Eurozone, may affect the Groups
ability to realise value from its investments

The secendary market for investments in renewabte energy projects
may be affected by nter alia, changes in energy prices in governmental
policy and 1n project finance market conditions

Investments In projects are appraised so that they are capable of being
held to matunity Hewever they are also carefutly structured such that
they are capable of being divested f appropriate when they become
mature Over recent years the secondary market for both PPP and
renewable energy Investments has grown

Financial resources

Any shortfallin financial resources on acceptable terms that are
avallable to the Group to satisfy its financial obligations may make

it necessary for the Group to constram its business development,
refinance its outstanding obligations forego investment and acquisition
opportunities and/er sell assets

The Group closely monitors its working capital and borrowing
reguirements and mantains an active dialogue with its banks It cperates
a policy of ensuring that sufficient financial resources are maintained
to satisfy cornmitted and bkely future investment requirements

In 2013 the Group entered intc a corporate borrowing facility which
matures in February 2017 Compliance with the financial covenants and
other terms of this facility 1s closely observed

Pensions

The amount of the deficit in the Group s main defined benefit pension
scheme can vary significantly due tc gains or tosses on scherne
investrments and movements in the assumptions used to value scheme
babibities (in particular mortality discount rate and nftation rate)
Consequently the Group 15 exposed to the risk of increases in cash
contributions payable valatility in the deficit reported in the Group
Balance Sheet and gains/losses recorded in the Group Statement of
Comprehensive income

The Group s two defined benefit pension schemes are overseen by
corporate trustees the directors of which include independent and
prefessiongtly qualified indviduals The Company works closely with
the trustees on the appropriate funding strategy for the schemes and
tzkes independent actuarial advice as appropriate Both schemes are
closed to future accrual and accordingly have no active members only
deferred members and pensioners A significant proportion of the
lizbilities of the main defined benefit pension scheme 15 matched by

a bulk annuity buy-in agreement with Aviva Inflation and interest rate
risks are also partially hedged

Long-term forecasting of revenues and costs

In circumstances where revenue In a project cormpany is related lo
patronage (1 e customer usage) actual revenues may vary materially
from assumptions at the time the investment commitment 1s made
Revenues in renewable energy project companies may alsc be affected
by changes in electricity prices In addition to the extent that actual
costs incurred differ from forecast costs and cannot be passed on to
sub-contractors investment returns may be adversely affected

The projects in which Group invest are pnincipally availability based
(where the revenue does not generally depend on the level of use of the
project asset) Where patronage or volume risk 1s taken, the Directors
review assumgtions and their sensitivities in detail prior to any
investment commitment

Projects are structured such that (1) day-to-day service provisien 15
sub-contracted te qualified sub-contractors supported by appropriate
security packages (1) cost and price inflation risk in relation to the
provision of services lies with sub-contractors and (ni} major
maintenance and ongoing project company costs are reviewed annually
and cost mitigation strategies adopted as appropriate

Where revenue in project companies s related to volurne and/or price
(e g with regard to investments in renewable energy) risks are mitigated
through a combination of facters including (1) the use of independent
forecasts of future volurmes (1) lower gearing versus that of availability-
based projects (i} short to medium term fixed price power off-take
arrangements and (v} stress-testing the robustness of projects against
significant falls in forecast votumes

Project finance

Inability to secure long-term project finance could affect the Group s
future returns on investments in projects or where the Group has a
preferred hidder position, the terms on which the underlying project
reaches financial close

The Group works closely with a range of project finance providers to secure
sufficient cost-effective finance for its projects In PPP markets such as

Austraba where the tenor of project finance facilities tends to be shorter
the Group s projects have successfully raised such shorter-term facilities
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Risk

M:tigatian

Adverse financial performance by a project company which affects the
financial covenant ratios in its project finance loan documents may
result :n the project company being unable to make distrbutions to its
shareholders or subordinated debt prowiders and may enable semor
debt providers to declare default of the financing terms and exercise
their secunity

Inability ta refinance existing project finance cost-effectively may also
affect future investment returns

Prior to financial close all proposed investments are scrutinised by the
Investment Committee and by the executive Directors This scrutiny
includes a review of sensitivities to adverse investment returns and
financial ratio tests as well as an assessment of a project s ability to be
refinanced If the tenor of its debt 1s less than the term of the concession
or the project s useful lie Momitoring of compliance with financial
covenant ratios and other terms of {ean docurnents continues
threughout the term of the loan

Counterparty risk

The Group 1s exposed to counterparty credit nisk with regards to

(+) clients sub-contraclors, lenders and suppliers at a project level
and (It} joint venture partners financial institutions and suppliers at
a Group level

In overseas junisdiclions the Group s investments backed by public
sector clients may uttimately be subject to sovereign risk

The Group warks with multiple clients jomt venture partners sub-
contractors and institutional investors so as te reduce the probability
of systemic counterparty risk 1n 1ts investment portfolic In establishing
contractual arrangements as part of a project bid the credit standing and
retevant experience of a sub-contractor are considered independent
checks on polential counterparties are carried out Post contract award
the financial standing of key counterparties is moenitored to provide an
early warning of possible financial distress

Clients sponsoring PPP prejects are normally supported by centrat and
tocal government covenants which sigmficantly reduce the Group s risk
Client risk 1s further reduced by the increasing geagraphical spread of
the Group s business Entry into new geographical areas which have a
different legal framework and/or financial market characteristics Is
considered by the Beard separately from individual investment decisions

A substantial proportion of the revenue generated by renewable energy
Invesiments :s usually backed by gevernment subsidies

Counterparties for corporate deposits project debt swaps and deposits
In project cempanies are required to be banks with a suitable credit
rating and are monitored closely on an ongoing basis

Cost overruns and construction delays

During the censtruction phase of an infrastructure project there are
risks that enther the works are nol completed within the agreed time-
frame or that construction costs overrun

Where such risks are not borne by sub-contractors or sub-contractors
fail to meet their contractual obtigations {his can result in delays or
cost overruns which may adversely affect the return on the Group s
investments

The Group 1s reliant on the perfermance of third parties in constructing
an asset to an appropriate standard as well as operating it in a manner
consistent with contractual requiremnents Pogr performance by or
failure of, such third parties may result in the impairment or toss of

an investment

The Group has procedures in place to ensure that project companies
in whach it mvests appoint competent sub-contractors with relevant
experience and financial strength Sub-contracting arrangements
contain terms enabling the project company to recover liquidated
damages additional cests and lost revenue subject to limits from
the sub-contractor In addition the project company may terminate
its agreernent with a sub-contractor if the lalter 1s1n default and seek
an alternatsve sub-contractor

Secunty packages guard against the risk of price moverent on
re-tendering If a sub-contractor defaults

Extensive due dibgence s undertaken throughout the bidding process

Fhe terms of the sub-contracts inte which project companies enter
provide sigruficant protections for investment returns from the poor
perfermance of third parties

Majer incident

A mapor incident such as a terrorist attack, fire flood or epidernic could
lead to a loss of crucial business data technalogy, buildings, reputation
and staff leading to{oss of financial control and loss of confidence of
investors and key suppliers

In additton there could be a major investment project failure which could
lead to the loss of reputation and possible health and safety 1ssues

Detailed business contnuity plans have been designed and are
periodically tested and updated

John Laing operates to independent third party certified, management
systems in respect of health and safety (OHSAS 18001 2007) and
environmental management {)SO 14001 2004) In addition John Laing s
compliance team routinely monitors health safety and envirenmental
Issues In the projects the Group nvests I1n, both in the UK and overseas
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

We remain committed to our
Corporate Responsibility
agenda which is endorsed
by the John Laing executive
Directors; however it is

the engagement of our
employees that makes

the difference.

We are now In the second
year of our commitment

to provide support to
Paddington Academy over
three years as part of the
BITC flagship educational
programme, Business Class

We recognise that we have
an important part to play
In supporting our public
sector clients in achieving
environmental targets in
the reduction of waste
going to landfill and the
emissions of greenhouse
gases to the atmosphere
and their adverse impact
on climate change.

Adrian Ewer
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

—> The John Laing team al the Standard Chartered Great City Race in ard of Seeing is Believing )

Our cormrmitment to Corporate Responsibility was rewarded with another
Plattnum Award in the 2613 Business in the Community (BITC} Corporate
Respensibility Index

This follows our success in retaintng the CommumtyMark the national standard
of excellence i community investment awarded by BITC John Laing 15 onty
one of 46 UK companies to have achieved this award since Its inception in 2008
We continue to build on this achievement and have mamtained our comrutment
to support the communities 1n which we operate

John Laing also achieved a RoSPA Gold Medal in 2013 This award 15 testament
to our continuing commitment to safety and the systerns we operale in the
control and rmitigation of occupational health and safety risks




We work closely with our employees and strategic charitable partners
to deliver our community investment agenda

During the year we retained our ndependent
third party certification to BS EN IS0

14001 2004 (Environmental management) and
OHSAS 18001 2607 (Occupational Health and
Safety management)

COMMUNITY INYESTMENT We work closely with
our employees and strategic charitable partners
to deliver our commurity investmenl agenda

The John Laing Charitable Trust

The John Laing Charitable Trust (JLCT)
supports the work of welfare visitors who look
after the needs of our former employees and
their surviving partners ks iruslees set aside
considerable funds each year to provide
frmancial help and assistance to current and
former employees

JLCT also provides grants to employees
through its make a difference and matched
giving schernes to suppert chanties and
good causes

Make a difference

All John Laing employees or members of their
immediate family directly invotved tn a chanty
are able 1o apply to JLCT for a grant to support
a good cause These grants are generatly given
to small charities where they can make a real
difference During the past year 48 payments
of £500 were made to a wide variety of
organisations inctuding scheools youth football
teams wllage halls choirs youth clubs and
many small charities

Matched giving

Through this scheme JLET matches money
raised by employees up to a value of £1 000
per employee This year 64 applications were
received {rom staff with the value of matched
donations totalling almaest £37 500

John Laing Community Investment
Programme

JLCT also provides valuable suppart ta John
Laing s community Investment pragramme
which 15 focused on education and youth
unemployment The programme, which
provides volunteering and fund ratsing
opportunities for our employees includes
the following
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Business Class

Business Class 1s BITC s flagship education
pregramme endorsed by the government It
provides a systematic and proven framework
for developing partnerships which are rooted
In the needs of schools and underpinned by
strategic support and collaborative acticn

John Laing chairs the Westminster Business
Class cluster of businesses and schools and
has worked closely with 1ts partner school
Paddington Academy for two years Our
employees have volunteered {o support a
number of activities including student
mentoring, curricular support enterprise
events, careers fairs, mock interviews
motvational speaking as well as provision

of work experience and paid internships

In 2013 Chris Waples Executive Director
Asset Management was appointed to the
BITC Education Leadership Team

~» BITC Business Class coliaberatwe avent held
at 5t Augustine s CoE School invelving the
Westminster cluster of schools and businesses

Sirategic Report
|
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY / continued

- Year 12 students frem Paddinglon Academy
at the Pitch&Change event in December 2013
at which they secured funding ta deliver their _
social action project The sludents are mentored

throughout by John Laing volunteers.

Envision

Envision s Young Leaders Programme inspires
and enables young people to develop and
deliver their own social action projects to tackle
the social and environmental problems they care
mast about often in their local communities

Over the course of the ten month Envision
prograrnme which concluded in July 2013
John Laing volunteers supported young people
from Paddington Academy ta identify 1ssues
they felt passionately about and to set up
practical projecis ta chzllenge those issues,
whilst developing key employability skills John
Laing has agreed to support this successful
programme for a further three years

L->

The John Lamg 1eamn lakig part i the
Prince 8 Trust Ecuador Challenge

The Prince s Teaching Institute

Jehn Laing 1s a corporate palron of the Prince s
Teaching Institute which over the past ten
years has established a successful model of
encouraging children to have higher aspirations
and be more engaged in learning through
providing subject-based professional
development to teachers

In 2013, funding was secured to allow the
delivery of a three year programme te John
Laing s pariner schosl Paddinglon Academy
We are confident that this programme will

add value in metivating teachers and improving
the learning experience which ullimately will
improve students prospects further education
and employment

)

The Prince’s Trust

John Laing has been a patron of The Prince s
Trust Constructicn and Business Services
Leadership Group since 2006 Thes has allowed
us to work in partnership with The Prince s
Trust to help support disadvantaged young
people across the UK

This year, we were particularly delighted to
have an enthusiastic team from our European
office participate in The Prince s Trust Ecuador
challenge Over seven days at altitudes
between 2 800m and 4,900m the team covered
a gruelling 75 km trek and a 140 ks mountain
bike ride

Through their efforts the team raised 2
staggering £21 000 to suppart vulnerable
young peocple across the UK to realise their
potential and mave In to work, education
or training




CommunityMark

John Laing 1s one of only 38 companies in the UK which currently
hold the CommunityMark The award 1s made to businesses which
can demanstrate a long-term commitment to community investment
CommunityMark companies only achieve this national standard by
delivering measurable and positive benefits for their business and
the community

HEALTH AND SAFETY John Laing takes its heatth and safety
responsibilities very seriously and holds independent third party
certification to the internationally-recogrused occupational health
and safety management systerm OHSAS 18001 2007

This standard enables us te demonstrate our ongeing commitment
to the health and safety of cur staff and anyone who may be directly
or indirectly affected by our actities

Through this certification, we have seen a cantinued improverment in

our perfoermance in terms of health and safety management incident
reporting and investigation ernployee engagement and occupational

health and wellbeing

John Laing was not the subject of any enforcement action threughout
2013 and the Acaident Incidence Rate (AIR) (12-month rolling average)
for John Laing employees was 176 well below Lhe 2012/13 HSE all
industry average of 312

John Laing was awarded a RoSPA Gold Medal Award for Occupational
Health and Safety in 2013 This s the fifth successive year that John
Laing has achieved this prestigious award which reflects not only the
effectiveness of cur management system Bbut alsc the safety
performance maintained throughout the business
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ENVIRONMENT

Energy

The boundary criteria used for reporting include projects where John
Laing provides project management services andfor where it also
provided facilities management services

Whilst we aspire to reduce the impact on the envirenment of our public
sector Infrastructure projects in terms of Greenhouse Gas (GHG)
emizsions and the volume of waste going 1o landiit our ability 10

do so 15 dependent on our clients commitment to an ermissicn
reduction strategy

The energy data detailed in this report are based on boundary reporting
critena agreed with the Carbon Trust and cover the period July 2012 to
June 2013 The data have been Independently ver:fted by the Carbon Trust

The chart below shows the absolute carbon feotprint (GHG Scope 1 & 2}
associated with John Laing projects which was 144 851 tonnes of GHG
(COze = C0; equivalent) The decrease in ernissions on the preceding
12 months was 10 part a reflection of our partnership with our public
sector clients to reduce energy consumption

GREENHOUSE GASES PROTOCOL SCOPE T AND 2
- GAS AND ELECTRICITY

Qverview
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY / continued

JOHN LAING WASTE FOOTPRINT

WASTE DIVERTED FROM LANDFILL %

Waste

John Lamg s commitment to reduce the
volume of waste it and its end-users produce
1s firrnly embedded within the culture of the
business This ethos stems from top
management and (s cascaded to staff clients
and contractors at all levels

We continue to work with our stakeholders

1o look at joint initratives that provide toth
environmental and financial benefits Where
pessibte, we aim te educate our clients and
end-users by raising awareness of the negative
environmental impact waste has and of the
small changes that can be made io lessen the
volume of matenals sent to landfili

As can be seen from the graphs below, projects
in which John Laing holds investments have
achieved both a year on year reduction in
volume of waste produced and an improvement
In waste diveried from tandfitt

WORKPLACE

Our People

Investing in our people I1s critical to the success
of cur business and we support them both Lo
maximise ther career potential through
learning and developrnent and ta achieve a
work-bUfe balance John Laing s focus is to
attract relain engage develop and reward
high quality employees

Employment

As at 31 December 2013 the Group employed
215 people, of which 30 were employed
overseas 1he comparable number of
employees at 31 December 2012 was 270
During 2613 1t became necessary to reduce
the resources available in our traditicnal PP
social infrastructure markets through a
reorganisation Separately, JLIS our facililies
management business which employed
1,102 staff at 31 Decernber 2012 was sold

in Gctober 2013




Employee Engagement

John Laing 1s commutted to listening to its employees Following an
ernpleyee survey in 2012 we have focused on the areas identihed for
improvemenl We plan to conduct a further survey in 2014 and also to
taunch an employee forum

Following the reorganisation in 2013 John Laing has concentrated on
the development requirements of individuals and teams supporting
them where necessary with external facilitation, to ensure teams are
operating effectively in addition to keeping employees regularly informed
of progress and updated on the business senior management conduct
road shows and briefings on topical and relevant business issues

John Laing 1s committed to a positive working environment Iree from
any discrimination or unfair treatment which provides all employees
with equal opportunities to develop within the Group

Recogmbion and Reward

We regularly review our pay and benefits structure to ensure we are
competitive and are offering attractive packages Aswell as a
competitive base pay and benefits structure we recognise and reward
performance andfor results through bonuses and long-term mcentive
plans We also offer a flexible benefits package which allows employees
ta select and choose from a variety of benefits At the end of each year
we make awards to employees (voted for by other employees) for notable
achievemnents and contributions to both the business and the community

Work-Life Balance Polictes

John Laing recognises the importance of a working environment which
enables employees to achieve a balance between their work and
personal life to the benefit of the individual, the business and society
Our aim 1s to create an environment that supports staff and their
generzl wellbeing maintains effective working praciices and enables
a productive and positive balance between work and life outside work
The Group has a number of work-life balance policies and practices
in ptace which support flexible werking weorking parents and allow
agreed periods of absence from the work place The Group seeks to
enhance statulory minimum requirements where it can For example
we offer enhanced maternity, paterruty and adoption pay arrangements

The Group also provides an employee assistance programme which is
available to all employees their partners and ther immediate farmly
This 15 an independent service which offers support and counselling
on a wide range of work personal and family 1ssues
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Learning and Development

John Laing supports the skills development and learning of all
employees through a range of means including external courses and
semtnars sponsorship for professional qualifications secondments
development assessmenis and coaching and mentoring

Retention of our employees through effective development is key to the
success of the business Learning and development remnain areas of
particular focus Qur Future Leaders Programme provides personal
development mentoring and coaching support for a group of employees
with high potenbial We also run (1) a Management Development
Programme for a wide range of managers to suppori the development
of key management skills and (1) a development programme for
existing teaders to suppert them n their roles and to foster a culture

of inspirational leadership

We continue to promote the development of our people through an
annual Appraisal and Development Review which is based on our
competency framework of key skills required in the business

The Group runs an In-house traning programme which 1s open te

all employees Thisincludes a wide range of courses which cover
management development personal effectiveness, professional
development and information technology We continually revise the
developrment opportunities on offer as well as seek alternative methods
of providing accessible learning opportunities John Laing also offers a
personal financial planning course to assist employees in planning for
their tonger-term financial future including pension planning

John Laing encourages its employees to take part in volunteering activities
which both suppoert the community and aid personal development

Staff numbers at 31 Decernber 2013, broken down according to certain
remunerabon and gender criteria are set out below

Total Male % Femate %

Total Company 215 132 61 83 39
Senior Mgnagers earning

above EB0K bé 59 BY 7 11
Semor Managers earning

above £70k 8¢ 78 88 1 12

Directors g B 89 1 11
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DIRECTORS AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

* Patrick O D Bourke MA ACA
Group Finance Director

Patrick joined Jokn Laing in 2011 He qualified as a
chartered accountant with Peat Marwick (now KPMG)
before spending nine years in tnvestment banking with
first Hill S5amuel and then Barclays de Zoete Wedd in
1995 he joined Powergen plc where he was responsible
for mergers and acquisitions before becoming Group
Treasurer From 2000 to 2006 he was Group Finance
Director of Vindian Group PLC the Northera [reland-
based energy group becoming Group Chief Executive
in 2007 after Viridian was taken private He joined

the Board of Alfimty Water Limited in July 2013 as

a nan execubive director

* EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

* Adrian Ewer FCA
Chruef Executive (unul 25 March 2014)

After gualifying as a chartered accountant in 1977 Adnan
pursued a career In Industry in electronics engineening
and construction businesses inctuding Lilley ple

Ratcliffe Group Akar UK and Chloride Hawing joinad
John Laing in 1993 he became Deputy Group Finance
Director in 1993 and took responsibility for establishment
of the Investmenis Dmsien the catalyst for John Lamng s
present day core business in 1999 Adrian jorned the
Beard as Finance Director and in 2001/02 led John

Lang s strategic shift away from construction and house
building He has also driven the current strategy of
developing and investing tn :nfrastructure projecis
principally for public sector clients He became Chief
Executwve in 2006 Adnan joined the Board of The Go Ahead
Group plc in April 2013 as a pon-executive director

* Derek Potts MA ACA
Executive Directer Primary Investment

Derek joined John Laing in 2001 He heads the Primary
Investrent diision and has responsitulity for alt the
Group s bidding and primary investment activitties both
1n the UK and internationally For several years he has
led the Group s expanson inte a number of intermational
markets ane new sectors Derek)s a qualified chartered
accountant having graduated as an engineer He previausly
held seator pesitions with Jardine Matheson UK GB
Railways Group ple and Virgin Group

* Oluvier Brousse EP, ENPC
Chief Executive

Olvier joined John Laing 1n March 2014 Follewing
graduation from Ecole Polytechrigue and Ecole Nationate
des Ponlts et Chaussees in France he became
Commercial Director of Unic Systems and then Criel of
Staff 10 the Chairman and CEO of Cormpagnie Generale
des Eaux both in France In 1998 he moved to London
as CEO of Connex South Eastern and then poined Vecla
first as CEQ of Veolia Transportatien Inc in Washington DC
and then as Deputy CEG of Veoba Transportation in
France From 2008 lo 2014 he served as CEO and then
Execulive Chairman of Saur 5A in France

* Chris Waples CDir FloD
Executive Director, Asset Management

Chris jomed John Laing in 2007 He (s responsible for
the Group s asset management actmties which cover the
Group s portfolio of primary and secondary investments
as well as investments held by third parties His
responsibilities also cover information technology and
health and safety Chnis formerly held semior management
positions with Amey plc Scottish Power plc and Blue
Circle ptc He 1s the director responsible for heatth and
safety matters and 15 a lrustee of the John Laing
Charitable Trust




** NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
** Phil Nolan Bsc PHD MBA

Chairman

Dr Nolan has a wealth of experience on the boards

of many companies private and public and an both an
executive and nen executive capacity He joined the
Board of Affiruty Water Limited as executive Chairman on

1 Apnl 2013 and 1s currently a non executive director of
Ulster Bank Providence Resources Plc and EnQuest PLC
He was Chairman of Infinis a privately held teading
renewable energy generator between 2007 and 2010
Chairman of Sepura plc a bsted global suppleer of
TETRA radios between 2007 and 2010 and CEQ of Ewrcam
Ireland s nationai telecammunicatiens supplier frem 2002
- 2006 Prior to that he served as an Executve Director
of BG Group plc and CEQ of Transco ple frem 1998 and in
2000 led the demerger af Transco as CEQ

of the Lattice Group

** Roger Greville BAgEcon, MCom({Econ)
Nan-executive Director

Roger has aver 20 years of international investrment and
management expertence Until December 2011 he was
the Managing Director of Henderson Equity Partners
which specialises in Asian private equity infrastructure
and private equity fund of funds and he sat on the
Executive Committee for Henderson Group ple Prior

to that Roger was CED of AMP Hendersen Global
Investors (NZ) Limited a multi-sectos asset management
company managing isied and unlisted mvestments

He has also held positions with the Reserve Bank of
New Zealand the New Zeatand Treasury and Hendry
Hay Mcintosh Limited (a sharebroking and investment
banking hirm) as an econormst

** Priscilla Davies BCom ACA
Non-executive Director

Priscilla is the Managing Director of Henderson Equity
Partners which specialises in Asian private equity
infrastructure and private equity fund of funds Priscilla
has over 20 years experience n financiat services
having qualfied as a chartered accountant She jeined
Henderson Group in 2080 1n a seniar tax role and maved
to Henderson s private equity dwision in 2004 where she
oversaw (ts linance and investmeni operations before
becoming Managing Director 1n January 2012 Prior o
rairing Henderson Priscilla was a tax professional with
PricewaterhouseCoopers in both their Sydney and
London offices

** Guy Pigache BSc
Mon-executve Director

Guy 15 Head of Infrastructure at Henderson Equity
Partners hawing jeined Hendersen in 2003 Guy has
been active in the snfrastructure concessions market
for the past 20 years He previously established the
infrastructure equity investment dwsian of HSBC
{now infraRed Capital Partners) Guy starled his career
0 1982 working for the Chartarhouse mvestment
banking group for 20 years
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** Toby Hiscock MA (Oxon} FCA
Non-executive Director

Toby Hiscack 1s a gualified chartered accountant with

32 years experience as a finance professional He was
the Chief Financial Officer and an Executive Director of
Henderson Group plc from 2003 until his retirement in
2009 and was responssble for all aspects of financiel
stewardship of the Henderson Group Before Henderson
he was a semor manager at Midland Bank Group tn Londen
and from 1981 1o 1988 worked for Binder Hamlyn Chartered
Accountants alter graduating from Oxford Uneversity
Toby 15 also a non-executive Director of and consultant

to a number of other public and private insututions

COMPANY SECRETARY

Carolyn Cattermole LLB
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary

Carolyn joined John Laing in Septembar 2012 as Group
General Counsel and Company Secretary Her previous
reles were General Counsel and Company Secrelary

of D5 Smith Plc the international suppler of recycled
packaging for ten years and Company Secretary of
Courtaulds Textiles plc for three years Prior to that
she was a senior legal adviser with Courtauids ple
having qualihed as a solicitor with Norton Rose
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Direclors present their Annual Report and the avdited financial statements of the Group fer the year ended 31 December 2013

GROUP ACTIVITIES

John Laing 1s a specialist investor in and manager of infrastructure assets in the UK and internationally

The share caprtal of John Laing ple 1s wholly-owned by Henderson infrastructure Holdeo Lirmited on behalf of two funds Henderson
PFl Secondary Fund LP and Hendersan PFl Secondary Fund || LP which are managed by Henderson Equity Partners a subsidiary of
Henderson Group ple

A list of the principal iInvestments and groaup service cormpanies of the Group can be found mn note 31 to the accounts

On 28 August 2013 the Broup completed the sale of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Woodcroft Insurance Company Limited a Buernsey-
based captive insurance company

On 18 October 2013 the Group completed the sate of JLIS its facilities management business to Cantlicn plc

There have been no significant changes in the Group s principal activities 1n the year under review The Directors are not aware at the
date of this report of any major changes in the Group s activities in the caming year

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS FOR CONTINUING OPERATIONS
The profit for the year before taxation amounted to £125 8 mullion (2012 - £80 9 mullion)

The Directors paid interim dividends for the year of £0 15 million on 27 Juna 2013 and £0 15 million on 11 December 2013 (2012 -
£0 3 million) making a total dividend of 0 077 pence per ordinary share (2012 - 0 077 pence per ordinary share) No finat dividend
for the year has been recommended

STRATEGIC REPDRT

Additionat information 1s provided in this annual report and accounts 1z accordance with best practice for portfolio companies owned
by private equity investors (of which John Laing plc 1s deemed to be cne} in accordance with the Walker Guidelines

The key events during the year and the development of the business are set out in the Strategic Repert on pages 6 to 37 The Strategic
Report includes the Financial Review on pages 25 to 28 and the principal risks facing the Group on pages 29 to 31

In the opinion of the Directors the information contained In this annual report and accounts including the Strategic Report 15 fair
balanced and understandable

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TG AUDITORS
Each of the persons who is a Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that
* as far as the Director 1s aware there is no relevant audit information of which the Company s auditor 15 unaware and

+ the Director has taken all the steps that hefshe ought ta have taken as a Director in order to make himself/herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company s auditor 1s aware of that information

This canfirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006
A resalution to reappoint Deloitte LLP as auditor will be proposed at the next Annual General Maeting
DIRECTORS

The Directors who served throughout the year were

A JH Ewer

P O D Bourke

D Potts

C B Waples

P A Davies

R P Grewville

N T Hiscock

£ MG Nolan

G R M Pigache

Olvier Brousse was appointed as a Director an 3 March 2014
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EMPLOYEES

The Group seeks to ensure employee commitment to its objectives in a number cf ways Strategic changes are communicated directly
to all staff and resultani queries are handled by the relevant business head or executive Director as appropriate Regular team
bnefings at local level provide employees with information about the performance of and imitiatives 1a, their part of the business

A wide range of information s also communicated across the Group 5 intranet

The framework within which decisions about people are made Is set out In the Group s personnel policies which are available to al

staff It 1s part of those policies to employ and train disabled peopte whenever their skills and qualifications atlow and when suitable
vacancies anse If existing employees become disabled every eifort 1s made te find them appropriate work and training 1s provided

if necessary

CREDITORS AND SUPPLIER PAYMENT POLICY

It 1s the Group s policy to settle suppliers invoices 1 accordance with the terms of the underlying transactians Trade creditors
at 31 December 2013 amounted to 35 days (2012 - 35 days) of average supplies for the year

The Strategic Report and the Directors Report were approved by the Board on 25 March 2014

On behalf of the Board

C’T.%\

C T Cattermcle
GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL AND COMPANY SECRETARY
25 March 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Beard has resolved that the disclosures 1o be made in the annual report regarding the operation of the Board and its sub-cormmitiees
should comnply where commercially practicable, with the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code ("the Code™) and

best practice generally However as the Company 15 nol required to comply wath the Code explanation for any non-compliance is

not provided

DIRECTORS

The Board meets on a regular basis throughout the year and as needed to deal with special business The Board has appointed an
Audit Commuttee a Finance Committee an Investment Committee a Nominations Committee and a Remuneration Committee which
consider 1ssues relevant to therr specific terms of reference The offices of Chairman and Chief Executive are held separately
Atiendance of Directors al meetings of the Board during 2613 was as follows

Number of meetings 11

Atlended by

P M G Nolan - independent non-executive Chairman n
A J H Ewer - Chief Executive 1
P O D Bourke - Group Finance Director 1
D Potts - executive Directer Prmary Investment 10
C B Waples - executive Director Asset Managsment "
P A Dawvies - non-executive Birecior 1
R P Greville - non-executive Director 11
N T Hiscock - non-execulive Director 10
G R M Pigache - non-executive Birector 1

When Directors are unable to attend meetings they receive the relevant papers and give their comments 1n advance of the
related meetings

Board meelings follow a formal agenda of matters reserved for decision and approval by the Beard as well as any special business
Matters Reserved for the Board include the review of sirategy and orgamisational change the review of internal controls and risk
management processes the approval of significant investments and disposals the approval of budgets and the regular review of
current trading and the financial position of the Group A schedule of Matters Reserved for the Board 1s included on the Company s
webstte at www laing corn The Board receives regular reports prier to meetings an current trading and the financtal posiion and
forecasts of the Group In addition the Board receives relevant information on business corporate and strategic 1ssues Formal
procedures exist to ensure 1hat the Board 1s made aware of any significant health and safety issues and non-compliance with statutory
regulations € B Waples 15 the Board member responstble for health and safety 1ssues Further details of the Company s approach to
health and safety are set out 1n the Corporate Responsibility section of the Strategic Report on page 35

All Directors may take independent professional advice at the Group s expense in the furtherance of thetr duties and have full access
to the Group General Counsel and Company Secretary

Upon appeintment Directors undertake an induction process to familiarise themselves with the Group s activities policies and key
i1ssues During their appointment non-executive Direclors are expected to dedicate adequate time to carry oul their role effectively and
to challenge management In a constructive way

The Chairman regularly meets with the other non-executive Directors to discuss the performance of the Board and the Board
sub-committees The performance of executive Directors 1s measured against predetermined cbjectives that are agreed with each
axecutive Director at the start of the inancial year

The Chairman has no executive respensibilities but leads and sets the agenda for the Board ensuning sts eHfectiveness The Chairman
alsc acts as an interface between the execulive and non-executive Directors and the Company s shareholder

BOARD SUB-COMMITTEES

Sub-committees of the Board have been constituted to consider and make recornrmendations to the Board regarding matters relating
to external and internal audit internal control and nsk management processes the seleclion of appropnate accounting policies the
presentation of the mtenm and {ull year accounts investment performance new investrnents the appointment of Directors and
Directors remuneration Membership 1s determined by the Board and Lhe duties of the Board sub-commuitiees are set out in the
following sections of this repart

All the sub-coemmittees of the Board operate within clearly defined terms of reference which are reviewed and updated to reflect best
practice and the Code as far as s commercially practicable
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Throughout the year the Audit Committee was chaired by N T Hiscock a nen-executive Director whe has up te date and relevant
financial experience Other members who served during the year were P A Davies and M Jaife (an appainted representative of the
Company s shareholder)

Attendance of Directors at meetings of the Audit Committee during 2013 was as follows

Number of meetings five

N T Hiscack -
Attended by # M G Nolan P 0 0 Bourke Chairman P A Davies

14 54 5 4

#  attendance only

The Committee meets at least four times a year Its terms of reference cover the review of internal and external audil plans the
interim results and the full year results as well as internal control precedures and risk management processes Regular reviews
of significant risks identified as a result of risk management processes are undertaken at meetings of the Committee and the
Committee s observations are raported to the Board

The internal aud:t department provides independent assurance te the Board through the Audit Comrmuttee thatinternal control
processes including those related to risk management are relevant effective and operating throughout the business

The Group Finance Director 1s normally invited to attend meetings along with other members of management as appropriate
The external auditor and internal auditor are also invited to attend meetings and meet with the Audit Committee privately, without
management present at least once a year

The Comrmttee considers and approves the external sudit approach with the external auditor The Commmuttee reviews the
independence of the external auditor and the procedures in place to ensure that independence is not compromised The Committee
gives specific approval to non-audit services performed by the external auditer where the fee 1s expected to exceed £20 000 Duning
2013 following separate competitive processes the Committee approved the appointment cof Deloitte LLP to provide advice on the
disposal of JLIS and the launch of JLEN which has accounted for a sigmificant increase in nen-audit fees After careful consideration
the Committee 1s satished that the non-audit werk carried out by Deloitte LLP 1n 2013 has not comprormised its independence The
external auditor has also confirmed it 15 satisfied 1t has maintained ts independence since appointment

Audit Comrmitiee meetings are rinuted and copies of the minutes are provided to the Directors and the external auditor The
Comrmittee reports to the Board through the Chairman of the Committee any relevant issues that shoutd be brought to the altention
of the Directors

THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

The Finance Committee meets when necessary and its primary purpese Is to review the annual Budget and Plan The current
members are N T Hiscock (who acted as Chairman throughout the year) G R M Pigache M Jaffe (an appoinied representative of the
Company s sharehclder) and P O D Bourke

Attendance of Directors at meetings of the Finance Committee during 2013 was as follows

Number of meetings eight

N T Hiscock -
Attended by P M G Nelan P 0D Baurke D Polts C B Waplas Chairman G R M Pigache A JH Ewer

24 8 48 14 B g 18

#  attendance only

The activities and recommendations of the Committee are reported to routinely scheduled Board meetings
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Investment Commitiee 1s to make recomrmendations to the Beard or to approve proposals withun its delegated
authonity in relalien to the Company s investments in infrastructure projects The Commuttee also reviews the Company s portfolio
valuation process referred to on page 21 and monitors the balance of risk across the portfolio The activities recommendations and
approvals of the Committee are reported to routinely scheduled Board meetings

Members of the Committee are appointed by the Board Membership comprises not less than one non-exacutive Director of the
Company, the executive Directors, the Group General Counset and Company Secretary and such other people as rmay be nominated
by the Board from time to time G R M Pigache 15 the Chairman of the Committee

Attendance of Directors at meetings of the Investment Committee during 2013 was as follows

Number of meetings 35

G R M Pigache -
Attended by P MG Nolan AJHEwer PO DBourke 0 Patts C B Waples RP Greville Chairman N T Hiscock P A Davies
3 28 32 29 20 34 35 14 L

#  attendance only

THE NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

The Committee meets at least annually Dr P M G Nolan 1s the Chairman of the Committee Membership 1s not less than two
non-executive Directors, one of whom must be the Chairman of the Commutiee Attendance of Directors at meetings of the
Nominations Committee during 2013 was as follows

Number of meetings one

P M G Nolan -
Attended oy Chairman RPGrevile GRM Pigache F A Davies

| 1 1 1

The purpose of the Nom:nations Commuttee 1s to consider and make recommendations to the Board concerning all new Board

* appointments and the retirement of Directors and to make recommendations to the Board relating to the policy far angeing education
and development of Directors During the recruitment process the Committee will use external search consultants or open advertising
as deemed maest appropriate When nominating candidates for non-executive directorships the Committee will take account of the
need for diversity and independence f appropriate

THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has three scheduled meetings per year and meets additionally as circumstances require Membership
15 not less than two non-executive Directors Dr P M G Nolan acted as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee throughout 2013

Attendance of Directors at meetings of the Remuneration Committee during 2013 was as follows

Number of meetings eight

P MG Nelan -
Attended by Chairman A JH Ewer RPGrevile G R M Pigache N T Hiscock P A& Davies

8 T 8 8 6 8

#  attendance only

The Remuneration Commuttee sets and monstors the overall remuneration policy for the executive Directors and other senior executives
The Company bas adopted the FCAs Remuneration Code which 1s applied in respect of those staff involved in regulated actvities The
Committee reviews but does not Limit itself to, the following key areas and makes recommendations tc the Board in this respect

+ total remuneration (Including base pay, bonus and incentive arrangerments)

» method of remuneration

s service coniracts

= terms and conditions and any matenal changes to the standard terms of employment and

+ approval of financial arrangements proposed by the Chief Executive relating to the termination of executive Directors service contracts

The activities recommendations and approvals of the Commuttee are reported ta the next routinely scheduled Board meeting
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsble for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable aw
and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have
elected to prepare the Group financial statements 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union {EU) and the parent company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (UK Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company law the Directors must not approve the accounts
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of atfairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that year

In preparing the parent company financial statements the Direciors are required to

e select suitable accounting policies and then appty them consistently,

e make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

s state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
exptained in the financial statements and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 15 inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue In bysiness

In preparing the Group financial statements, Internatienal Accounting Standard (1AS) 1 requires that the Directors

¢ properly select and apply accounting policies

e presentinformaticn ncluding accounting policies 10 a manner that provides relevant reliable comparable and understandable
infermation

* previde additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in [FRSs 1s insufficient to enable users to
understand the impact of particular transactions other events and cenditions on the entity s financial position and financial
performance and

+ make an assessment of the Company s ability to continue as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accountmg records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safegquarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reascnable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information shown on the Company s
website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ frem legislation
in other junisdictions

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

We confirm that o the best of our knowledge

« the financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adepted by the EU give a true and fair view of the assets, Liabilities,
financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the consclidation taken as a whole

» the Strategic Report includes a fair view of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Company and
the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a2 whole together with 2 description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that they face and

« the annual report and financial statements taken as a whole are fair balanced and understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company s performance, business model and strategy

e kb

A JHEwer P O D Bourke
[HRECTOR DIRECTOR
25 March 2014 25 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF JOHN LAING PLC

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF JOHN LAING PLC
In our opinion

* The financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group s and of the parent cornpany s affairs as at 31 December
2013 and of the Group s profit for the year then ended

the Group financtal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the Eurcpean Union

the parent company financiat staternents have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act

The financial statements comprise the Group Income Statement the Group Statement of Comprehensive income, the Group and
Campany Balance Sheet the Group Statement of Changes in Equity the Group Cash Flow Statement the Accaunting Policies and the
related notes 11to 31 for the Group Financial Statements and the related notes 1 to 12 for the parent company financiat statements

The financial reporting framework that has been apptied 1n the preparation of the Group Financial Statements 15 applicable law and
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in the preparatton of the parent

company financial statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdomn Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice)

GOING CONCERN

We have reviewed the Directors statement contained on page 57 that the Group s a going concern We confirm that

* we have concluded that the Bireclors use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements

is appropriate and

» we have not identified materat uncertainties related te events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group s ability

te continue as a gqoing concern

However because not all future events or conditiens can be predicted this statement is not a guarantee as io the Group s abikily to

continue as a going concern

OUR ASSESSMENT CF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

The assessed risks of material misstaternent described below are those that had the greatest effect on our audit strategy the
atlocation of resources during the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team

Risk

How the scope of our audit responded to the nisk

Valuation of PPP and renewabte energy investments

The valuation of these Investments s a significant judgement
area and 1s underpinned by a number of key assumgptions
and estimates

These judgemnents include forecast cash flows (iIncluding the
ability of the Group to acheteve value enhancements}, discount
rates and macro-econeomuc assumptions such as future inflation
and tax rates

* We reviewed and challenged the cash flows incerporated into
a sample of project financial models focusing on key changes
during the peried

* We obtained evidence to substantiate other key assumptions
including project discount rate{s) the ability to achieve value
enhancements and macro-economic assumptions such as
farecast tax and inflation rates

* We benchmarked management s secondary discount rates
against secondary market transactions including disposais that
the Group has entered inte in the current and previcus periods

Please see note 13 of the Group financial slatements

Adoption of IFRS10 Investment Entities

The appropriaieness of the application of the new standard i1s
a Judgement based on whether the Group meets the definition
of an investment entity As an investment entity the Group
measures s Interest 1 project subsidiaries jo:nt ventures
and associates at fair value rather than consolidating or
eguity accounting

+ We challenged management s assessment that the Group meets
the definition of an investment entity against the criteria set out
in Investment Entities (Armendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and
1AS 27) by reviewing the Group s business model and how
management report performance internally

¢ We checked that the prior penod restatement had been
calculated and disclosed correctly

Please see the accounting poticies of the Group Financiat Statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TG THE MEMBER OF JOHN LAING PLC

Risk How the scope of our audit responded to the nsk

The valuation of the defined benefit pension schemes * n conjunction with internal actuarial specialists we challenged

The Group has two defined benefit pension schemes which and benchmarked management s key assumptions including

had a combined Liability of £196 8m at 31 December 2013 The the discount rate mortality assumptions and inflation rates

valuation of the Liability 15 subject to a number of judgements ¢ We audited the scheme assets via agreement to external

ncluding (1) discount rates (i) inflation rates and (m) mortality ~ confirmations from the custodian

assumptions * We checked the nature of the Group s funding commitments to
the schemes, reviewed the scheme rules external legal advice

There 1s also a judgement that the Group may not be able to and the actuarial schedule of contributions

recover a surplus under the scheme rules and consequently may
be subject to a minimum funding requirement under IFRIC14 Please see note 21 of the Group Financial Statements

Our audit procedures relating to these matters were designed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole
and not to express an opimon on individual accounts or disclosures Our opimion on the financiat statements (s not modified with
respect to any of the nsks described above and we do not express an op:nian on these indiwvidual matters

OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY

We define matenality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it prabable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced We use materiality both in planning the scope of our
audit work and in evatuating the results of our work

We determined materiality for the Group to be £12 millton which 1s below 3% of shareholder s equity

We agreed with the Audit Commuttee that we would report to the Commuttee all audit differences in excess of £0 6 million as well as
differences below that threshold that in our view warranted reporting on qualitative grounds We also report to the Audit Committee
on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements

AN OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF QUR AUDIT

Our group audi scope focused pnmanily on the fair value of those PPP and renewable energy investments which are significant to the
Group Audit work was perfoermed on investments in scope which comprised 93% of the total valuation of project compantes Other
Investments were subject to review procedures We engaged with the component auditors of joint ventures (which are not audited by
the Group engagement team} who undertook specific scope audit procedures

Our audit work on those components which provide asset management services and are consolidated was executed at levels of
materiatity applicable to each compenent which in all instances was lower than Group materiality

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
In our apinion

* the informatien gven in the Strategic Report and the Directors Report for the financial year for which the financial statements 1s
prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to repart to you If 1n our opinion

* we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or

= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company or returns adequate for eur audit have not been recewved
from branches not visited by us or

¢ certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made or
« the parent company financial statements are not In agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Overview
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF JOHN LAING PLC

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors Responsibilities the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they gve a true and fawr view Our respons:bility ts to audit and express an opinion on
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors We also comply with International Standard on
Quality Control 1 {UK and Ireland} Our audit methodology and tools aim to ensure that our quality control procedures are effective
understood and applied Our guality controls and systems include our dedicated professional standards review team strategically
focused second partner reviews and independent partner reviews

This report 1s made solely to the cempany s member as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company s member those matters we are required to state to

them in an auditer s report and for no other purpase To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the company and the company s member as a body, for our audit work for this report or for the opinions we
have formed

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtatiming evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group s and the parent company s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adeguately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors,
and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition we read all the hinancial and non-financial infermation in the
annual report to identify materiat inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that i1s
apparently matenally incorrect based on or matenally inconsistent with the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing
the audit If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistenctes we consider the implications for our report

H,.__._.

Ross Howard FCA (Senior statutory auditor)

FOR AND CN BEHALF OF DELCITTELLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AND STATUTORY AUDITOR
LONDON UNITED KINGDOM

25 March 2014
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Reslated*
2013 2012
Naotes £ million £ mullion
Continuing cperations
Interest income 2 12 278
Dividend income 3 121 144
Net gains on mvestments at fair value through profit er toss 13 251 44 6
Other income 852 1133
Operating income i 223 6 2021
Cosl of sales (379 {44 8)
Gross profit 1857 1573
Administrative expenses (63 4) (67 5)
Other gains and losses [ 218 107
Profit from operations 4 1641 1005
Finance costs ? {18 3) (19 4)
Profit before tax 1258 809
Tax 8 67 28
Profit for the year from continuing operations 1325 837
Discontinued operations
Loss for the year from discontinued operations (after tax) ] (13 ()]
Profit for the year 1212 816
Attributable to
Owner of the Company 1311 B16
Non-controiling interest 01 -
1312 8146

* All comparative information including relevant notes has been restated as set outin the basis of preparation on page S4
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GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Restated*
2013 2012
Translation Accumulated Translation Accumulated
reserve  profits/(losses) Total reserve profi/{loss} Total

£ millien £ miilion £ mittion £ million £ million £ million
Profit for the year - 112 mmz2 - 814 B1s
Exchange difference on translation
of overseas operations 01 - g1 on - on
Actuarial loss on post retirement cbligations - (31 2) (312) - (453) (45 3)
Other comprehensive income/{expense)
for the year 01 (312) 31 1) on (45 3) (45 4)
Total comprehensive income/(expense)
for the year 01 100 ¢ 1001 an 363 362

* All comparatwe information rcluding relevant notes has been restated as set out in the basis of preparation on page 54

The only movernent which could subsequently be recycled to the Group Income Statement s the exchange difference on translation

of overseas operations
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Group Statement of Changes in Equity in 2013

Atcumaulated Non-
Shzre Revaluation Translation proflt/ controlling Total
capstal reserve reserve ({loss) Total inigrest equity
Nates € million £ million £ miltlon € million € million £ million £ million
Balance at 1 January 2013
(as previously reported) 97 % 153 4 (22 &) 819 3108 &5 3153
impact of restatement - 859 257 247 116 3 (4 5) 1118
Restated balance at 1 January 2013* 979 2193 33 104 & 4271 - 4271
Profit for the year - - - 1311 1311 01 13% 2
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year - - 01 (312) {3t 1) - (31 1)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 01 99 100 0 o1 1001 .
z
Transfer on disposal of interests in E
investments - (49 2) 13 50 4 - - - o
Transfer on revaluation of investments 13 - 951 - (95 1) - - -
Dividends paud 10 - - - 03) (03} - {03)
Balance at 31 December 2013 279 2451 21 1617 524 8 01 526 9 ‘é
Amounts recogrised directly in equity relating 4
o
to assets classified as held for sale - 192 - - 192 gu
r_'é
[
Group Statement of Changes in Equity in 2012
Accumulated Non- @
Share Capital  Revaluatien  Translaton profit/ controlling Total g
capial reserve reserve reserve (loss) Total Interest equity el
Netes £ million £ mullich £ millicr £ million £ million £ mutlion £ milbon £ millian 5
— =
Balance at 1 January 2012 I}
(as previously reported) 879 231 1700 (3% 1) 224 2743 24 2767
Impact of restatement - - 525 425 219 1169 (24) 1145
Restated balance at 1 January 2012* 979 231 2225 14 442 a2 - 3912 i
2
Profit for the year - - - - 814 814 - B4 2
Other comprehensive expense for the year - - - on (453) (45 &) - (45 4) g
Total comprehensive (expense)/income S
=
for the year - - - en 33 362 - 2 2
L
Transfer on disposal
of interests in investments - - (47 8) - 478 - - -
Transfer on revaluation
of investments 13 - - 119 - {46 6) - - -
Realisation of capital reserve
on contribution to pensian
fund deficit 24 - (23 1) - - 231 - - -
Dividends paid 10 - - - - {03) {0 3) - 03)
Restated balance at 31 December 2012* 979 - 2193 33 106 & 4271 - 4271
Amounts recognsed direcily
10 equity relating to assets
classified as held for sale - - 43 - - 43

* All comparative information including relevant notes has been restated as set out in the basis of preparation on page 54
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET

as a1 31 December 2013

Restated Restated
2013 032 | January 2012
Notes € mitlion £ millian € million
Non-current assets
Intangible assets ] 13 29 34
Plant and eguipment 12 22 38 09
Investments al fair value through profit or loss 13 565 9 5487 5183
Deferred tax assets 20 15 19 19
Trade and other receivables h 41 08 19
5750 5781 526 &

Current assets
inventories - work in progress - 02 o1
Trade and other recavables 14 181 193 153
Current tax assels 40 33 22
Other financial assets 15 T4 118 17
Derivative financial instruments 19 05 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 15 &b & 574 53¢%

786 922 132
Assets held for sale ang discontinued operations 9 1195 19 260
Total assets 7731 482 2 6256
Current Labilities
interest-bearing loans and borrowings 50 - -
Trade and other payables 16 2217 454 437
Provisions 22 - 19 119
Dervative financial instruments 1% 01 02 -
Current tax Labilities 11 41 39

299 51 & 595
Liabilities direcily associated with assets ciassified as held
for sale and discontrnued operations 9 va 1068 48
Net current assets 156 & 420 29
Non-current Liabilities
Relirement tenefit obligations 21 204 4 189 6 1610
Provisions 22 21 32 71

206 5 1930 148 1

Total Liabilities 246 2 2551 234 4
Net assets 526 ¢ 4271 3912
Equity
Share capital 23 §7 9 979 979
Capital reserve 2% - - 231
Revaluation reserve 2651 2193 225
Translation reserve 21 33 J4
Accumulated profits 1617 106 6 443
- retirement benefit obligations (204 4} (189 8) (161 0)
- other reserves 661 296 4 2053
Equity attributable to owner of the Company 526 8 £271 3z
Non-controtling interest 01 - -
Total equuty 524 9 4271 3z

* All comparative information includ:ng relevant notes has been restated as set out wn the hasss of preparaton on page 54

The financial statements of John Laing plc registered number 1345670, on pages 49 lo 95 were approved by the Board of Directors

and puthorised for 1ssue on 25 March 2014 They were signed on 1ts behalf by

di g

A} HEwer P 0D Bourke
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
25 March 2014 25 March 2014




GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT
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Restated”
2013 2052
Notes € miluon £ million

Nat cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities 5 {15 8) 53
Investing activities
Reductienf(sncrease} in other inancial assets 52 (10 8)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries net of cash and disposal costs 6 ?3 -
Proceeds from the sale of investments net of disposal costs [ 1103 136 7
Proceeds from toan repayments from project campanies 13 55 54
Purchase of computer software - o0&
Purchase of plant and equipment (01} ()]
investment infacguisition of project companies (117 2) (117 6)
HNet cash from investing activities 130 68 z

@
Finan¢ing activities = |
Dwidends paid ) (03 2
Interest paid (72 (78)
Proceeds from borrowtngs 68 -
Net cash used in financing activitias {10 7) @ =

o
Net (decrease)/increase 1n cash and cash equivalents {135) 40 d?i'-
Cash and cash equivalents at beginming of year 59 &4 553 v
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 03 o gc’j

m
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 26 &b 4 594 5

* All comparative information including relevant nates hgs been restated as set gut in the basis of preparation on page 54
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

for the year ended 31 December 2013

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Group has adopled accounting policies that are compliant with IFRS in se far as they have been codified and endorsed by EU
member states and therefore these accounts comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS regulatron

The financial statements have been grepared on the historical cost basis except for the revaluation of investments in project
companies and {inancial instruments that are measured al fair value ai the end of each reporiing period as explained 1n the
accounting policies below

On 31 October 2012 the IASB published Investment Entities {Amendments to IFRS 10 $FRS 12 and IAS 27) prowiding an exception to
the consolidation requirements in [FRS 10 for investment entities These Amendments are effective fer annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014 Following EU endorsement in November 2013 early adoption of the Amendments is permitied The Group has
determined that it qualifies as an investment enbity and has chesen to adopt early the Amendments in the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2013 Comparative infarmation for 2012 has been restated to reflect this change in accounting policy See
note (a) in the accounting policies below

Project companies in which the Graup invests are described as non-recourse 1 e providers of debt to such project companies have
no recourse to John Laing companies as investers in such projects Other John Laing group companmies which are all subsidiaries
including operating cornpanies and/or companies in which corporate borrewings and cash balances reside are described as recourse

Certain value enhancements were identified in 2013 in respect of the Group s investment in the I[EP (Phase 1} project In the opirion of the
Directors the circumstances relating to these value enhancements existed at 31 December 2012 Accordingly comparative infermation
fer 2012 has been restated which has resulted in an increase in the fair value movement on investments in the Greup Income Staternent
and investments at fair value through profit or {oss on the Group Balance Sheet by £18 7 million

The impact of adopting fnvestment Entities {Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and JAS 27) compnises the deconsolidation of assets
liabilities 1ncome and expenses of subsidiary project companies which were previously consclidated on a Une by line basis Under the
Amendments ail investment in project companies including those which are subsidiares are now accounted for at fair value in
accordance with {AS 3% Financial Instruments Recognition and measurement with changes to fair value recognised in profit or loss

The fellowing table summarises the key adjustments made to the Group Balance Sheet on implementation of the new accounting policy
and the restatement described above

As reporied

As reported Restated Balance at Restated

Balance at Balance at 31 December Balance at 31
Group Balance Sheet 1 January 2012 Restatement 1 January 2012 2012 Restatement  December 2012
Intangible assets 382 (34 8) 34 55 8 (529) 29
Plant and equipment 0% - 09 39 (353 38
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 413 4 104 7 5183 3931 175 & 568 7
Financial assets - available for sale 7281 (728 1) - 8454 {865 4) -
Deterred tax assets - 19 19 - 19 19
Inventories 01 - 01 02 - 02
Derivative financial instruments - - - 02 (02) -
Trade and ather recewvables 404 (43 2) 172 709 (50 8) 201
Current tax assets 23 nn 22 30 03 33
Qther financial assets 212 (1% 5) 17 44 2 (32 4) 1mea
Cash and cash equivalents 894 (357 5319 10¢ 1 (51 5) 574
Asset held {or sale and discentinued cperations 12t 7 957 260 e - M9
Total assets 1,476 1 {850 5) 425 & 1,592 ¢ (910 7} 682 2
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (727 8) 7278 - (886 8) 88568 -
Trade and other payatles 837 400 437 (83 3} e (45 4)
Retirement benefil obligations (161 0) - (161 0) (189 8) - (189 8)
Current tax liabilities 43 04 3w 41 - (4 1)
Deferred tax Lialities [(FY)] 04 - (6 1) 61 -
Derivative financial tnstruments (739 759 - (83 6) 834 (02}
Provisions (25 9) 69 {19 0) (18 b4 [CR )]
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified
as held for sale and discontinued operations (120 4) 1136 (68) (12 4) 19 (10 5)
Total liabilities (1,199 &) 9550 (234 &) (1,277 &) 1,022 5 {255 1)
Net assets 276 7 1145 3912 3153 118 6271

Retained earmngs 22 4 29 443 819 247 104 &




ACCOUNTING POLICIES

for the year ended 31 December 2013

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

The effect on the Group Income Statement was as follows

John Laing Annual Report and Accounts 2013 / 55

As reported Restated

Resutts for the Results for the

year ended year ended

31 Dacember 31 December

Group Income Statement 012 Restatement 2012

Continuing operations

Interest income 773 (69 5) 278
Dwidend income 143 01 164
Net gains on mvestments at fair value through profit or loss 261 185 LR ]
Other income n3sg (200 5) 133
Opaerating income 4335 (231 4) 2021
Cost of sales (237 &) 1928 (44 8)
Gross proht 195 ¢ (38 6) 1573
Administrative expenses 65 7) 22 (67 5)
Other gains 157 (50) 107
Profit from operations 1419 (41 4) 1008
Finance costs {743) 567 (19 &
Profit before tax 45 & 153 80 %
Tax 22 né 28
Profit tor the year from continuing operations 478 159 B3 7
Less for the year from discontinued operations {after tax) (2 1) - 2n
Profit for the year 657 159 B1&

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

With the exception of Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10 [FRS 12 and [AS 27), the adoptson of the following new and revised
standards amendments and interpretations has net led to any material changes inthe Group s accounting pelicies nor has it had any

matertal impact on these financial statements

Standard/amendment/interpretation

iFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 11 loint Arrangements

IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in Other Entilies

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

1A5 19 Emptoyee Benetits (2011)

1AS 27 Separate Financial Statements (2011)

IAS 28 Investments n Associates and Jeint Ventures (2011)

Amendmenis to IFRS 7 (December 2011} Disclosures - Ditsetting Financial Assets and Financiat Liabihities

Amendments to IFRS 1 (March 2012} Government Loans
Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle

Consolidated Financial Statements Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities Transitson Guidance

The Amendments to IFRS 10 IFRS 12 and 1AS 27 (Octaber 2012} Investment Entities are not effective in the European Unian until annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 However as described above the Company has elected to adopt early these Amendments

in these financial statements
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

for the year ended 31 December 2013

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

At the date of authorisation of these financral statements, the following standards amendments and interpretations which have not
been applied in these financial statements were in1ssue and relevant but not yet effective (and 1n some cases had not yet been
adopied by the EU)

Standardfamendment/interpretation

IFRS § (November 2009 rewsed December 2011} Financial instruments

Detined Benefit Plans Employee Contributions (Amendments to |AS 19)

Amendmenis to |1AS 32 (Decernber 2011) Finanaial instruments - Presentation

Recoverable Amount Ehsclosures for Non-Financial Assets (Amendments 10 IAS 36 Impairment of Assets)

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting {Amendments to tAS 39 Financial instruments - Recogrition and Measurement)
Annual Improvemnents 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle

IFRIC 21 Levies

With the exception of IFRS 9, the Directors do not anticipate that the adeption of these standards or interpretations in future periods
will have a maternial impact on the financial statements of the Group when the relevant standards come into effect for periods
commencing on or gfter 1 January 2014 The adoptien of IFRS 9 when it becomes mandatory will have an impact on the
measurement, classification and disclosures of financial nstruments

(a) Application of investment entity gutdance

Following EU endorsement of Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10 IFRS 12 and I1AS 27) i1n November 2013 the Group has

considered whether it meets the definition of aninvestment entity 1n order to adopt these Amendrments early Under this guidance

an investment entity 1s considered to be an entity which

* obtans funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing those mvestor(s) with investment management services

= commiis to its investor(s) that its business purpese is to invest funds solely for returns frorn capitat appreciation investment
inceme or both and

* measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all its investments on a fair value basis

In assessing whether it meets the defimtion of an investment entity an entity must consider whether it has the following typical
charactenstics

* more than one investment

* more than one Investor

* investors that are not related parties of the entity, and

* ownership interests in the form of equity or similar interests

The Group has concluded that it meets the definition of an investment entity with a transitranal date of 1 January 2013 Prior
pericds have been restated on the same basis The Group has also adopted the amendments to IFRS 12 and IAS 27 which are
applicable to an investment enuty Following adoptian of these standards the Group as an investment entity measures ail
investments in project companies Oncluding subsidiary project companies which it controls and joint ventures and associates) at
fair value through profit or loss in accordance with 1AS 39 Financial instruments Recognition and measurement (Lo be reptaced
by IFRS ¢ Financial Instruments when it becames effective) A summary of the main changes of adopting the Amendments is set
out on page 54

The fair value of investments 1a subsidiary project companies joint ventures and associates 1s calculated by discounting the future
cash flows of the underlying projects at an appropriate discount rate The discount rates used are based on market discount rates
for similar assets adjusted for an appropriate premium to reflect preject specific nsk and the phase of the project The discount
rates that have been appled to investments at 31 December 2013 were in the range of 7 5% 1o 17 0% (2012 - 4 8% to 13 0%)

The Group also hotds an mvestment in John Laing Infrastructure Fund Linuted {JLIF ) with the value of the Group s investment
determined by its closing share price at the balance sheet date

The Group continues to consolidate those subsidiaries which provide services to the Group s investment activiies These are
companies within the recourse part of the Group including Laing Investments Management Services Limited John Laing Capital
Management Limited and Jehn Laing Services Limited The Group also conselidated its subsidiary, John Laing Integrated
Services Limited {JLIS }, untd the date of its disposal on 18 October 2013
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

for the year ended 31 December 2013

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(b}

(c)

Going concern

The Directors have reviewed the Group s financial projections and cash flow forecasts and believe based on those projections and
forecasts that it 1s appropriate to prepare the financial statements of the Group on the geing cencern basis

As set out in the Financiat Review section of the Strategic Report on pages 25 to 28 n armiving at thetr conclusien, the Drrectars
took inta account the Group s policy towards Liquidity and cash flow management and the availability of £305 rmillion of bank
faciliues which are committed to February 2017 The Directors are of the opiion that based on the Group s forecasts and
prajections and taking account of expected bidding actiity and operational performance the Group will be able to operate within
its bank facilities and comply with the financial covenants therein for the foreseeable future

In deterrmining that the Group 1s 2 going concern certain risks and uncertainties some of which arise orincrease as a result of the
economic environment in some of the Group s markets have been considered The Directors believe that the Group 1s adequately
placed to manage these risks The most important risks and uncertainties 1dentified and considered by the Directors are set out in
the Principal Risks and Risk Management section cn pages 29 to 31 In addition the Group s policies for management cf exposure
to financial risks including bquidity foreign exchange credit and interest rate risks are set cut inaote 18

Revenue recognition
The Group earns revenue from varigus sources including

Primary and secondary investment
s Investment inceme from its investment portfolio and
« Recovery of bid costs (prmary investrent onty}

Asset management services
+ Revenue from the provision of asset management services to the Group s investmeant portfolio and
* Revenue from the provision of asset management services to external parties

The Group alsc earned revenue from facibties management services through its wholly owned subsidiary JLIS unul JLIS was sald
on 18 October 2013

Revenue recagnition is determined by reference te the following policies

(1) Investment income

tnvestment income comprises the follawing

* Dwidend income from snvestments in project companies and other investrments at fair value through profit or loss 1s
recognised when the shareholders rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it 1s probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably) Dvdend income s
recognised gross of withholding tax 1f any and only when approved and paid by the project company

= Interest income s recogmsed when It 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amcunt of
income can be measured reliably Interest income s accrued by reference to the principal outstanding and the applicable
interest rate

* Gains or losses an investments at fair value through profit or loss exctuding the movements shown as dwidend and interest
income above

(1) Revenue from asse! management services

Revenue from asset management services is recogrised as services are provided in accordance with JAS 18 Revenue

(1} Facilittes management services

Until the sale of JLIS revenue from long-term faciities management contracts was accounted for in accordance with 1AS 18
Revenue Revenues and profits recognised were determined by reference 1o services provided n the period

{v) Bid costs

Bid cosis are charged to the Group Income Statement until such time as the Group 1s virtually certain that it will recover the
costs Virtual certainty 1s generally achiaved when an agreement is 1n place demonstrating that costs are fully recoverable even
 the event of cancellation of a project From the point of virtual certainty bid costs are held in the Group Balance Sheet as a
debter prior to achieving financial close On the project in question on financral close {finalisation of project and financing
agreements) the Group recovers bid costs by charging a fee to the relevant project company
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 December 2013

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

{c) Revenue recogrution (continued)

{v)

Other

Revenue excludes the value of intra-greup transactsons and VAT and includes revenue derived from the provision of services to
project companies by Group recourse companies

When it 1s probable that the expected outcome over the life of a management services contract will result in a net outilow of
economic benefits or overall loss a provision Is recognised immediately The prevision s determined based on the net present
value of the expected future cash inflows and outilows

{d) Financial instruments

)

(1)

Fenancial instrurnents

Financial assets and financial Labiliies are recognised n the Group Batance Sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument

Financial assets and financial babilities are imitially measured at fair value Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or 1ssue of financiat assets and financial habilities (other than linancial assets and financial kabilities at fair
value through profit or loss} are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial labibties, as
appropriate aninitial recognition Transaction costs directly aitributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financia
Liabilities at fair value through prohit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss

Financial assels

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of & financial asset 1s under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe established by the market concerned and
are imitially measured at fair value, ptus {ransaction cosis except for those financral assets classified as at fair value through
profit or loss which are mnitially measured at fair value

Financial assets are classified into the following spectfied calegories financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) held-te-maturity investments available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets and loans and recewvables The
ctassification depends on the nature and purpose of the inancial assets and 15 determined at the time of initsal recognition

The financial assets that the Group holds are classified as FYTPL and loans and receivables

+ Investments in project compantes and JLIF are designated upon tnitial recognition as financial assets at FVTPL The Group s
pelicy 15 to fair value both the equity and subordinated debt vestments in project subsidiaries, joint ventures and associales
together Subseguent to initiat recogmition the investrments are measured on a combined basis at fair value using
discounted cash {low methodology with changes recognised within operating income in the Group Income Statement

Loans and recevables are non-derwative financial assats with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted on an
active markel Loans and recevables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methed less any impairment
Interest ncome 1s recognised by applying the effective interest rate except for short term receivables when the recogrition
of interest would be immaterial Loans and receivables are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than

12 months afler the balance sheet date which are classified as nen-current assets The Group s loans and receivables
comprise trade and other recewables cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets in the Group Balance Sheet

() tmpairment of financial assets

Financial assels other than those at FVTPL are assessed for indications of impairment at each batance sheet date Financial
assets are impared where there 1s objective evidence that as a result of cne or more events which have occurred after the
initial recogmition of the financral asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected For financial
assets carrred at amortised cost the amount of the impairment 1s the difference between the asset s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated fulure cash flows discounted at the financial asset s original effective interest rate The carrying
amount of the financial asset 1s reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 December 2013

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

{d)

(e

-

)

(9)

Financial instruments {continued)

{iv) Derecognition of financial assels

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assel expire or when it

transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity If the Group

nesther {ransfers nar retains substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset the Group recogntses sts retained interestin the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay If the
Group retains substantially ali the risks and rewards of ownership of a transtferred financial assel the Group continues te
recognise the financral asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds recewved

{v,

Financial liabiliies

=

Interest bearing bank loans and borrowings are initially recorded at fair value being the proceeds received net of direct issue
costs and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate methed Finance charges inctuding premiums
payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs are accounted for on an accrual basis in the Group Income
Statement and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in
which they anse

Other non-derivative financial instruments are measured at amorbised cost using the effective interest method less any
impairment losses

The Group derecognises financial babilities when and anly when, the Group s obligations are discharged cancelied or they expire

{w) Denvative financral instruments

The Group treats forward foreign exchange coniracts and currency swap deals it enters into as FVTPL derivative financial
instruments Changes in the fair value of these insiruments are taken to the Group Income Statement

Provisions

Provistons for restructuring cosls legal claims and environmental restaration are recognised when
e the Group has a legal or constructive abligation as a result of past events

* 1L1s probable that an outflow of resources wili be reguired to seltle the obligation and

« the amount has been reliably estimated

Where there are a number of similar obligations the likelihood that an outflow witl be required in settlement 1s determined by
censidering the class of the obligations as a whole

Finance costs

Finance costs which include set up costs far the revolving credit facility and letter of credit fees, are recogmised in the Group
Income Staterment aver the credit facility term or i the year sn which they are incurred respecively

Taxation

The tax charge or credit represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax

Current tax

Current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Group lncome
Statement because i excludes both iterns of Income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible The Group s iability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted, or
substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 December 2013

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(g) Taxation (continued)

Delerred tax

Deferred tax I1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and Liabilities
th the financial statements and the correspending tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 1s acceuntied for using
the balance sheet liabiity method Deferred tax liabiities are generally recognised for ali taxable temporary diiferences and
deferred 1ax assets are recogrised (o the extent that it 15 probable that taxabte profits will be available against which deductible
lemporary differences can be utilsed Such assets and Labilities are not recognised if the temperary difference arises from
goodwill or frem the initial recegnition of other assets and liabilities (other than in a business combination) in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax Liabilities are recogrised for taxable temporary differences arising from investments in project companies, except
where the Group s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future The measurement of deferred tax liabilities on project companies reflects the tax consequences
that would fallow from the manner in which the Group expects at the end of the reporting peried, to recover or setile the carrying
amount of its assets and biabilities The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it 1s ne longer probable that sufficient taxable profits wiil be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered Deferred 1ax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the Liability is settled or the
assel s realised Deferred tax is charged or credited to the Group Income Staternent except when it relates to 1tems charged or
credited directly to equity in which case the deferred tax 15 also dealt with In equity

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assels aganst current
tax liabiliies and when they relate to (ncome taxes levied by the same taxation authonity and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabibities on a net basis

(h} Foreign currencies

Q)

The individual financiat staternents of each Group subsidiary are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment
in which it operates {its functronal currency) For the purpose of the Group financial statements the results and financial position
of each Group subsidiary are expressed in pounds sierling the functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency
fer the Group financial statements

Exchange differences arising in the ordinary course of trading are reflected 1n the Group Income Statement those arising on
translation of net results of foreign operations are transferred to the Group s translation reserve in the Greup Balance Sheet
On disposal of foreign operations such translation differences are reclassified to the Group Incore Statement in the period In
which the disposal has occurred

For the purposes of presenting the Group financial stalements the assels and liabilities of the Group s foreign operations are
translated al exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period Monetary assels and liabiltlies expressed n foreign currency are reported at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the balance sheet date or If appropriate al the forward contract rate Any difference arising on the retranslation of these amounts
1s taken to the Group Income Statement, except fer long-term shareholder loans which form part of net investment in a fareign
operation and where any difference anising on the retranslation of these amounts 1s taken to the translation reserve in the Group
Balance Sheet In the event of dispasal of a foreign investment, this reserve 1s reclasstfied to the Group income Statement as part
of the profit or loss on dispasal

MNon-current assets held for sale and discentinued eperations

Where a disposal group represents a separate major line of business or gecgraphical area of operations or s part of a single
coordmated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations 1t)s treated as a discontinued
cperation The post-tax profit or loss of this discontinued operation together with the gain or loss recogmsed on s disposal 1s
shown as a single amount on the face of the Group Income Statement wath all prior periods being presented on this basis

Non-current assets ¢lassified as held for sale and discontinued operations are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrytng armount 1s recoverable through a sale rather than
through continuing use Thes candition 1s regarded as having been met only when the sale 1s hughly probable the asset (or disposal
group) 1s available for immediate sale in s present condition and the sale 1s completed within one year of the date of 1ts classtfication
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

for the year ended 31 December 2013

ADOCPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED)
()) Intangible assets

Computer software classified as an intangible asset 1s amorlised over three to five years on a straight line basis

(k) Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment ncluding fixtures and fittings and computer equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment loss

Depreciatton is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful lives using the straight tine
method on the following bases

Computer equipment 3 to 5 years
Qffice equipment 3to Syears

() Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates both defined benefit and defined coniribution pension arrangements its two defined benefil pension schemes
are the John Laing Pension Fund and the Jshn Laing Pension Plan, which are closed to future accrual The Group also provides
post-retirement medical benefits to certain former employees

Payments to defined contribution pension arrangements are charged as an expense as they fall due

For the defined benefit pension schemes and the post-retirement medical benefit scheme the cost of providing benefits s
determined in accordance with [AS 19 Employee Benefits (revised) using the projected umit credit method with actuanial
valuaiions being carried out at least every three years Actuarial gains and losses are recogrised in full in the year 1n which they
occur and are presented (n the Group Statement of Comprehensive lacome Curtailment gains ansing from changes te members
benefits are recogrused in full in the Group Inceme Statement

The retirernent benefit obtigattrons recognised in the Group Balance Sheet represent the present value of (1) defined benefit
scheme obligations as adjusted for unrecognised past service costs and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets, where any
asset resulting from this caiculabion 1s lmited to past service costs plus the present value of avarlable refunds and reductions in
future contrnibutions to the schemes and (1) unfunded post-retirement medical benefits

Net interest expense or income 1s recognised withen finance costs

{m} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Group Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term deposits with original
maturities of three months or {ess For the purposes of the Group Cash Flow Staternent, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
and short term deposits as defined above nei of bank overdrafts

Deposits held with onginal maturities of greater than three months are shown as other financial assets

(n

=

Leasing

Leases are classified as linance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the (essee All other leases are classified as operaling leases Rentals payabie under operating teases are charged
to income on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into
an operating lease are also spread on a straight line basis over the lease term

(o) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Instruments on the basis that they ewidence a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all its liabitaties
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

for the year ended 31 December 2013

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

in the apphication of the Group s accounting policies, the Directors are required to make judgments estimates and assumplions about
the carrying amounts of assets and labilittes The estimates and associated assumptions are based on husionical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates made and the underlying assumptions on which they are based are reviewed regularly Revisions to accounting
estimates are recegnised in the period in which the estimate 1s revised if the rewision affects only that periad of in the period of the
revtsion and future pertods if the revision affects both current and future periods

Determining whether the Group qualifies as an investment entity

The Group has assessed whether it falls within the critera of an investment entity under Investment Entities (Amendments o IFRS 10
IFRS 12 and IAS 27) as follows

(a) the Group 1s wholly owned by Henderson Infrastructure Hoideo Limited on behalf of two funds Henderson PFl Secendary Fund LP
and Henderson PF Secondary Fund Il LP which in turn have a number of investors

(&) the Group s strategy is to invest in and manage, infrastructure assets it invests in PPP project companies and renewable energy
projects with Lthe sole purpeses of invesiment income and capital appreciation The underlying project companies have businesses
and activities that the Group 1s not directly tnvolved in The Group s returns from the provision of management services to project
companies are small in cornparison to the Group s overatl investment-based returns

{¢) the Graup measures all of its investments 1n PPP preject companies and renewable energy projects on a fair value basis
Information on the fair value of investrnents forms part of monthly management reports reviewed by the Board of [hrectors

Although the Group has a defined benefit pension Lability, the Amendments do not exclude compames with non-investment related
Liabilitres from qualifying as investment entities

Uncensolidated project company subsidiaries are part of the non-recourse business Based en the arrangements in place with those
subsidiaries the Group has concluded that there are no

(a) significant restrictions {resulting from borrowing arrangements regulatory requirements or contractual arrangernents) on the
ability of an unconsolidated subsidiary to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash divdends or to repay loans or advances
rnade to the uncansolidated subsidiary by the Group and

{b) current commitments or intentions ta provide financial or other support to an unconsolidated subsidiary including commitments
ar intentions Lo assist the subsidiary in obtaining financal support

Fair value of investments m project companies

The Group s investments in project companies are carried at fair value through profit or toss based on the porticlio valuation
methodology as disclosed on page 22 The key assumptions underpinning the valuation of project companies are discount rates
the amount and timing of future cash flows and the ability of the Group to realise value enhancements in such project companies
in determining discount rates regard 1s had to secondary market data, specific risks inherent in each project and the evidence

of recent transactions The carrying amount of interests i project companies would be diiferent if the discount rates used i the
discounted cash flow analysis were to change Fulure value enhancements are based on evidence of actual enhancements that the
Group has obtained on other projects plus detailed review of future cash flows

Pension and other post-retirement Liability accounting

The combined accounting deficit in the Group s defined benefit pension and post-retrement medical schemes at 31 Decernber 2013
was £204 4 million (2012 ~ £18% B mullion) The vatue of the pension deficit1s highly dependent on assumptions for price inflatien,
discount rate and lengevity experience The sensitivity of the pension liabilities to changes in these assumptions s illustrated in note 21
In determining the Group s defined benefit pension Liability consideration i1s also given to whether thers 1s @ minimum funding
requirement under IFRIC 14 which1s in excess of the (AS 12 liabilety If the minimum funding requirement 1s higher, an additional
lability would need to be recognised Under the trust deed and rules of JLPF the Group has an ultimate unconditronal nght to

any surplus accordingly the excess of the minimum furding requirement over the IAS 19 liability has not been recognised as an
additronal Labildy
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

far the year ended 31 December 2013

1

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group has adopted IFRS 8 Operating Segments for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 Infarmation 1s reported to the
Group s Board (the chief operating decision maker under IFRS 8} for the purposes of resource ailocalion and assessment of
segment performance based on the category of activities undertaken wathin the Group The principal categories of actmity and
thus the repcrlabie segments under IFRS 8 are Primary Investment Secondary Investment and Asset Management

The results included within each of the reportable segments comprise

Pnimary Invesiment - costs and cosl recoveries associated with sourcing bidding for and winning greenfield infrastructure and
renewable energy projects invesiment returns from and growth in the value of the Primary Investrnent portfolio net of
associated costs

Secondary Investment - investrnent returns from and growth in the value of the Secondary Investment portfolio net of associated costs

Asset Management - fee income and associated cosis from investment management services (n respect of both the Primary and
Secondary Investment portfolios and in respect of JLIF s portfolio fee income and associated costs from project management
services and up to 18 October 2013 fee income and associated costs from facilities management services

The Board s primary measure of profitability for each segment ts profit before tax

The followsng 15 an analysis of the Group s operating income and profit before tax for the years ended 31 Decernber 2013 and 2012

Profit before tax
Operating income endc‘;l; ; em}eY«-Je:EiI ir
Year ended 31 December 2013 Year ended 31 December 2012 December December
013 2012
inter Inter-
External segment Tatat Externat segment Tatal Total Total
£ million £ million £ millien E mitlion £ millien £ mitlion £ million £ milhon
Primary investment 572 - 872 B8O 1 - 801 209 9
Secondary Investment 93e - $38 338 - 338 80 8 232
Asset Management
- Facilities management services 470 52 522 620 67 687 3z 143
- Other 50 8z 33z 254 65 319 g8 10
- Totat 720 134 854 87 & 132 100 & 120 253
Reportable segments 2230 134 236 4 2013 132 214 5 M37 90 4
Profit on disposat of JLIS - - - - - - 212 -
Post retirement charges - - - - - - (8 8) (80)
Costs relating to discontinued operations - - - - - - 2 (24)
As reported to the Board 2230 134 238 4 2013 132 2145 124 9 798
Deduct inter-segment and intra-group sates - {13 4) (13 4} - (132) (132) - -
Dther [N - 06 08 - o8 03 (D &)
As reported in the Group Financial Statements 223 4 - 2236 2021 - 2021 124 & 792
Being
Profit befare tax from continuing operations 1258 ag9
Loss before tax trom discontinued operations {note 9) (12) (17)
126 6 792

For the year ended 31 Decernber 2013 more than 10% of operating income was derived from one project, Al Gdansk Poland

(2012 - |IEP (Phase 1))
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2013

1 OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Group s portlolio of investments 1s made up of primary and secondary investments The Primary Investment portfolio includes
projecis which have recently reached financial close and/or are in the construction phase The Secondary Investment portfolio
inctudes operational projects most of which were originally pnmary investments of the Group

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
€ mittion £ mullion
Segment assels
Primary investment 3007 2191
Secondary Investment 3837 355 &
Other 04 12
Total invesiments at fair value through profit or toss (including assets held for sale see note 13) 484 8 575 ¢
Retirement benefit obligations (204 &) (18¢ 8)
Other net assets 44 5 410
Group net assets 524 9 4271
2 INTEREST INCOME
2013 2012
£ milllon E rullion
Interest on bank deposits 92 02
Interest received from investments neo 276
Total interest income nz 278
3 DIVIDEND INCOME
2013 2012
€ miltien £ mithon
Dividends from investments 121 16 4
121 16 4
4 PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
2013 2012
£ million E million
Prafil from operations has been arrived at after charging
Fees payable to the Company s auditor and its associates for the audit of the Company s annual accounts - -
Fees payable to the Company s auditor and its assoclates for other services to the Group
- the audit of the Company s subsidiaries (03) (03)
Total audit fees (0 3) (03)
- other services (09 on
Tatal non-audit tees (09) on
Paymenis under operating leases
- rentals of land and buildings (20) 32
Net foreign exchange loss 02} ©n
Deprecsation of plant and equipment {12) (i1
Amortisation of intangible assets {16} GV

The fees payable to the Company s auditor for the audit of the Company s annual accounts were £27,10% (2012 - £15 842) The {ees
payable to the Cempany s auditer for other services comprised £32 575 for audit related assurance services (2012 - £50 000) £nil
for other assurance services (2012 - £61 309) Enil for (XBRL serwces (2012 - £16 390) £512 00D in relation to the disposal

of JLIS (2012 - £ril) and £405,000 in relation ta the launch of JLEN (2012 - £nil)
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DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
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2013 2012
£ milllon £ mullion
All Directors
Directors emotuments
Cash basis 30 30
Award basis 32 32
Highest paid Director
Director s emcluments
Cash basis i 11
Award basis 0y 11

Two Directars (2012 - two) are deferred members of JLPF a defined benefit pension scheme With effect from 1 April 2011 this

scheme closed to future accrual

As a deferred member of JLPF the highest paid Directer ts not accruing any further pension benefits other than as 2 result of
inflation The accrued annual pens:on to which he was entitled on retirernent at the year end was £76 842 (2012 - £74 730)

Remuneration of key management persennel

The remuneration of the Directars, who are the key management personnel of the Group, 1s set out below in aggregate for each

of the categories specified in 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures

2013 2012
£ millon £ milion
Cash basis

Shori-term employee benefits 20 20
Past-employment benefits 03 93
Cash payments under leng-term incentive plans 07 07
3o 30

Award basis
Short-term employee benefits 21 20
Post-empiloyment benefits 03 03
Maximum award under long-term incentive plans 08 0¢
2 3z

In addition to the above amounts £0 1 million {2012 - £0 1 mllion) was paid to Nalon Management Services Limited of which

P M G Nolan (Chairman of John Laing ple) 1s a director

Emptoyee costs comprise

Salaries

Social secunty costs

Pension charge

- defined benefit schemes (see note 21}
- defined contributicn scheme

2013 M2

£ million E mitlian
402 441
42 48

17 T

24 24

485 524

Qverview
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5 DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED)

Annual average employee numbers (tncluding Directors)

2013 2012

No No

Staft 1,485 1285

UK 1,454 1249

Overseas 29 a7
Activity

Bidding activities asset management and Group 242 284

Facilities management 1,223 1 002

1,485 1286

Excluding employees of JLIS which was sold on 18 October 2013 average annual employee numbers were 262 1n 2013 (2012 - 284)

6 OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

2013 w12

£ million £ milion

Profit on disposals 212 13
Change in fair value of derivative instruments outstanding at year

end and classified as fair value through profit or loss Bé 02

Provision on onergus contract - 94

Other gains and losses 218 107

During the year ended 31 December 2013 the Group disposed of shares and subordinated debt in five PPP project companies plus
part of iis sharzholding In Rail nvestments (Great Western) Limited Sale proceeds were £110 7 million in cash including proceeds

for sale of the Group s shareholding i a joint venture holding company The fair value of assets disposed of was £110 1 millien
with the movernents in fair value to the date of disposal included within net gains on investmentis at fair value through profit or
loss in the Group Income Statement The Group alse disposed of Woedcrodt Insurance Company Limited (Wooderoft} its captive

insurance subsidiary on 28 August 2013 and JLIS 1ts facilities management business on 18 October 2013

During the year ended 31 December 2012 the Group disposed of shares and subordinated debt in five PPP project companies Sale
praceeds were £92 ¢ million in cash, including £0 3 million receved in January 2013 Included wathin sales proceeds was an amount of

€3 2 mtlian for the settlement of sutstanding interest at the date of sale The fair value of assets disposed of was £8% 0 mullion at the date

of disposat The Group also received deferred consideration of £0 & million 1n 2012 from the sale of Equipe Regeneratien Limited in 2010

Original
holding tn
shares and
subordinated Holding Retained
debt disposed of helding
Project Date of completion % % %
Details of invesiments in project cempanies sold are as follows
Sold to John Laing Infrastructure Fund Limited
Healthcare Support (North Staffs) Limited 20 December 2013
Shares 750 750 -
Subordinated debt 750 750 -
Mezzanine debt 4217 4217 -
Infuston KVH General Partnership 28 November 2013 500 500 -
Barnsiey BSF 14 Dctober 2013
Barnsley SPV One Limited 400 400 -
Barnstey SPV Two Limited 400 400 -
Barnsley SPV Three Limited 400 400 -
Sold to other parties
Inteq Servites (Hotdings) Limited 10 June 2013 500 500 -
Airtrain Holdings Limited 27 March 2013 608 605 -
Rail Investments (Great Western) Limited 3t January 2013 100 D 200 ]
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6 OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (CONTINUED)

The net assets at the date of disposal were
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Investments
at fair value Total
JLIS and through disposed
Wooderoft profit or loss. of in 2013
£ mullion £ million £ milllon
Plant and equipment 05 - 0s
Deferred tax asset 02 - 02
Invenicries - work in progress oe - a8
Trade and other receivables 5 - %5
Cash and cash equivalents 78 - 78
investment 1n praject companies at fair vaiue through profit or loss - 1101 1101
interest-bearing loans and borrowings (o 8) - (08)
Trade and other payables (16 7) - (16 7)
Current tax liabilities 2n - 2N
Provisions {z% - {29
Net (liablities)fassets disposed of (37 1101 106 4
Cash consideration 183 107 1290
Disposal costs () (0 &) (18)
Gain on disposals 208 - 208
Continuing operations 212 - 212
Discontinued operations (0 &) - (0 4)
208 - 2048
Reconciliation to net cash inflow
Consideration 183 1107 1290
less cash and other financial assets in substdiaries disposed of {(78) - (78)
less disposal costs {12) (0 &) (146)
Net cash inflow arising on disposals 3 1103 1% 4
FINANCE COSTS
202 maz2
£ mitlen £ muthon
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 91 82
Pension and post-retirement medical benefit net interest cost {see note 21} 75 T2
Unwinding of discount on provisions (see note 22} 01 02
Amortisation of debt 1ssue costs 146 40
Total finance costs 183 196
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TAX
The tax credit for the year comprises
2013 202
£ miltion £ million
Current tax
UK corporation tax credit - current year 22 02
UK corporation tax credit = prior years 30 26
Foreign tex credit 17 -
6% 28
Ceferred tax charge (02) -
Tax credit on continuing operations 67 28
The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the profit in the Group Income Statement as follows
2013 012
€ milllon £ millien
Profit before tax on continuing operations 1258 809
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 23 25% {2012 - 24 5%) {29 2) (19 8)
Tax effect of dividend income not taxable 28 40
Tax effect of profits on dispesai that are nat taxable 53 04
Tax effect of expenses and other simular items that are not deductible - ()]
Adjustments tn respect of prior years 62 48
Nan-taxable movement an fair value of invesiments 171 93
Change 1n previously unrecognised deferred tax assets 58 47
Other movemnents (13} (0 4}
Total tax credit on continuing operations for the year 67 28

For the year ended 31 December 2013 a blended rate of 23 25% has been applied due to the change in the UK corporation tax rate
fromn 24% to 23% wath effect from 1 April 2013 For the year ended 31 December 2012, a blended rate of 24 5% was applied

The ¢hanges to the main rate of corporation tax for UK companies announced in the March 2013 Budget were subslantively
enacted for inancial reparting purposes on 2 July 2013 The main changes in corporation lax rates that will have accounting

implications for deferred tax are as foltows
» The main rate of corporation tax will reduce frem 23% o 21% from 1 April 2014

« The main rate of corporation tax will further reduce to 20% from 1 April 2015

The Group expects that the majority of deferred tax assets will be realised and the majonty of deferred tax liabiities will be setiled
after 1 Aprit 2015 and therefore the Group has measured its deferred tax assets and labilities at 31 December 2043 at 20%
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9 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Discontinued operations

Certain of the Group s assets and labdities which relate to legacy property and construction businesses are classified as
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discontinued The remaining assets and Liabilities relate to the settlement of warranties given at the ime of sale

The results of discontinued operations by sector which have been included in the Group Income Statement were as foltows

2013 2012

Construction Homes Total Construction Homes Total

€ milllon £ million £ million £ mithon £ millien £ milhon

Revenue - - - 01 - 01
Cost of sales {04) - (0 &) (31 - an
Gross loss from discontinued operations {0 &) - (04 (30} - [N
Other operating income 05 - 05 18 - 18
Adrministrative (expensesicredit {10 03 un on ()] [0 )]
Other losses (04&) - (0 &} - - -
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operations 13) 01 (4R} 13 [CR))] (14}
Investment income - - - 0t - ot
Finance cosis (02) - (G 2) (0 4y - (04}
(Loss)/profit before tax fram discontinued operations (15) 03 (t2) (16) N (37}
Tax charge on discontinued operations wn - on (04) - (04}
Net (loss)/profit attributable to discontinued operations (16) 03 {13) (2o on (21}

During the year the Group sotd Woodcroft insurance Company Limited 1ts captive insurance subsidiary for proceeds of £0 8 mitlion

which generated a loss on disposal of £0 4 million

At 31 December 2013 there were assets of £0 6 mullion (2012 - £4 7 million) including cash and cash equivalents of £ril
(2012 - £1 B million) and kabibties of £9 8 mithen (2042 - £10 5 million) in¢luding long-term provistons of £9 2 million

(2012 - £9 8 million) relating to discontinued operations

During the year ended 31 December 2013 net cash cutflow from operating actnaties included £0 5 mittien (2012 - inflow

£0 & rutzon) in respect of discontinued operations which also used £1 ¢ millon {2012 — generated £1 8 rilbon} ininvesting
activities There were no cashflows i financing actvities in relation to discontinued aperations

Overview
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10

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED}

Assets held for sale

At 31 December 2013 the Group was at an advanced stage for the proposed disposal of investments in seven project companies
and the investments at fair value of the offered price of £116 7 million have been classified as assets held for sale

As at 25 March 2014 it was expected that six of these investments would be sald to JLEN following admission ta listing on

31 March 2014 and that the remain:ng investment would be seld later in the year

In December 2012 the Group exercised its put option to sell its investment in Dhuie Palesner Tollway Limited (the NH3 roac

prejectin India} Thae sale s yet to complete but the investment at fair value of the agreed price of £2 2 mitlion (2012 - £2 4 million)

1s classified as an asset held for sale

tn 2012 shortly after financial close of the project the Group agreed terms with an institutronal co-1nvestor to sell 6% of its 30%

shareholding in IEP {Phase 1) The sate completed on 31 January 2013 for sale proceeds of £0 4 million The sale proceeds reflected a
nominal fee for arranging the investment commitment which the co-investor took on from the Group and did not reflect the fair value

of the investment to the co-investor At 31 December 2012, 6% of the 30% shareholding at far vatue of £0 4 million was classified as
an asset held for sale The other 24% of the shareheolding was included within investrnents at fair value through profit or loss

In December 2012 the Group received an offer to sellits interest in Brisbane Airlink and, whilst the sale had net completed at
31 December 2012 the Directors had made the decision that the invesiment would be sold The iavestment at fair value of the
offered price of £4 2 million was classified as an asset held for sale at 31 December 2012 The sale completed an 27 March 2013

The major classes of assels and liabilitres classified as held for sale and discontinued operations are as follows

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
€ million £ mitlion
Current assets
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 189 72
Cash and cash equialents - 18
Other financial assets - 29
Trade and other receivables 0é -
Assets held for sale and discontinued operations 1195 1¢
Current Labilities
Provisions 92 98
Tax Liabilities 0é 0s
Trade and other payables - 0z
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale and discontinued operations e 105
Net assets classified as held tor sale and discontinued operations 109 7 14
DIVIDENDS
2013 02
€ milllen £ million
Equrty shares
- interim dividends proposed and paid of 0 077 pence per ordinary share (2012 - 0 077 pence} 03 03
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Computer
software
£ million
Originat cost
Balance at 1 January 2012 57
Additions 04
At 31 December 2012 61
Balance at | January 2013 61
Disposals (28)
At 31 Decemnber 2013 33
Accumulated amortisation
Balance at 1 January 2012 23
Charge for the year (%))
At 3% December 2012 (32)
Balance at 1 January 2013 {32}
Charge for the year {14
Disposals ze
At 31 December 2013 {20}
Carrying amount at 31 December 2013 13
Carrying amount at 31 December 2012 29
12 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and Computer Offlce
machinery LL 1 quipment Total
£ million £ millien € million £ milllon
Original cost
At 1 January 2012 01 16 30 47
Additions oS 16 19 40
Disposals - 01} (20) (2 1)
AL 31 December 2012 [ 31 29 b
At 1 January 2813 0 31 29 LX]
Addiions - - 01 a1
Disposals (0 &) {0 3) (03) (12)
At 31 December 2013 - 28 27 56
Accumulated depreciatien
At 1 January 2012 o1 (o 27 (38}
Charge for the year @1 (0 6} [{1.X3)] (n
Disposals - o1 20 21
At 31 December 2012 02) [SB)] (an (2 8)
At t january 2013 (02) (195 an @8
Charge for the year [(RD] (07 {04) (12)
Disposals 03 03 o1 a7
At 31 December 2013 - (19 (14) [&H
Carrying amount at 31 December 2013 - Dy 13 22
Carrying amount at 31 December 2012 04 18 18 38

( Financial Statements } Governance
i
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13 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

i4

213 2012
Project Investment

companles mn JLIF Total Jetal

€ million £ mition £ million £ millien

At 1 January 538 7 372 575 ¢ 5413
Loan repayments (55 - {5 5) (54)
Investment in equity and loans 1185 - 1185 1211
Movement in accrued interest 108 - 108 14
Disposals (110 1) - (110 1) (133 8)
Upstream loan 01 - 01 33)
Exchange movements on loans * (01) - on am
Fair value movement * 927 28 952 45 4
At 31 December 645 1 397 586 8 575 ¢
Continuing 524 2 377 565 9 5687
Assets held for sale {see note ) 118 % - 118 ¢ 72

* Total fair value movemenl in the year £95 1 million (2012 - E44 6 mitlion)

Buning the year the Group sold its tnterest in five project companies (see nate 4 for further details)

There were no changes in the Group s investmant in JLIF in 2013 However after taking into account JLIF s 1ssue of new shares in
2013 the Group s equity tnterest wn JLIF reduced to 4 5% (2012 - 6 7%) The market vatue of the investment in JLIF at 31 December

2013 was £39 7 million (2012 - £37 2 rmullion)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 December 3% Decamoer
2013 012
£ milllon € million
Current assets

Trade receivables 81 83
Qther taxation 02 g2
Other recewvables 83 43
Prepaymenis and accrued income 17 55
183 193

Non-current assels
Other recewvables and accrued income 41 08

In the opinion of the Directors the fair value of trade and other receivables is equal to the carrying value
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
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The carrying amounts of the Group s trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ million £ million

Sterling 200 179
Canadian dellar 04 0s
US dollar 02 01
Australian dollar 15 04
Euro Q3 12
224 201

Included in the Group s trade receivatbles are debtors with a carrying value of £0 2 mitlion (2012 - £3 1 mulbion) which were overdue
at the reporting date The Group has not provided for these debtors as there has not been a significant change in their credit
quality since the amounts became overdue and they are still considered fully recaverable The Group dees not hold any collateral

aganst these balances

Ageing of overdue but not iImpaired trade receivables

31 December 31 December

2013 201z

£ million £ million

Up to 60 days 02 22
40-90 days - 04
Over 90 days - 05
Total 02 31

Included in the Group s trade receivables are debtors with a carrying value of £rul (2012 - £0 2 million) which were impaired at the

reporiing date

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
£ million £ million

Current
Cash and cash equivaients 46 4 574
Dther financial assets 94 18
55 8 49 4

Ovarview

Strategic Report

The balances shown above de not include cash balances held in discontinued operatiens which are disclosed in note 9

Other financial assets compnse restricted cash held in deposit accounts which the Group cannot readily access
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16 TRADE AND QTHER PAYABLES

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
£ milllon £ milign
Current trabilities
Trade payables 131 22 6
Other taxation 08 24
Accruals B& 135
Other payables - 01
Deferred income o0& 68
227 45 4
17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a} Financial instruments by category
Assets at Detivatives
fair value that do not Financial
through qualify liabilities at 31 December
Loans and profit for hedge amortised 013
receivables or loss accounting cost Total
Contwnuing operations £ miition € milllon £ millien £ mittien L million
Fawr value measurement metheod nfa Level 1/3* Level 2 nfa
2013
Non-current assets
Investments at fair value through profit or loss™ - 565 ¢ - - 5659
Trade and other receivables - - - - -
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 16 2 - - - 1462
Other financial assels 94 - - - P4
Derivative financral instruments - - 05 - 05
Cash and cash equivalents Lé & - - - 46 4
Total inancial assets 720 545 ¢ 05 - 638 4
Current hlabiliias
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - - - (5 0) (60}
Trade and other payables - - - (215) (21 5)
Dervative financial instruments - - {0 1) - (01
Total financial liabilities - - [N B] (27 5) (27 6)
Net financial instruments 720 5459 04 (27 5) 410 8

The above table provides an anatysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to their imhial recognition at fair value

+ Level 1 fair vaiue measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjustied) in active markets for identical assets

or habilities

observable for the asset or Liability either directly (1 & as prices) or indirectly (i e derived from prices) and

-

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived frem inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are

Level 3 fair vatue measurements are those derived from valuation techmques that include inputs to the asset or hability that
are nol based on gbservable market data (unobservable inputs)

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the year Transiers out of Level 3 relating to the disposal of investments

are disclosed in note 13

* The assets at fair value through profit or loss are split between Level 1 JLIF which is a listad investment fair valued at £39 7 mullion (2012 - £37 2 mullion)
using quoted market prices and Level 3 invesiments in preject companies fair valued at £526 2 miltion (2012 - £531 5 mullion)
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17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

a) Financial instruments by category (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of financiat assets and babilities
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An analysis of the movement between opensng and closing balances of assets at fair value through profit ar lass 1s given

In note 13

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial lizbitrtises 1n these financial statemnenis reflect their far values

Overview
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Assets at Oerivatives
fair value that do not Financiat
through quality liabilities at 31 December
Loans and profit for hedge amoriised 2
recewvatbles or loss accounting cost Total
Continuing operations £ million € millign £ miition £ mitlion € mitlion
Farr value measurement method nfa Level 1/3 Level 2 nfa
2012
Non-current assets
Investment at fair value through profit or loss - 568 7 - - 568 7
Trade and other recewvables - - - - -
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 191 - - - 191
Other financiat asssts 118 - - - 118
Cash and cash equivalents 57 6 - - - 376
Total financial assets 885 558 7 - - 657 2
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables - - - (362) (36 2)
Derivative financial instruments - - 02) - (02)
Total financial Liahilities - - (02} (36 2} (35 4)
Net financial instruments B85 S48 7 02) (36 2) 6208
b} Foreign currency and interest rate profile of financial assets
Contlnuing operations Continuing operations
31 December 2013 31 Decamber 2012
Financial assets Financial assels
Floating Non-interest Floating Naon-interest
rate bearing Total rate bearing Tetal
Currency £ million £ million € million £ mitlion £ mittron E millon
Sterling 522 150 68 2 514 213 727
Euro 01 14 15 04 22 28
Canadian doliar - 07 07 05 0s 11
US dollar - 03 03 - 03 03
Australian dollar - 17 17 - 10 10
New Zealand dollar - 01 a1 103 01 104
Other - - - - 1 0z
Total 523 202 725 628 257 885

Foreign currency risk on investments at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed in note 18 There 1s ne direct interest rate
risk on investments at fair value threugh profit or loss

[ Financial Statements W Governance
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17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

¢) Foreign currency and interest rate profile of financial babilities

The Group financial Uabilities at 31 December 2013 were £27 & rullion (2012 - £346 4 million) of which €6 0 millien (2012 - nnt)
retated to short-term cash borrowings

Continuing operations Continuing pperations
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Financlal Uakilities Financial latilities
Fixed Non-Interest Non interest

rate bearing Total beanng Tatal
Currency € million £ miltien £ melon £ rmillion £ mullicn
Sterling 50 154 28 328 328
Euro - 38 ER:] 156 15
Australian dollar - 21 21 il 1M
Canadian dollar - a1 01 04 04
U5 dellar - - - 04 g
Total 50 21 % 27 6 364 364

18 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group s activities expoese It ta a vaniety of financial risks market risk {(including foreign exchange rate risk interest rate nisk
inflation risk) credit sk price risk Liqusdity risk and capital sk The Group s overall risk management pregramme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks lo mimimise patential adverse effects on the Group s financial performance
The Group uses derwvative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures

For the parent company and its recourse subsidiaries financial nsks are managed by a central treasury operation which gperates
within Board approved policies The various types of financial risk are managed as follows
Market risk - foreign currency exchange rate risk

As at 31 December 2013 the Group held investments in 12 overseas projects The Group s foretgn currency exchange rate risk
policy 1s not to hedge on an indiwvidual project basis but to determine and manage the total Group exposure to individual
currencies The Group s exposure o exchange rate nisk on its investments 1s disclosed in note 17

In additien the Group policy on managing fereign currency exchange rate risk is to cover significant transactional exposures
anising from receipts and payments in foreign currencies, where appropriate and cost effective There were eight forward currency
contracts open as at 31 December 2013 (2012 - two)

As at 31 December 2013 the Group s most significant foreign currency exposure was to the Euro
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18 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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Market risk - foreign currency exchange rate nisk (continued)

Fereign currency exposure of investments at fair value through profit or loss

31 December
31 December 2013 02

Project |avestment
companies in JLIF Total Total
£ million £ mittion € millron E million
Sterling 3334 97 3733 423 9
Euro 142 5 - 142 5 90 4
Australian doltar 190 - 190 154
Canadian dotlar - - - 139
Us dollar 24 8 - 248 200
MNew Zealand dollar 63 - &3 54
526 2 377 565 ¢ 568 7

The carrying amounts of the Group s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liablities at the reporting date were as follows

Assets Liabitities
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2003 2012 201 2012
£ million £ million £ milllen € mulien
Canadian dollar 07 11 {01} 04
Euro 15 Z8 (38) (15
Czech koruna - 01 - -
New Zealand doilar 01 104 - -
US dollar 013 03 - (0 6}
Australian doilar 17 10 (21) an
Other - 01 - -
43 58 (6 0) (36)

The following table details the Group s sensitmty to a 10% increase or decrease in Sterling against relevant foreign currencies The

sensitivity analysis covers outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items A negative number below indicales a
decrease n profit from eperatrons where the relevant currency weakens by 10% against Sierling {and a positive number indicates
anincrease In profit from operations) For a 10% strengthening of the relevant currency against Sterling there would be an egual
and opposite impact an profit from operations and the negative balances below would be pasitive (and vice versa)

2013 2012

£ miilion £ mullion

Canadian doliar 01 (on
Eurc 02 omn
New Zealand dollar - o
01 a2

The Group s sensitivity to foreign currency exchange rate movermnents excluding investments at far value threugh profit or loss
separaiely disclosed above 1s mainly due to net Liabilities heid in Euro The marginal decrease in sensitvity during the year (s
manly due to lower monetary assets held in New Zealand doltars

Investments in project comparies are fair valued based on the spot rate at the balance sheet date As at 31 December 2813, 3 10%
weakening of the relevant currency against Sterting would increase the value of investments at fair value through profit or loss by
£17 5 milion A 10% strengthening of the relevant currency against Sterling would reduce the valee by £21 4 mullion
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18 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Market risk - interest rate rnisk

The Group s interest rate risk arises due to fluctuations in interest rates which impact on the value of returns frem floating rate
deposits and expose the Group to variability in interest payment cash flows on vartable rate borrowings

The exposure of the Group s financial assets to interest rate risk 1s as follows

3% December 2013 1 December 2012
Interest bearing Interest bearing
Floating Fixed Non-interest Floating Fixed Non interest
rate rate bearing Total rate rale bearning Total

£ miilion € million € mitllan £ mitlon £ million £ million £ mithien E millien

Financial assets
Investments at fair value through

profil or toss - - 545 % 565 9 - - 568 7 568 7
Derwvative financial instruments - - as 05 - - - -
Trade and other recewables - - 162 162 - - 191 191
Other financial assets LXY - - ¢4 118 - - 118
Cash and cash equivalents (1.3 - - 46 & 510 - b6 576
Financial asset exposure

to interest rate risk 558 - 5824 638 4 628 - 594 4 657 2

An analysis of the movement between opening and closing batances of investments at fair value threugh profit or loss 1s given in
nole 13 The investments are valued en a discounted cash flow basis The weighted average discount rate was ? 3% (2012 - 8 6%)
For investment in project compames changing the discount rate used o value the underly:ng instruments would alter their fair
value As al 31 Decernber 2013 a 1% increase in the discount rate would reduce the fair value by £52 4 million (2012 - £56 8 mullion)
and a 1% reduction in the discount rate would increase the far value by £61 3 million (2012 - £47 & milion)

The exposure of the Group s financial Liabilities to inlerest rate risk is as follows

31 Pecember 2012 31 December 2012
interest bearing nterest bearing
Floating Fixed Non-interest Floating Fixad Non interest
rate raie bearing Total rate rate bearing Total
£ miltlon € miltion € milllon £ million E mullion £ million E mittion E mitlion
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - &0 - 60 - - - -
Trade and cther payables - - 215 215 - - 362 362
Dervative financial instruments - - 01 ot - - 02 02
Finantial bability exposure
to interest rate risk - 50 214 2746 - - 364 34

The sensitivily analysis below has been determined based on a 1% Increase in interest rates prevailing at 31 December 2013 and

a decrease to 0% For all floating rate assets and Liabilities the analysis has been prepared assuming the balances have been
outstanding for the whole year thaugh in practice thase balances are subject Lo fluctuations due to regular settlement

and replacement

2013 202

Profit Proht

before tax before tax

€ million € millen

Increase by 1% D& [
Decrease by 1% (or a minimum of 0% interest rate) (0 3) (02}
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18 FINANCIAL RiSK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED}

Market risk - inflation risk

The Group has lirmited direct exposure to infiatton risk but the fair value of investments s determined by future revenue and costs
which are linked to inflatien This results in the fair value of investments being sensitive to inflation which 1s often mitigated by the
preject company entering into inflation swaps

Credit risk

Credit sk s managed on a Group basis Credit risk arises irom a combination of the value and term to settlement of balances
due and payabie with counterparties for both financial and trade transactions

tn order {o muninwse credit risk cash investments and dervative transactions are lirited to financial mstitutions of a suitable
credit quality and counterparties are carefully screened The Group s cash balances are invested in Uine with a policy approved by
the Board capped with regard to counterparty credit ralings

A significant mayority of the project companies in which the Group invesis recerve revenue frem government departments public
sector or local authenty clients and/or directly from the public for example, via the collection of tolls As a result these projects
tend not to be exposed to significant credit risk which impacts on the fair vatue of the Group s investments

Price risk

The Group has Limited direct expesure to price nisk with the exception of the share price of JLIF which 1s valued at the clesing
marketl price In addition the fair vaiue of many project companies in which the Greup invests is dependent on the receipt of fixed
fee income from government departments public sectar or local avthority clients As a result these projects tend not to be
exposed to price risk The Group holds investments in renewable energy projects whose fair value may vary according to forward
energy prices At 31 December 2013 this rnisk was not significant because a substantial proportion of renewable energy projects
were held at valuations agreed with a future purchaser

Liquidity risk

The Group adopts a prudent approach to bquidity management by maintaining sufficient cash and available committed {acilities to
meet sts current and upcoming obligations

The Group s Llguidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and assessing the level of liquid assets

necessary t¢ meet these Managing liguidity risk 1s helped by the predictability in bath value and timing of cash flows to and from
preject companies in which the Group invests

Maturity of financial assets

The maturity profile of the Group s financial assets 1s as follows

Continulng operatlons Continuing pperatiens
31 December 20%3 31 Decemter 2012

Lessthan Greaterthan Less than Greater than

one year one year Totat one year ane year Tatat

£ million £ millien £ million £ million £ million € rulbien
Derwative financial snstruments 05 - 05 - - -
Trade and other recewables 162 - 1462 191 - 191
Other financial assets T4 - g4 118 - [AE:)
Cash and cash equivalents &b 4 - &b & 57 6 - 57 4
Fiancial assets (excluding thvestments
at fair value through profit or loss} 725 - 725 88 S - 889
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Other than certain trade and other recervables as detailled in note 14 none of the financial assets i1s either overdue or impaired

|
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18 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Maturity of financial assets (continued)

The matunity profile of the Group s financiat biabilities is as follows

31 December 31 December

013 2012

Total Tatal

£ miltion £ multion

In one year or less or on demand (27 &} (36 4)
In more than ene year but less than two years - -
In more than two years but less than five years - -
In mare than five years - -
Total (27 &) {38 4)

The foliowing table details the remairing contractual matunity of the Group s financiat liabilities The table reflects the

undiscounted cash flows relating to financal babhities based on the earliest date on which the Group is required to pay The lable
in¢cludes both interest and principal cash flews

Weighted In more In maore
average {n one than one year than two years In more
efiective year but less than but less than than
interest rate or Less two years five years five years Total
% £ million £ mitlien £ millien £ millien £ millien
31 December 2012
Fixed interest rate instruments -
loans and borrowings 5 (60) - - - wn
Non-interest bearing instruments* n/a (21 48) - - - (214)
{27 &) - - - (27 6)
Weighted In more in more
average In cne than one year  than tweo years In more
effective year byt less than but less than than
interest rate or less w0 years five years five years Total
£ million £ miilion £ million £ mitlian E milbon
31 December 2012
Non-interest bearing instruments® nfa (34 4) - - - (36 4)
(34 4) - - - (36 4}

* Moh-interest bearng Instruments relate to trade and other payables and denvative financial instruments
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Maturity of financial assets {continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual maturity of the Group s net dervative financial instruments The table
reflects the undiscounted net cash flows relating to denvative instrurnents that settle on a net basis

Weighted In more in more
average In one than one year than two years In more
ettective year but less than but less than than
interest rate or less two years frve years tive years Total
% £ millien £ million £ million £ mllion £ million
31 December 2013
Forward exchange contracts nfa 04 - - - 04
0a - - - 04
Weighted In more In more
avarage In ona than one year than two years In more
eftective yeat but less than but less than than
nterest rate or less two years five years five years Totat
£ mithion £ millier £ milion £ milhien £ mithon
31 December 2012
Forward exchange contracts n/a (02) - - - (02)
(02) ~ - - (02}

Capital risk

The Group seeks to adopt efficient financing structures that enable 1t to manage capital effectively to achieve the Group s
objectives without putting shareholder value at nsk The Group s capital structure comprises its equity (as set out in the Group
Statement of Changes in Equity) and its net borrowings

The Group has requirements for both borrowings and lelters of credit which at 31 December 2013 were met by a £305 0 million
syndicated committed revelving credit facility (2012 - a combination of a £305 0 million syndicated commutted revelving credit
facility, two bilateral commutted facibities for leans, letters of credit and financial guarantees of £19 4 million and an uncommitted
overdraft facility repayable on demand of £5 0 mtllion) The committed facilities are summarised below

Cverview
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2013 2012
Letters of Lettars of

Total Leans credit Totak Total Leans credn Tetal

facility drawn drawn undrawn facility drawn drawn undrawn

£ millron € millien £ million £ million £ mithion £ mibon £ million £ mullign
Syndicated committed revalving credit

facitity (with letter of credit option) 3050 50 5% 9 1391 3050 - 175 4 129 6
Bitateral letter of credit and financial

guarantee lacilities - - - - 194 - 11 9 17

3050 60 159 9 1391 324 6 - 187 3 1373

A committed revolving credit facility of £285 0 mullion was entered into on 20 February 2013 which increased to £305 0 million on
29 October 2013 and can be used erther for drawing down loans capped at any one ttme to £150 mitlion or for 1ssuing letters of
credit The total facility of £305 0 rullion exptres on 20 February 2617

Of the letters of credit drawn, £158 8 miltion (2012 ~ £181 8 million) back future capital and loan commitments and £§ 1 million
(2012 - £5 5 million) relate to performance and bid bonds

f
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19

20

FAIR VALUE OF DERIVATIVES

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
£ million £ million
Derivatives
Current assets
Foreign exchange derivative instruments 0% -
Current Labilities
Foreign exchange derivative instruments (01 2
Total fair value of derivatives 04 02)

The derivatives have been fair vatued in accordance with the Group s accounting policies

Buring 2013 fair valve movements relating to swaps outside hedging relationstups of £0 & million (2012 - £0 2 million) were
recognised in the Group Income Statement As at 31 December 2013 there were no designated hedges held by the Group

In accordance with its foreign exchange hedging policy at 31 December 2013 the Group had entered inta eight forward foreign
exchange contracts Of these two constituted a 50% hedge of expected Euro denominated currency proceeds from the expected

future sale of an asset Afurlher two represented a hedge against 50% aof Euro currency investment exposure The rematning four

contracts cavered marg:n risk on the Group s potential exposure to cash borrowings These contracis have a rollng maturity of
up to three months None of the contracts were designated as hedges under 1AS 39 Changes in the fair value of each contract

at 31 December 2013 were recogrused in the Group Income Statement

DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group and movements therain for the year ended

31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012

Deferred tax on
the falr value
of joint ventures

Other
deductible
temporary

differences
and tax losses

and associates recognised Total

£ millen £ mitllen £ miltion

Opening asset at 1 January 2012 - L9 19

(Charge)/credit o income - prior year (18 3) 205 22

Charge to income - current year - (22) (22)

Opening (Lability)/asset at 1 Janvary 2013 {18 3} 202 19

Charge to income - prior year - (01) (01)

{Charge)/credit to income - current year {5 8) 57 (01)

Arising on disposals and other movements - (02) (02)

Closing (Liability)/asset at 31 December 2013 (24 1) 254 15
Netting of deferred tax balances

2013 202

£ million £ million

Deferred tax assets 254 202

Deferred tax Labitities (24 1) (183)

Net deferred tax on continuing eperations disclosed on the Group Balance Sheet t5 19

A deferred tax asset of £24 1 million (2012 - £18 3 mitlion) has been recognised on £120 4 million of carried forward lax losses

This asset has been offset against a deferred tax liability of £24 1 rullion (2012 - £38 3 mullion) relating 1o £120 4 million (2012 ~

£7% 5 million) of future interest receivable from investments held at fair value

The Group has unrecagrised tax losses of £39 2 million (2012 - £48 8 million) available for offset against future profits A deferred tax
asset has not been recognised In respect of these losses Under present tax legislation these losses ray be carned forward indefinitely
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21 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Relirement benefit obligations

31 December 31 Decemper

20172 2nmz2

£ millien £ millian

Pension plans (194 B} (182 8}
Fost retirement medical benefits (7 8) (72)
Retirement benefit obligations (204 &) {189 8)

a} Pension schemes

John Laing operates two defined benefit pension schemes in the UK { the Schemes ) - The John Laing Pension Fund ( the
Fund ) and The fohn Laing Pension Plan { the Plan ) The Fund was clesed 1o future accrual from 1 Apnit 2011 Neither
Scheme has any active members only deferred members and pensioners The assets of both Schemes are held in separate
trustee-admirustered funds

Staff employed since 1 January 2002, who are entitled to retirement benefits, can choose to be members of a defined
contribution stakehclder scheme sponsored by the Group in conunction with Legal and General Assurance Society Limited

The Fund

An actuarial valuation of the Fund was carried cut as at 31 March 2013 by a qualified independent actuary Towers Watson
At that date the Fund was 75% funded on the technical provision funding basis This valuation took into acceunt the
Contnuous Martality Invest:gation Bureau projections of mortality The next trienmal actuarial valuation of the Fund 15 due
as at 31 March 2016

During 2013 John Laing made deficit reduction contnibutions of £25 2 mitlion (2012 - €23 4 mithien) in cash in 2011 deficn
reduclion contribultons included PPP assets to the valve of £5 9 million The Company has guaranteed te fund any cumulative
shortfall in forecast project yield payments from these PPP assets up until 2017 but considers it unlikely thal a net shortfall
will arise This guarantee is consistent with similar guarantees provided in respect of contribulions made in the form of
shares in PPP assets in prior perieds Under the schedule of contributions the deficit reduction contribution for 2044 will be
£26 1 mitlion and will increase by 3 55% per annum thereafter to 2023 unless agreed otherwise by the Company and the
Fund s corparate Trustee until the deficit has been eliminated

The habitity at 31 December 2013 allows for indexation of deferred pensions and post 5 April 1988 GMP pension increases
based on the Censurmer Price Index ( CPH)

The Plan

Na contributions were made to the Plan in 2013 At its last actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2011 the Plan had assets of
€12 1 mullion and Labiliies of £10 1 rullion resulting in an actuanal surplus of £2 0 mithion The next triennial actuanal
valuation of the Plan 1s due as at 31 March 2014

An analysis of members at 31 December 2013 1s shown below

Deferrad Pensioners Total

The Fund 5,094 3,673 8,767
The Plan 134 306 &40

Cverview
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21 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
a) Pension schemes (continued)

The weighled average financial assumptions used in the valuation of the Fund and the Plan under |1AS 1% at 31 December were

2012 012 201

% % %

Discount rate 450 4 40 500
Rate of increase in nen-GMP pensions in payment 108 270 295
Rate of increase in nen-GMP pensions in deferment 230 1806 200
Inflatien - RPY 330 280 295
Inflauon - CPF 230 200 200

The value of the Fund deficit 1s lighly dependent upon these assumptions and may vary significantly from year to year
The impact of possible future changes to some of the assumptions 1s shown below (without taking into account any inter
relationstup between the assumptions) in practice there woutd be inter-relatronshups between the assumptions The
anatysis has been prepared in comjunction with the Group s actuary and has been prepared consistently period on period

{Increase}/decrease in pension
Uabilities at 31 December 2012

before deferred tax
Increase in Decrease In
assumption assumptlon
£ millien € miltion
0 25% on discount rate 342 (361)
0 25% on intlation rate (26 2) 251
1 year post relirement longevity (27 4) 292

Mortality

Mortality assumplions at 31 Decemnber 2013 were based on the following tables published by the Continuous Mortality
Investigation Bureau

- SAPS norrnal year of birth tables for staff members with CMI 2013 projections wilth a long term trend rate of 1% per annum
- SAPS light year of barth tables for executive members with CM| 2013 projections with a teng term trend rate of 1% per annum

Mortality assumptions al 31 December 2012 were based on the following tables published by the Continuous Mortality
Investigation Bureau

- Mortality before retirernent - AMCO and AF00 ultimate martality table for men and women respectively

- Mortality after retirement - SAPS normal year of birth tables with medium cohort projections and a minimum improvement
of 1% per annum in future longevity of staff members

— Mortabity after retirement - SAPS light year of birth tables with medium cohort projections and a minimum improvement of
1% per annumn in future longewvity of executive members

The table betow summarises the weighted average life expectancy implied by the mortality assumptions used

013 mz 2011
Years Years Years
Life expectancy « for an active/deferred member reaching age 65
Males 29 223 223
Females 254 251 251
Life expectancy - tor a 45 year old pensioner
Males 2179 213 212

Females 243 241 240
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21 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS {(CONTINUED)

a) Pension schemes (continued)

The major categortes fa:r values and percentages of assets held by the Schemes at 31 December were as follows

2013 2012
£ million % £ mition %
Bond and other debt instruments
UK corporate bonds 104 & 154 5
UK government gilts 832 46
UK government gilts - index linked 126 2 126 &
2938 35 2857 3946
Eqinty instruments
UK listed equities 108 2 693
Eurcpean listed equities 193 124
US listed equities jes 261
International listed equities 50 1 N7
216 4 283 1395 193
Arriva bulk annuity buy 1n agreement 207 2 271 2000 279
Property
Retall property 23 213
Commercial property 54 14 8
Industrial property §2 173
141 18 534 74
Derivatives
Inflation swaps 29 38
29 B4 38 (05)
Cash and equivalents 122 17 162 22
UK PPP assets 170 22 297 41
Total market value of assets Toé & 1000 7217 1000
Present value of Schemes lizhilities {958 0) (900 4)
Deficit in the Schemes {193 &) (7 hn
Less unrecoverable surplus in the Plan (3 &) 39
Net pension Liability {196 8) (182 &)

Virtually all equity and debt instruments have quoted prices in active markets (Levet 1) Derwvatives can be classified as Level 2
instruments and property and PPP assets as Level 3 instruments [t 1s the policy of the Fund to use inflation swaps to hedge 1ts
exposure to inflatton nsk The Trustee invests in return seeking assets such as equity and PPP whelst balancing the risks of
inflatien and interest rate movernents through the annuity buy-in agreement inflaben swaps and interest rate hedging

Iy February 2009 the Fund Trustee entered inie a bulk annuity buy-in agreement with Aviva to mitigate the Fund s exposure to
changes in iabilities At 31 December 2013 the underlying insurance policy was valued at £207 2 million (2012 - £2G1 @ miltion)
being very substantially equal to the I1AS 19 valuation of the related liabilities

Analysis of amounts charged to operating profit

2012 2012
£ million £ mithon
Current service cost® {(t7 nn

* The Schemes no longer have any active members Therefore under the projected urit method of valuation the current service cost for the Fund will incraase
as & percentage of penstonable payroll as the members approach relrement The current service cost has been included within administrative expenses

Dverview
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21 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS {CONTINUED)
a) Pension schemes (continued}

Analysis of amounts charged to finance costs

2013 2012
£ milllen £ mifhon
Interest on Schemes assets Nsé 342
Interest on Schemes Liabiities {38 8} (41 t)
Net charge to finance costs £{72) (&6 %}
Analysis of amaunt recegrused in Group Slatement of Comprehensive Income
2013 2012
£ million £ milbion
Return on Schemes assets (excluding amounts included in interest on Schemes assets above) 301 123
Experience {loss)/gain arising on Schemes habiities (307) 03
Changes in demographic assumptions underlying the present value of the Schemes lLabilities 51 -
Changes 1a financiat assumptions underlying the present value of the Schemes lLatilities {25 6) (57 7)
Decrease 1n unrecoverable surplus 04 a3
Actuarnial loss recognised 1n Group Statement of Comprehensive Income {307 (44 8)
Movement in deferred tax assel - -
Actuarial loss recognised in Group Statement of Comprehensive Income {307) {44 8)
Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations
013 2012
£ mitlion £ mithon
Opening defined benefit obligation (900 &) {841 2)
Current service cost (S I an
Interest cost (38 8) [CAIRD]
Experience (loss)/gain on Schemes liabilities (307) 03
Changes in demographic sssumptons underlying the present value of the Schemes labilities (51) -
Changes in financial assumptions underlying the present value of Lhe Schemes Liabilities (28 &) (577}
Benefits paid &4 3 40 4
Closing defined benefit obligation (958 0} (200 4)
The weighted average life of the Fund at the end of the reporting period 1s 16 years (2012 - 19 years based on actuanal
valuation at 31 March 2010)
Changes in the fair value of Schermes assels
2013 2012
£ millien £ matiron
Opening fair value of Schemes assets 17 912
Interest on Schemes assets L) 342
Return on Schemes assets (excluding amounts included in interest on Schemes assets above) kL) 123
Contributions by employer 55 2L 4
Benefits paid {44 3) (40 4)
Closing fair value of Schemes’ assets 764 6 7217
Analysis of the movement in the deficit during the year
2013 2012
£ million £ milbon
Opening deficit (178 7) (150 0)
Current service cost an 01
Other finance cost {7 2) [CRA]
Contributions 55 24 4
Actuarial loss * (31 3) {45 1)
Deficitin Schemes at 21 December (193 4) (178 %)
Less unrecoverable surplus in Plan (34 39
Pension deficit at 31 December (194 8) (182 4}

* excluding the \ncrease in unrecoverable surplus in the Plan

The cumulative amount of lass recogmsed in the Group Statement of Changes in Equity 15 £361 3 mullion (2012 - £330 6 million)
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21 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

a)

b)

Pension schemes {continued)

History of the weighted average experience gains and losses

013 2012
Difference between actual and expected returns on assets
Amount (£ millien} 301 123
% of Schemes assets 39 17
Expenence {loss}/gain on $chemes’ Liabilities
Amount (E millien) 307} 03
% of present value of Schemes lLebilites a2 -
Total ameunt recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income {(excluding deferred tax)
Amount (£ rullien) (307 (44 B)
% of present value of Schemes lLabilities 32 50
Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows
2013 2012 2014 2010 2009
L muluon E million £ milign £ muthon £ millign
Present vatue of Schemes Liablities {%58 0) (700 &) (8412) (824 5} (804 4)
Market value of Schemes assets 764 & 2y 6912 658 9 6127
Deficit (after unrecoverable surplus in Plan) (196 8) (182 &) (154 2) {169 0} (195 8)
Experience (loss)/gain on Schemes Liabilities 3n D3 B2 85 (0 4)
% of present vatue of Schemes Liabilities 32% - 08% 1 0% -
Experience gain/(loss) on Schemes assets 01 123 108 268 (59)
% of Schemes assets 3 9% 17% 1 6% 4 1% 10%

Post retirement medical benefits

The Company provides post retirement medical insurance benefits to 65 past employees This scheme which was closed to
new members in 1991 13 unfunded

The present value of the future tabilities under this arrangement has been assessed by the scheme actuary Towers Watson
and has been included n the Group Balance Sheet under retirement benefit obligations as follows

Overview

Slrategic Report

Gowerpance
|

Financial Staterments )

2013 2812

£ million £ million

Post retirement medical Liability at 1 January (72) (6 8)
Other finance costs 0 (03)
Contriutions 04 04
Actuarial loss recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive income (05) [()]
Post retirement medical lability at 31 December (7 8) (72)

The annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of medical benefits was assumed to be 4 5% in 2013 It 1s expected to
increase in 2014 and thereafier at 5 7% per annum

Medical costinflation has & significani effect on the hability reported fer this scheme A 1% change in assumed medical cost
inflation would result in the following cests and liabibity

1% Increase 1% decrease
£ milllen € mullian
Post retirement medical Liability (8 &) [CR))]

Aggregate of the serwce and finance cost (03) (03)

|
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22

23

24

PROVISIONS
Charge/
(eredil)
On to Group At
At | Jenuary Unwinding  dispesal of Income December
2013 of discouni subsidiaries  Statement Utilised 2013
£ millicn £ milbon £ million £ mittion £ mullion £ miltion
Retained hiabilities 98 02 14 12 (0 4) 92
Onerous contracts 30 - ny (15) on 01
Employee related labdities 0i - - - - 01
Onerous property leases 20 01 - - (0 2} 1%
Yotal provisions 149 Q3 29 {03 o7 113
Classified as
Continuing operalions 51 21
Misconuinued operations (see note 9) 98 ¥2
Provisions en continuing eperatiens are analysed as
Non-current provisions 32 21
Current provisions 19 -
51 21

Provisions for retained hiabilities relate to disposed businesses, £9 2 million of which relates to the sale of Laing Construction in
2001 (2012 - £8 1 millien) These amounts are assessed reqularly on a contract by contract basis and are expected to be utihised
over the next few years At 31 December 2012 there was an additional prowision of £1 5 million which has reduced to £ml at

31 December 2013 following the disposal of the caplive insurance business

At 31 December 2012 a provisian in respect of an onerous property lease of £1 9 million was classified as a current Liability as it
was management sintention that this lablity would be settled in 2013 This provision has now been ¢lassified as a non-current

Dability as 1t is unlikely to be settied in 2014

SHARE CAPITAL
2013 2012
No No
Authonised
Ordinary shares of £0 25 each 470,605,252 470 605 252
£ mittion £ mitiron
Allotted, called up and fully paid
391 742 514 ordinary shares of €0 25 each 97 9 79

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no night 1o fixed income

CAPITAL RESERVE

At an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 29 January 2007 shareholders approved a resclution to reduce the
Company s share premium account by £124 1 million and create a special capital reserve This was approved by the High Court
on 14 February 2007 In 2012, an amount of £23 1 million was transferred to disiributable reserves out of the special capital
reserve As a result the balance on the special capital reserve reduced to zero at 31 December 2012
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NOTES 7O THE GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT
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2013 2012

£ million £ miltion
Profit before tax 1258 80§
Adjustments for
Finance costs 183 196
Discontinued operations cash flows 07 06
Unrealised profit arising on changes in fair value of investments in project companies (note 13} {?51) (44 &)
Other gains and losses (note 6) {218) (107
Depraciation of plant and equipment 12 11
Armortisation of intangible assets 14 09
Contributian to pension fund {255) (24 6)
Decrease in pravisions (18) (03
Operating cash flows before mevements in working capntal 14 229
Increase tn trade and other recewvables (23 6) ()]
Decrease in trade and other payables {08) 40
Cash (outflow)/inflow from operations (210) 36
Income taxes received 52 17
Net cash (outtlow)/inflow from operating activities (15 8) 53
RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO THE GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2013 2012

£ milllon £ millien
Cash and cash eguivalents in the Group Balance Sheet 48 4 5746
Cash and ¢ash equivalents in assets held for sale and discontinued operations {note 9} - 18
Cash and cash equivalents in the Group Cash Flow Statement 46 & £ 4

GUARANTEES, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
At 31 December 2013 the Company was a guarantor under the Group s £305 million committed revolving credit facility dated

20 February 2013 as amended on 29 October 2013 At 31 December 2013 the total amount utilised under this facility was

£165 9 mullion (2012 - £187 3 mullion)

The Group has future equity and loan commitments of £164 7 mulkion (2012 - £192 1 milbian) in PPP projects that are backed by

letters of credit of £158 8 million and collateralised cash of £7 9 million

As stated in note 21 a) the Company provides guarantees in respect of PPP assets transferred to JLPF in setttement of annual

contribution obligations

The Group has given guarantees to lenders of a normal trading nature including performance bonds some of which may be

payable on demand

Claims anise in the narmal course of trading which in some cases involve or may invalve Lligation Full provision has been made
1n these accounts for alt amounts which the Directors consider will become payable on account of such claims

As at 31 December 2013 ihe Group had outstanding comrmitments for future minimum lease payrenis under nen-cancellable

operating leases falling due as follows
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2013 2012

{and and
butldings Other Total Total
£ milllon £ million £ million £ mullion
Within cne year 14 o1 17 14
In the second to fifth years inclusive 56 - 56 46
Alter five years $2 - 92 161
164 01 145 221
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28 TRANSACTIONS WiTH RELATED PARTIES

29

Group

Details of transactions between the Group and other related parties are disclosed below

Trading transactions

During the year the Group entered into the foltowing trading transactions with project companies

w013 2012

£ million £ milhen

Services income * 122 622
Finante income 310 472
Diwidend income 100 122
Amounts owed by project companies 4046 267
Amounts owed to project companies (135) a9

* services iIncome Is generated from project companies through faciliies rmanagement contracts management services agreements and recoveries of bid costs

on financial close

In prior years, the Group has transferred ownership of a propartion of certain interests in PPP assets to JLPF as partial
consideration for agreed deficit reduction contributions More details are set out in note 21 As part of the transfer the Company
has guaranteed to pay any distribution shortfall to JLPF for the next four years

Loans to and from related parties

013 2012

€ mittlan £ millien

Subordinated debt loans to project companies 2901 2360
Loans from jeint ventures and associates 32) @3y
Mezzanine loan from JLPF to project company - (3 6)

The abeve loans are provided by and to the Group at markel rates of interest and are repayable in accordance with the terms of the
loan agreements

EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE
On 15 January 2014 the Group reached financial close on the NGR project in Australia

On & February 2014 the Group compieted the acquisition of a2 further 12% interest (n City Greenwich Lewisham Rail Link plc
increasing the Group s stake in this project to 52%
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2013

30 DISCLOSURE - SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Group has investments 1n project compantes recorded in the Group Batance Sheet at fair value through profit or loss The
majenty of these project companies operate service concession arrangements in the Socsat Infrastructure, Transport and
Environmental and utiities sectors The concessions vary as to the extent of their obligations but typically require the construction
and operation cf an asset during the concession peried The concessions may require the acquisition or replacement of an existing
assel or the construction of a new asset The operation of the assets may inctude the prowision of major maintenance and facilities
management services such as cleaning catening and caretaking Typically at the end of concession periods the assets are returned to
the concession owner however on two of the projects held at 31 December 2013 the project company has a right to retan the
concession asset

The nghts of the concessien owner and concesston operator are stated within the project agreements The nghts of the concession
owner include provisions to terminate the concession for poor performance of the contract by the aperator or in the event of force
majeure The rights of the operater ta terminate include the failure of the provider to make payment under the agreement a material
breach of contract and relevant changes of {aw which would render it impossible for the operator to fulfil its requirements

Short description Period of cancession Obligations to
% of cancession Mo propacty, plant
Sector Company nama Project name owned arrangement Start date End date years and equipment
Sacial Infrastructure
Hospitals Alder Hey {Special Alder Hey 40% Design build finance  01/07/20%5 10/06/2045 30 Construction
Purpase Vehicle) Children s and operate new of new hospital
Limited Hospital hosprial in Liverpool costing £147
million
Healthcare North Birrmengham 100%  Deswgn build finance  $5/08/2000 21/03/2037 37 Refurbishment and
Support Mental Health and operate mental construction at the
(Erdington) Hospitals health facilities All Sants &
Lirmited n Birmingham Highcraft Hospital
costing £12 million
SA Health New Royat 173% Design buld finance  DBS/11/2011  05/06/204s 35 Construction of
Partnership Adelaide and operale new new hospital
Nominees Pty Lid Hospital hospiial in Adelade costing
South Australia AUD $1 850 rmullion
Justice and Senvices Supporl BIP (Bruish S417% Design hwnld finance  26/03/1999  28/02/2022 23 Construciion costing
Emergency (BTP) Limsted Transporl Police) and operate ene office £2 mitlien
Services and operale a further
si1x BTP premises
Services Suppart Cleveland Firearms 27 08% Design buld finance 18/04/2000 31/03/2026 26 Construction costing
(Cleveland) and operate firearms £6 mitlian
Lirmited tramning facility in
Cleveland
Services Support Metropolitan Police  25% Design build finance 26010/2001  15/01/2029 27 Construction costing
(SEL) Lirmuted SEL and operate four police £80 rilban
stations in South East
Landon
Securefuture Win Win Prisen 30% Design builg finance  11/09/2012  17/05/2040 28 Canstruchion costing
Limited and operate a 960 place NZD $270 milbion
prison at Win
South Auckland
Defence Defence Support OARA Red Dragon  100%  Design buitd and 01/08/2003  1712/204% 14 Construction costing
(St Athan} Limited hinance arcraft £89 mullion
maintenance
facilities a1t RAF
St Athan
Regeneration  Inspiral Oldham Oldham Soctal 95% Returbish finance and  30/11/2011  30/11/203¢ 25 Construction costing
Limnited Housing operate sociat housing E68 1 mitlion
in Oldham
Regenter Exceltent Kirktees Social BO% Refurbish finance and  20/12/2011  30/09/2034 23 Construction costing
Homes for Life Housing aperate social housing £66 2 milhion
Limited in Kirklees
Regentar Myatts Lambeth Sociat 50% Build and refurbish 04/05/2012  04/05/2037 25 Construction
Fieid North Lig Housing finance and operate costing £72 & million
social housing in Lambeth
Netherlands DuoZ BV Groningen Tax Office 40% Design build finance  24/09/2008 140020317 22 Total expenditure

maintenance and
operation of new
butdings on behalf of

the State Buildings Office

in the Netherlands

of €133 mitlion
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2013

30 DISCLOSURE - SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Short description

Period of concesslon

Obligations to

% of concession No property, plant
Sectar Company name Project name owned arrangement Start date End date years and equipment
Transport
Roads CountyRoute A13D 100%  Design build finance  01/02/2000  31/01/2630 30 New build at a cost
(A130) plc and operate the A130 of £76 million
bypass linking the A12
and A127 in Essex
Gdansk Transport At Gdansk Potand 29 69% Design build inance  31/08/2004  24/08/2039 35 New build at a cost
Company SA and operate the Al of £451 million for
Moterway in Poland in phase 1 and
two phases E700 million
for phase 2
Severn Rwer Severn River 35% Design buld finance  26/04/1992  No later than The Cost approximately
Crossing Ple Crossing and operate a second 2600412022  earbier of £320 milbion
crassing over the Severn 30 years
River plus cperate and or until
mamntain existing apre-
crassing deterrmined
level of
revenue
achreved
MAK Mecsek Mé Hungary 30% Design construction 01/04/2010  NAN0/2037 28 Buitd and maintain
Autopalya refurtnshment aperation New expressways
Honcesszas 2t mamtenance and at a cost of
finanerng of 48 km €886 million
section of Mé expressway
and 32 krm of M40
exprassway
UK Highways ASS ASS 50% Design build finance 1471211998 15/12/2028 30 Build new trunk
Limited and operate the ASS a road and maintain
trunk read runrang existing Mena) and
acress the island of Britanrua bridges
Anglesey at a cost of
€102 mithon
A1 Mobile GmbH Al Germany 425% Constructand operate  Q4/08/2008  31/08/2038 30 New build at a cost
& Co K6 the Al Autobahn between of €417 1 million
Bremen and Kamburg in
Germany
A-Lanes A15BV Al5 28% Design buld hnance  091Z/2019  30/06/2035 25 Extension of road at
Netherlands and maintain the A15 Construction value
highway south of of £727 million
Rotterdam (aboul 40 km) Maintenance for 20
years costing In totat
€204 mithon (real)
Dhute Palesner NH3 Road 36% Desgn engineering 04/01/2010  03/01/2028 18 Build and maintain
Tollway Lirmited India finance construction highway at a cost
development operation ef NR1415Cr
and mantenance of a (£200 million}
96 5 km tour-lane
hghway from
Maharashtra-Madhya
Pradesh Border to
Dhule section gf the
National Highway 3
Rall City Greenwich Cily Greenwich 40% Construction and B1/10/19946  31/03/2021 25 Build 4 2 km
Lewisham tewisham (DLR) operation of extension of the DLR
Rail Link plc infraslructure on from Isle of Dogs to
Lewisham exiension Lewisham including
of the Dacktands bering ef tunnels
Light Raitway (DLR) beneath the Thames
at a costof
£205 million
Aylesbury Vale Aylesbury Vale 50% Construction and 17/08/2007 13/12/2028 21 Canstruction costing

Parkway Limited

Parkway

operation of the
Aylesbury Vale
Parkway Stat:an

€15 5 millon {af
which E11 0 million
Council-tunded) and
maintenance over
20 years
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Short description

Perlod of cancession
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Obligations to

% of concession No property, plant
Sector Company name Project name owned arrangement Start date £nd date years and equipment
Rail John Laing Rail Colestull Parkway  100%  Construction end 10/03/2006  18/08/2027 21 Construction costing
(continued) Infrastructure operation of the £7 1 million (of
Limited Coleshill Parkway which E5 million
Statian Councit-funded) and
maintenance over
20 years
Denver Transit Denver FasTracks  45% Design build finance 12/0B/2010  3112/2044 34 Consiruction costing
Partrners LLC maintenance and U551 27 bilbon
operation of passenger consisling of
rail systems in Denver 35 miles of
Colorade commuter train
iines inctuding
a commuler rait
maintenance tacility
and rail cars
Agility Trains IEP (Phase 1) 2% Celivery and 25/05/2012  28011/2044 33 Construction costing
West Lid {imitially maintenance of £4 820 mslbon over
A% intercity train services 6 years and
with an the Great Western mgirtenance
commut- Main Line (UK} using a costing £45 millton
ment  feet of new Super per annurm gver
tesell  Express Trains and 27 5 years
6% maintenance facibties
(Sale of
6% was
campleted
on 31
January
2013)
Strest Lighting  Surrey Lighting Surrey SL 50% Installation and 712009 28/02/2035 25 Repiacement
Services Limited maintenance of colurn programme
street lighting casting €78 &6 million
Croydon and Croydon & 50% Installation and 19/04/2011  31/07/2034 25 Replacement
Lewisham Lighting Lewisham SL maintenance of column programme
Services Lumited street {ighting cesting £74 2 million
Environmental
Utilities Coastal Clearwater Kinnegar 50% Design build finance  30/04/199%  30/04/72024 25 Upgrade at & cost
Limited and operate an upgrade of £12 mitlion
o a waste trealment
plant in Belfast
Waste INEOS Runcorn Manchester Waste 37 43% Design build finance  DB/C4/2009  07/04/2034 25 New waste CHP
{TPS) Limited TPS Co and operate a wasle plant censtruction
CHP plant in Runcorn costing £233 million
Virdor Laing Manchester Waste  50% Design build and 08/04/2009 07/04/2034 25 New wdaste
{Greater VLCo commission 42 facilities processing faciliies
Manchester) compnsing wasle with construction
Lirmited processing and recyeling cosling £401 million
services in the Greater
Manchester area
ELWA Lirted East London Waste 80%  Operate the process 01/¥2/2002 01/12/2027 25 Waste processing
for household waste in taciliies with
four London baroughs copstruction cost
(Redbridge Barking of £110 milbon
and Dagenham
Havering and Newham)
Shanks Dumiries Dumiries and 80% Manage wasle 0171172004 01/11/2029 25 Waste processing

and Gailoway
Limited

Galloway Waste

treatment ang disposal
in Dumfries and
Galloway

facitiies with
construction ¢ost
of £34 million
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31 PRINCIPAL INVESTMENTS AND GROUP SERVICES COMPANIES

Investments

United Kingdom

Agility Trains West Ltd

Ordinary shares of £1 (24%)
Delivery of intercity train services
Financial year end 31 March

Alder Hey (Special Purpose Vehicle) Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (40%)
PPP accommeodation operatar

Ambar Solar Parks Limited**
Renewable energy develaper

Aylesbury Vale Parkway Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (50%)
Developmert and operation of rail
infrastructure assets

Bilsthorpe Wind Farm Limited™
Renewable energy developer

Burton Wold Extension Limited**
Renewable energy developer

Branden Solar Parks Limited®*
Renewabie energy developer

Carscreugh Renewable Energy Park Limited
Renewabie energy developer

CHy Greenwich Lewisham Rail Link plc
Ordinary shares of £1 (40%)
Light rail concession aperator

Coastal Clearwater Limited

QOrdinary shares of £1 (50%)

PPF wastewater treatment plant operator in
Narthern Iretand

Finaneial year end 31 March

CountyRoute (A130) Pic#
Road concession aperator

Croydon and Lewisham Lighting Services Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (50%)
Street Lighting toncession operator

Croyden PSDH Holdeo Limited®
Holding company lor property develapment
cempany

Croydon PSDH Holdco 2 Limited®
Holding company for property development
company

CCURV LLP
Limited Liability Partnership {50%)
Property development

Dreachmhor Wind Farm Limited®**
Renewable energy developer

Defence Support (5t Athan) Limited**
PPP accommodation gperator

ELWA Limltad**

Qrdinary shares of £1 (80%}

PPP wasle managemen! operator
Financial year end 31 March

Forum Cambridge LLP
Limited Liability Partnership (50%)
Project development

Hall Farm Wind Farm Limlted**
Renewable energy developer

Healthcare Support (Erdington)} Limited®*
PPP accommadation operater

INEOS Runcorn (TPS} Limited
Crdinary shares of £1 {37 43%)
PPP waste management operator

Inspirat Oldham Limited*?
Ordinary shares of £1 (95%)
PPP accommodation oparator

John Lalng (Croydon Development
Company) LLP**

Helding company lor property
development company

John Laing Infrastructure Limited*
Helding company for roads imvestments

John Laing Investments Limited*®
Holding company for investments

John Laing Investments Overseas
Holdings Limited”
Helding compary for overseas investments

John Laing Projects & Developments Limited?
Praperly management company

John Laing Projects & Davelopments
(Holdings) Limited*

Holding company for rail related assets and
property developments

John Laing Projects & Developments
{Croydon) Limited*

Holding company for Croydon property
developments

John Laing Rall Infrastructure Limited®
Development and operation of rail
infrastructure assets

John Laing Saocial Infrastructure Limited*
Helding company for accommodation
investments

Laing/Gladedale (Hastings) Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (50%)
Praperty development campany

Laing/Gladedale (St Saviours) Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (50%)
Praperty develepment company

Laing Investment Company Limited®
Proparty development company

Reganter Excellent Homas for Life Limited®*
Ordinary shares of £1 {80%)
PPP accornmedation eperator

Regenter Myatts Field North Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (50%)
PPP accommeodation operator

Services Support (BTP) Limited
Ordinary shares o £1 {54 17%)
PPP accormmodation operator

Services Suppert (Cleveland) Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 {27 08%)
PPP accommodation operator

Services Support {SEL) Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (25%)
PPP accommaodation operator

Severn River Crassing Plc
Ordinary shares of £1 (35%)
Tell bridge concesswnaire

Shanks Dumfries and Galioway Limited®®
Ordinary shares of £1 (B0%)

PPP wasta managamant pperatar
Financial year end 31 March

Surrey Lighting Services Limited
QOrdinary shares of £1 (50%}
Street lighting concesston operator

UK Highways ASS Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (50%)
Road concession operator
Financtal year end 31 March

UK Highways Limited

Ordinary shares of £1 (25 pence paid up) (50%)
Management of road concessian operatar
Financial year end 31 March

Viridor Lalng (Greater Manchester) Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (50%)
PPP waste management operator

Wear Point Wind Limited*s
Ordinary shares of £1
Renewable energy developer

Wind Assets LLP**
Renewable energy developer
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Overseas

A1 Mobil GmbH & Co KG

Shares of €1 (42 5%}

Road concession operator - operating
in Germany

A-Lanes A15B V
Shares of €1 (28%)

FPP road concession operator - operating

in the Metherlands

Denver Transit Partners LLC

Limited Liability Corporation (45%)

PPP rail concession operatar - operaling
in the USA

Dhule Palesner Tollway Limlted
Qrdinary shares of 10 rupees esch (35%)
Reoad cencession operator - operating

i india

Listed investments

Duo2B Y

Shares of €1 (40%)

PPP accommodalion operatar - operating
in the Netherlands

Gdansk Transport Company SA

B series shares PLN10 each (29 69%)
C senes shares PLN10 each (29 69%)
Road concession cperator - operating
in Poland

MAK Mecsek Autopalya Koncesszios Zrt
Ordinary shares HUF25 000 (30%)

Road concession operator - operating

in Hungary

SA Health Partnership Neminees Pty Limited
Shares of AUD 1 (17 26%)

Hospital concession aperator - operating

in Australia

Securefuture Wiri Limited

Shares of NZD 1 (30%)

PPP accommadation operator - aperating
in New Zealand

SPC Management Services B ¥
Shares of €1 (33 33%)
Management services to projects
in the Netherlands

Rammeldalsbarget Vindkraft AB**
Renewable energy developer in Sweden

Svartvallsberget SPW AB**
Renewable energy developer in Sweden

John Laing Infrastructure Fund Limited
Qrdinary shares of 0 01 pence (4 5%)
Registerad in Guernsey

Group Services Companmes

John Laing Sarvices Limited**
Management of retained constructicn
Labilities

John Laing Capital Managemant Limited**

Investment management company

Laing Investmants Management Services

(Australia) Limited*

Management staft and adminisirative services

- operating in Australia

taing Property Limited*®
Holding company for property developments

Laing Investments Management Services
Limited®
Management staft and administrative services

Laing Investments Management Sarvices
{Canada) Limited"

Management staff and administraiive services
- vperating »n Canada

Lalng Investments Managemant Services
{Singapore) Lirmited®
Managemen! staff and adrunistrative services

Laing investments Management Services
{Netheriands) Limited®

Management stafl and administrative services
- operating in the Netherlands

John Laing (USA) Limited”
Management staff and adminrstrative services
- operating in the USA

Except where indicated all companies are wholly owned have 31 December year ends are incorporated in Great Britain and
registered in England and Wales or Scotland and aperate mainly in the country of incorporation

" shares owned directly by the Company

*  subsidianes that are consolidated under IFRS 10

*  subsidianes that are not consolidated under IFRS 10

Overview

Strategic Report

( Financial Statements W Governance




96 / John Laing Annual Report and Acceunts 2013

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
as at 31 December 2013

2012 2012
Notes. £ million £ miliion
Fixed assets
Interests in subsidiary undertakings 3 736 8 6209
Current assets
Oebtors due within one year 4 1054 914
due after one year 4 41 08
Cash at bank and in hand 435 510
1530 143 2
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 60 -
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 5 27 4 241
Net current assets 19 é 1% 1
Total assets less current Labilities B56 2 1430
Craditors amounts falling due after more than one year [ 1293 128 4
Provisions for labilities
Interests in subsidiary undertaking 8 2001 1845
Net assets 1 524 8 4271
Capital and reserves
Called up share capttat ? 979 979
Revaluation reserve 10 3859 284 &
Profit and loss account 10 430 44 6
Shareholder s funds 526 8 4271

The financial staternents of John Laing ple registered number 1345670, were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for
issue on 25 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf by

IR sk ok

A JH Ewer P 0 D Bourke
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
25 March 2014 25 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2013

1

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company are presented separately as required by the Companies Act 2006 They have been
prepared under the historical cost conventien and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards
and law

The principal accounting policies are summarised below

b) Investments

Investrments in subsidiaries jount ventures and associates are reflected in the financial statements at far value which in the
case of PPP project companies and ather mnvestments 1s the portfolio valuation For other companies the net book value
equates to fair value

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

In accerdance with Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 no separate profit and loss account has been presented for the
Company For the year ended 31 December 20t3 the Company reported a profit of £24 4 million (2012 - £6 % millien} The
Directors autherised payment of interim dividends of £0 3 rullion (2012 - £0 3 million) during the year

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Investments

£ million
original cost
At § January 2013 2360
Disposals (4 4)
At 31 December 2013 2314
Provisians made against investments
Al 1 January 2013 (84 2)
Movements in the year Az
At 31 December 2013 {8103
Revaluation
At 1 January 2013 4691
Movement in the year 1169
At 31 December 2013 584 0
Valuation *
At 31 December 2013 736 6
At 31 December 2012 420 %

* total of original cost provisions made against tnvestments and revaluation

Short-term trading balances with subsidiaries are included in the Company Balance Sheet in debtors or creditors as appropriate
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2013

4 DEBTORS
31 December 31 December
2013 012
€ mittlon £ miilion
Due within one year
Amounts cwed by subsidiary undertakings 25 g8 0
Other debtors - 31
Other taxation &0 -
Prepayments and accrued income 19 03
105 4 94
Due after one year
Prepayments and accrued income 41 18
The amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings in the current and prior year are repayable in line with agreed repayment
schedules Interest1s charged at arm s length interest rates, 3 5% above bank base rate
CREDITORS AMODUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
£ mitlion £ miibon
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 185 38
Other taxation and seccial security 01 01
Accruats and deferred income 88 102
274 241

CREDITORS AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

3 December

31 December

203 032
£ millian £ mitlien
Amounis owed to Group undestakings 1293 128 4
1293 128 4
Interest 1s charged by Group undertakings on loans at 3 9% above bank base rate
ANALYSIS OF CREDITORS
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
€ million £ mullion
Maturity
Due within ane year 27 & 241
Due after more than five years 1293 128 4
156 7 1525
PROVISION FOR LIABILITIES
At1 January Revatuanon At 31 December
2013 amount 2013
E million £ mullion £ million
Investment in subsidiary undertaking® 184 5 156 2001

* relates to the Company s investment in John Laing Services Limiled which halds the delicit in JLPF
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CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Ne Na
Authorised
Ordinary Shares of £0 25 each 470,505,252 470,605 252
£ miltlon £ mullign
Allotted, called up and futly paid
391 742 516 Ordinary Shares of £0 25 each 979 979
MOVEMENT IN RESERVES
Revaluatlon Profit and
reserve’ loss account Total
£ million £ million £ million
At 1 January 2013 284 & 4d 6 3292
Retained profit for the year - 23¢9 239
Unrealised gain on the revaluation of iInvestments 1013 - 1013
Contribution to pensson fund - (25 5) (25 5)
At 31 Decernber 2013 3859 430 428 ¢

* the revaluation reserve is stated net of unreabised losses of £200 1 million at 31 December 2013 (2012 - £184 5 million) relating te the revaluation of subsdiaries

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDER S FUNDS

03 2012

Share caprtal Reserves Total Total

£ million £ million £ mililon £ million

Protit for the financial year - 242 24 2 69
Dividends paid on Qrdinary Shares - (0 3) (0 3) {0 3)
Retatned profit for the financial year - 3% 237 46
Unreabsed profit on the revaluation of investments - 10113 1013 498
Contribution to pension fund - (255) (25 5) {24 5)
Net in¢rease in shareholder s funds - 92 7 997 3y
Opening shareholder s funds 979 329 2 4271 3952
Closing shareholder s funds 979 428 ¢ 526 8 4271

Overview

Strategic Report

ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING

The Company s tmmediate parent company is Henderson Inirastructure Holdco Limited a company incorporated in Great Britain
The largest group in which the Company s results are consolidated 1s that of its ultimate parent and controlling entity Henderson
Infrastructure Holdco (Jersey) Limited a company incorporated in Jersey Channel Islands

( Financial Slatementsw Governance
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